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Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
(Formerly Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

| am pleased to once again connect with you to report
company's performance and progress presenting through this
35th AnnualReport of Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited.

Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited, an NBFC-CIC middle layer company,
doing away from other NBFCs that primarily undertake financial
activities, is conceptually passive holding company for financial
assets withinits group.

| take this opportunity to express our heartfelt gratitude fo you for
your unstinted support and trust throughout 15 years’ journey of
many upheavals and challenges faced by the Company but
successfully sailed out and achieved a coveted milestone by
instituting a banking subsidiary i.e. Utkarsh Small Finance Bank
Limited with its registered and corporate office at Varanasi. Our
banking subsidiary is now a ‘Listed’ banking company reaching
to the deprived and underserved section of the society
providing affordable financial services contributing its share in
financialinclusion, an esteemed initiative of the Government of
India and a gateway to cover the under-privileged and under-
served segment of the society for bringing them to main stream
of economy of our country.

Your Company'’s banking subsidiary being ‘Listed’ is on the way
to fulfilling its licensing conditions but also paves the way of
equity dilution of its promoter moving ahead for ‘Reverse
Merger' process. Apropos the above, the Board of Directors of
both the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
provided final approval to the scheme on September 20, 2024
and the scheme has been submitted to RBI on September 30,
2024 and the stock exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE on October 01,
2024 respectively.

Further, the RBI vide their NOC dated January 02, 2025 have
conveyed their ‘No-Objection’ to the proposal and to proceed
with the amalgamation in compliance with all applicable
statutory and regulatory requirements. Your Company Utkarsh
Corelnvest limited now holds 68.92% equity stake in USFBL as at
March 31, 2025.

The Financial Stability Report of June 30, 2025 issued by RBI
revealed that the Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs)
remained healthy with sizeable capital buffers, robust earnings
and improving asset quality in the financial year ended March
31, 2025. The system level parameters of NBFCs too are sound
with comfortable capital positions and improved GNPA ratios
has imprinted its remarkable foot prints in the financial
landscape of the country since its' emergence as a significant
source of finance for economically unserved and underserved
people.

The Indian economy presents a picture of strength, stability, and

SUMAN SAURABH
MD & CEO

opportunity. First strength comes from balance sheets of the five
major sectors — corporates, banks, households, government and
the external sector. Second, there is stability on all three frontsi.e.
price, financial and political providing policy and economic
certainty in this dynamically evolving global economic order.
Third, the Indian economy offers immense opportunities to
investors through 3Ds- demography, digitalisation and domestic
demand. Domestic economy exhibited resilience in FY25
supported by robust macroeconomic fundamentals and
proactive policy measures.

Our Banking Subsidiary i.e. Utkarsh Small Finance Bank sets a
milestone being ‘Listed Company’ during the year 2024-25 and
extends its outreach in 27 states and Union Territories having an
expanded net-work of 1092 branches across the country,
bringingmore than 49 lakh customersinits fold.

The focus of the Bank s to create a future for all where a financial
inclusivity, self-reliance, digital access and prosperity are there
to bringing a smile to unserved and underserved across its
outreach. Deposit base of the Bank reached to 21,566 Crore
with the growth of 23.4% while loan book has grown by 7.5% to
19,666 crore during FY 2024-25 through 1092 Banking Outlets and
369 ATMs and 761 micro ATMs pan India, spread over 27 States
and 4 Union Territories, delivered by over 19,779 employee base.
The Bank is carrying forward the endowed legacy of serving to
under-banked population of the country promoting financial
inclusion. The Bank holds the highest standards of transparency
and accountability adhering the best practices coping with the
pace of rapid digital and business transformationinitiatives.

According fo the applicable accounting standardi.e. the Ind-AS
based classification and categorizations, the Company has




recorded total comprehensive income of 30.26 crore on a
standalone basis and (-)419.76 crore at consolidated level. The
consolidated level net advances were 18,040 crore and the
total deposits were 22,235 crore as at the close of the financial
year. The Company's Net-worth as on March 31, 2025 stood at
%856.54 crore comprising of paid-up equity capital of %99.37
crore and Reserves of %756.57 crore (excluding Revaluation
Reserve, Investment Reserve and Intangible Assets) on
standalone basis. Whereas, on a Consolidated basis, the Net-
worth stood at %1,727.91 crore comprising of paid-up equity
capital of %99.37 crore, Reserves of 1,628.54 crore and
excluding non-controllinginterest of ¥780.31 crore.

As at the close of the FY 2024-25, the Bank posted (as per
applicable IGAAP accounting rules) a Net Profit of %24 crore
against ¥497.63 crore in the last year. The Gross Non-Performing
Assets (GNPAs) increased fo 9.4% at the year ended March 31,
2025 from 2.51% of the last year and the Net Non-Performing
Assets (NNPAs) was at 4.8% compared to 0.03% in FY2023-24. An
increased ratio of impaired assets and shrinking PAT to double
digit in comparison to previous years' bottom lines evolves a
distraught but on the other hand compels for introspection and
fo change the strategy and, so our banking subsidiary puts-forth
its steadfast steps to improve upon.

Bank has steadily built animpressive track record in the segment,
laying the foundation for sustained growth. While the Bank
continues fo expand its micro-banking business, it is also building
other retail loan products such as MSME (Retail assets), Housing,
Commercial Vehicle (CV) & Construction Equipment (CE) loans.

Our Banking Subsidiary ‘USFBL' constantly upgrading technology

driven process and system, with an aim to provide superior
customer experience. Bankis poised fo offer the services through
digital solutions such as Internet & Mobile Banking, Digi on-
boarding for customer acquisition, entering into strategic fin-
tech partnerships, UPI Lite for superior user experience with faster
real time settflement, e-KYC E-Sign for facilitating faster and
flexible process minimizing furn-around-time, RuPay contactless
International Debit Card and Utkarsh Vyapar, a complete digital
store for merchant payment solution. Apart USFBL also offers a bill
payment system and distribution of third party products such as
insurance and mutual funds for ease of access to third party
products by customers of our Banking Subsidiary.

| wish to express my gratitude, fo our Partners, the Shareholders
for their remarkable support & patronage and providing
strategic inputsthrough the challenging phase of pandemic.

| also sincerely thank all our (including of our Banking subsidiary)
Board Members, investors, partners, employees, customers and
all such other stakeholders for reposing their faith fowards the
Vision and Mission of Utkarsh and their continued support and
patronage allthroughout the journey. | trust that the same would
confinue to bring a more synergetic impactin the coming days.

With Best Regards!
Suman Saurabh
Managing Director & CEO
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DIRECTORS

Mr. G. S. Sundararajan
(Non- Executive Independent Director, Chairperson of the Board)

¢ Mr. G.S.Sundararajan is presently serving on Boards of several reputed companies
in the Banking and Financial Service Sector. He is also actively involved in the field
of Social Entrepreneurship in advisory capacities.

¢ He was tillrecently the Group Director, Shriram Group. He joined Shriram Group as
the Managing Director of Shriram Capital Ltd., the Holding Company of Shriram
Group's financial services and insurance businesses across India and overseas.
Sundararajan's experience in the Asian market and his understanding of these
countries and the business opportunities therein made Sanlam Emerging Markets
induct him info their Board in South Africa in August 2013. In his capacity as Group
Director, Mr. Sundararajan was a Director on the Board of the Group's subsidiaries to
provide oversight in critical areas of strategic growth opportunities for each of these
companies. Specifically, Mr. Sundararajan was responsible for the Retail and MSME business
housed in Shriram City Union Finance and the life and non-life Insurance businesses, housed in
the two Insurance venturesin collaboration with Sanlam, South Africa.

e Prior fo his Shriram stint, Mr. Sundararajan was the CEO & Managing Director of Fullerton India
Credit Company Ltd., a registered Non-Banking Finance Company catering to the financial
services needs of the retail and commercial mass markets. He was also the Managing Director
of Fullerton Enterprises Private Limited, a KPO, which had formed a strategic alliance with the
Centurion Bank of Punjab fo jointly drive the SME business.

*  Mr. Sundararajan was nominated to the Boards of two Financial Services investments of
Temasek in China, one in Nanjing for the SME Business and the otherin Chengdu in their Village
Bank franchise. He was an integral part of Temasek’s vision for India in the Banking and Financial
Services space that went on to become the fastest growing and largest networked Finance
Companyinthe country.

e Earlier to this, he was the Managing Director and Head of Citibank’s SME and Asset Based
Finance business in India. He had an exceptional stint at Citibank where he built the SME and
ABF (Asset Based Finance) business of the bank across the country. He started his careerin Sales
with Eicher Mitsubishi and went on to head the captive finance arm of this company in India.

-m Mr. Atul
(Independent Director)

e Mr. Aful has over three (03) decades of Administrative Service experience with
focus on Security, Vigilance and Anti-Corruption. Mr. Atulis an Indian Police Service
(IPS) Officer of 1976 batch.

e Mr. Aful had served as Director General of Police (DGP), Uttar Pradesh (UP), DGP
CBlin charge of UP and has been in-charge Additional Director General of Police,
Crime, Law and Order. Mr. Atul had stints with Personnel Wing of DGP
Headquarters asin-charge of IPS and PPS officers at Uttar Pradesh.

*  Mr. Atulhad been awarded Presidents Medal for distinguished service and has been
President of IPS Association in Uttar Pradesh and President of Lucknow University Alumni
Association.

¢ HeisanM.Sc. (Physics) and B.Sc. (Physics, Math & Statistics) from Lucknow University.



DIRECTORS

Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh

(Nominee Director representing Faering Capital)

*  Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh is the Co-founder of Faering Capital and has over 20
years of global and Indian experience in private equity and investment banking.
Mr. Aditya serves on the Board of several Faering Capital portfolio companies
including Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited, Finova Capital, and Bikebazaar.

e Prior to founding Faering Capital, Mr. Aditya was Vice President at Old Lane India
Opportunities Fund, a private equity fund, where he was responsible for leading
investments in the Indian real estate sector and was involved in evaluating

opportunities across the infrastructure and financial services sectors.

o Earlier, Mr. Aditya had worked in the Media and Entertainment Investment Banking
Group at MerrillLynch, New York for five (05) years.

¢ He holds an MBA from the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania and holds a Bachelor
degree in Economics from Cambridge University.

Mr. Suman Saurabh
s (\\qnaging Director & CEO)

e Mr. Suman has over 17 years of industry experience especially in Bank and Micro
Finance domain. He has handled senior management roles in different control
and support functions at Utkarsh Small Finance Bank. Prior to appointment as MD &
CEO of UCL, Mr. Suman was with Utkarsh Small Finance Bank (USFBL) as Head
Structured finance and Lending. Initially he had joined Utkarsh Small Finance
Limited asHead Finance & Corporate Communication.

e Prior to joining Utkarsh, he was with Bhartiya Micro Credit as Director and Chief
Executive Officer. He also had stint with Bharitya Harit Khadi Gramudyog Sansthan
as Founding Member Secretary, YTS Solutions Private Limited as General Manager
Credit Products, Yes Bank Limited as Vice President, Food & Agri Business Research
Management, Northern Arc Capital Limited (erstwhile IFMR Capital) as Business Head
North and East India, IFMR Mezzanine Finance Private Limited as Senior Analyst, Business
Development and Peoples’ Association for Research and Development as District Co-ordinator.
He started his career as a Field Supervisor with Gramudyog Hastkala Kendra.

¢ Heisa PGDRM (Finance) from Institute of Rural Management, Anand (IRMA) and an Honours
Graduate in Geography from Magadh University Bodhgaya.
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COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY
The details of the Board Committees and the Committee Members are tabulated asunder:

Sl. Name of the Committee Statutory & Regulatory Composition of the Committee
No. Requirement

1 Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) 1. Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director
(Chairperson)

2. Mr. Atul, Independent Director

3. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director

2 Corporate Social Responsibility 1. Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director
Committee (CSRC) (Chairperson)
2. Mr. Atul, Independent Director

3. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director
Required as per the

3 | Nomination & Remuneration Companies Act, 2013 [ 1. Mr. Atul, Independent Director (Chairperson)
Committee (NRC) 2. Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director
3. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director

4 Share Allotment Committee (SAC) 1. Mr. Atul, Independent Director
2. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director
3. Mr. Suman Saurabh, Managing Director & CEO

5 Group Risk Management 1. Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director
Committee (GRMC) . (Chairperson)
Rgglugﬁgc?foﬁ?r 2. Mr. Atul, Independent Director

3. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director
4. Mr. Suman Saurabh, Managing Director & CEO

6 Promoter Dilution Monitoring Constituted in 1. Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director
Committee (PDMC) terms of Equity (Chairperson) '
TEQUBTIOOnnk%g 2. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director
Subsidiary ('USFBL)) 3. Mr. Suman Saurabh, Managing Director & CEO

The Charters of the various Board Committees are as under:

1 AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD (ACB)

The Audit Committee meets at quarterly intervals. The major responsibilities of the Committee are asunder:

i. Recommendation forappointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;
ii. Reviewandmonitoring the auditor'sindependence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;
ii. Examination of the financial statements and the Auditors’ Report thereon;

iv. Approvalorany subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

V. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

vi. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, whereveritis necessary;

vii. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

viii. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

2 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSRC)

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meets minimum once on yearly basis and the CSR Committee shall formulate
and recommend to the Board an annual action plan in pursuance of this Policy, which shallinclude the following:

i. thelist of CSR projects or programmes that are approved to be undertaken in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VIl of
the Act;

ii. the manner of execution of such projects or programmes as specified in sub-rule (1) of rule 4 of the Act;

ii. the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or programmes;

iv. monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes; and

V. details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the company:

vi. the mechanism and adherence of necessary compliance under the applicable CSR Act and Rules, including for the
unspent CSR Amount, if any.




3 NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee meets minimum once in a year and also as and when required. The major
responsibilities of the Committee are asunder:

Vi.

Ensuring fit and proper status of proposed / existing Directors at the Board of the Company and that there is no conflict of
inferestin appointment of Directors / KMPs and Senior Management;

Regular review of the structure, size and composition of the Board (including skills, knowledge and experience) taking into
account the current requirements and future developments of the Company and making recommendations to the Board
withregard to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

Identification, nomination and recommendation for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and
whenit arises;

Ensuring that on appointment, allnon-executive Directors receive formal written terms of appointment;

Review the composition of Committees of the Board and to identify and recommend to the Board, the Directors who can
bestserve as members of each Board Committee;

Recommendation to the Board, the compensation payable to the Chairperson of the Company.

4 SHARE ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE (SAC)

The Share Allotment Committee meets as and when required. The major responsibilities of the Committee are asunder:

iii.
iv.

V.

Vi.

Considering and resolving grievances of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders;

Allotment of Equity Shares, approval of transfer or transmission of Equity Shares, Debentures or any other securities;
Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split / consolidation / renewal, etc.;

Overseeing requests for dematerialization and rematerialization of Securities;

Spreading awareness amongst security holders for protection of theirrights and interest(s);

Carrying out any other function as assigned by the Board from time to fime related to security holders of the company.

5 GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (GRMC)

The Group Risk Management Committee meets at quarterly intervals. The major responsibilities of the Committee are as
under:

Vi.

Analyse the material risks to which the group, its businesses and subsidiaries are exposed. It must discuss all risk strategies
both at an aggregated level and by type of risk and make recommendations to the Board in accordance with the group’s
overallrisk appetite;

Identify potentialintra-group conflicts of interest;

Assess whether there are effective systems in place to facilitate exchange of information for effective risk oversight of the
group;

Assess whether the corporate governance framework addresses risk management across the group;

Carry out periodic independent formal review of the group structure and internal controls;

Articulate the leverage of the Group and monitor the same.

6 PROMOTER DILUTION MONITORING COMMITTEE (PDMC)

The Promoter Dilution Monitoring Committee (PDMC) meets as and when required. The major responsibilities of the
Committee are asunder:

Capital reorganization in Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (UCL) and / or Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (USFBL) either
through an ‘Offer for Sale’, Capital Structuring, etc;

Private Placement / FPO / Rights / Bonus Issue or any other permissible option as per applicable laws and regulations;

Listing of Banking Subsidiary, i.e. USFBL through Primary Issuance;

Reverse merger of UCL with USFBL, subject to RBI and other regulatory approvals.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Suman Saurabh has over Seventeen (17) years of BFSI industry experience especially in the
domains of Investors Relationship, Client Acquisition, Corporate Lending, Due Diligence, Structuring,
Portfolio Management, Wholesale Banking, Credit Analysis, Product and Process Development,
Financial Planning and Analysis, Fund Raising and relating Banking Operations.

Prior to joining Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited, he had stints with Utkarsh Small Finance Bank (USFBL) as
the Head of Structuring Desk (team responsible for structured finance). He has also been the Head -
Wholesale Banking Business & Process Support and Head - Finance & Corporate Communication
being part of the IPO Team.

Earlier he had stints with other entities, including Bhartiya Micro Credit as Director & Chief Executive
Officer; Bhartiya Harit Khadi Gramoday Sansthan as Founding Member Secretary; YTS Solutions Pvt.
Ltd. as General Manager, Credit Products; Yes Bank Ltd. as Vice President, Food and Agribusiness
Research Management (FARM); Northern Arc Capital Limited (Erstwhile Known as IFMR Capital) as
Business Head, North & East India; and IFMR Mezzanine Finance Pvt. Ltd. as Senior Analyst,
Business Development.

He is a Rural Management Graduate from Institute of Rural Management, Anand
(IRMA) and a B. A. (Geography Hons.) Graduate from Magadh University. He also has
certifications in ‘Rural Marketing’ and ‘Rural Business Development’ from
Entrepreneurship Development Institute of India, Ahmedabad.

Mr. Suman Saurabh |
Managing Director & CEO i l

Mr. Harshit has over thirteen (13) years of experience in the fields of Accounts & Finance, - 1 >
Taxation, Micro Credit and Internal Audit. Initially, he had joined Utkarsh Micro Finance Pvt. Ltd.
(UMFPL) as a Concurrent Auditor in the Internal Audit Department and is currently overseeing
Finance and Accounts verticals as the CFO of the company. Prior to UMFPL, he was with a real-
estate company based out of Varanasi in its Finance and Accounts vertical as F&A Supervisor.
He is a Chartered Accountant (CA) by profession from Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India (ICAl) and a Commerce Graduate from Banaras Hindu University (BHU), Varanasi. He is a _

Junior Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (JAIIB) and has other Certifications from IIBF. « ‘
Mr. Harshit Agrawal
Chief financial Officer

Mr. Neeraj has over eleven (11) years of experience in company secretarial and
corporate compliance domain with Utkarsh, ever since its NBFC-MFI format as Utkarsh
Micro Finance Private Limited (UMFPL) fo in the NBFC-CIC format now as Utkarsh
Corelnvest Limited.

Prior to Utkarsh, he had stint with a Corporate law firm at Allahabad as Designated
Partner.

He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and holds a
bachelor'sdegree inlaw from Veer Kunwar Singh University, Arrah, Bihar.

He is the Member of Managing Committee of Varanasi Chapter of NIRC of ICSI for the
FY 2023-24 to FY 2026-27.

Mr. Neeraj Kumar Tiwari
Company Secretary [CS] Chief Compliance Officer
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Utkarsh Corelnvest Ltd. (UCL, hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), a registered core investment company (CIC) under RBI's
Master Direction — Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction 2016 is conceptually passive holding company for
financial assets within its group.

UCLis the promoter of a banking subsidiary i.e. Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (USFBL, hereinafter referred to as ‘the Bank’ or
‘the Banking Subsidiary’) established in the year 2017 with an objective fo focus primarily on ensuring financial inclusion of
unbanked orunderbanked segment across the country.

The Banking Subsidiaryi.e. USFBL beganits banking journey with a small ‘step’ having four (4) branches at Varanasi and diverged its
way from limiting periphery to all across the Country reaching to 27 states (including 4 Union Territories) through its 1092 branch
outletsin the country bringing in more than 5.0 million customers of varied segments being served by dedicated 19,779 employees
of the Bank.

The Banking subsidiary successfully completed eight (08) full years of its banking operations on January 22, 2025. The Bank commits
to redefining its business processes, improve efficiency, enhance customer experience through digital transformation and multiple
channel experience. The Vision has kept the endeavors focused for being the most trusted, digitized bank that is financially and
socially inclusive, and creates value across social strata through insightful and viable solutions. The Core Values drive to
‘Reimagine’, ‘Redefine’, ‘Rise’ encompass to staying competitive, in the fast-paced business landscape and rising to customers
and stakeholders’ expectations.

In terms of RBI Licensing Guidelines Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (‘UCL’) was required to reduce ifs equity stake in the Bank to 40%
within a period of 5 years and thereafter to 26% within a period of 15 years from the date of commencement of business
operations by the Bank. Accordingly, the reverse merger of UCL with USFBL is on the way ahead having been primarily approved
by the Reserve Bank of India and further approval of the stock exchanges (BSE and NSE)/SEBI. Further approval from the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and other regulatory / statutory bodies, would enable the Bank to meet the aforesaid
dilution requirements as required by the RBI. At the financial year end March 31, 2025, the Company was holding 68.9% stake atf the
Bank. This Management Discussion and Analysis is primarily deriving from the operations of the banking subsidiary i.e., USFBL and
the initiatives taken up by the different verticals of the Bank, as highlighted in subsequent paragraphs.

INDIAN BANKING INDUSTRY

India’s banking sector continues to play a pivotal role in supporting economic growth through capital mobilization, credit
expansion, and financial inclusion. Banks and NBFCs remain the backbone of India’s financial sector, providing support to its
growth aspirations by meeting the credit requirements of the productive sectors of the economy. Banks in India will continue to
nurture and incentivise the development of infrastructure to give a ‘digital push’ to payments and settlements. They are also
committed to playing an enabling role in the adoption of emerging technology, while reinforcing its customer-centric measures
and deepening financial inclusion. Maintaining financial stability and being a facilitator of development will continue fo remain
the overarching goal of Banks in India under the regulatory and supervisory guidance of Reserve Bank of India.

Though gross NPAs fell to a 12-year low of 2.6%, rising defaults in unsecured loans—making up 51.9% of new retail NPAs as of
September 2024, pose risks, especially as many borrowers also hold secured loans. The sector remains well-capitalized but must
manage emerging credit stress and global uncertainties.

Netinterestincome is expected to grow in 2025, with moderate growth expected through 2029, reflecting cautious opfimism amid
evolving dynamics.




Small Finance Banking Industry

Small Finance Banks (SFBs) were established to drive financial inclusion by extending credit to underserved groups and small
businesses. While the sector grew strongly in FY24 (24%), growth slowed to 18-20% in FY25 amid rising delinquencies, especially in
microfinance. The GNPA ratio rose to 2.6-2.8% (from 2.1%in FY24), and ROA dropped to 1.4-1.6% from 2.1%. A modest ROA recovery
to 1.6-1.8%is expectedin FY26.

Profitability in H2 FY25 was hit by higher provisions and loan write-offs, needed to maintain asset quality for universal bank license
eligibility. Margin pressure persisted due to high funding costs, increased secured lending, and rising operational expenses.
Despite near-term challenges, SFBs remain pivotal in advancing inclusive banking through digital innovation and grassroots
outfreach.

Microfinance Industry

India’s microfinance sector remains critical for financial inclusion, supporting underserved individuals and small businesses. Stress
levels rose, with NBFC-MFIs seeing 90+ DPDs climb to 3.5% and 60+ DPDs to 5.6% by Q3 FY25, leading to slower disbursements and
credit growth.

Profitability was hit by rising credit costs (peaking at 13.5% in Q3) and higher operating expenses. FY25 credit costs are expected to
average 9.6%, as asset quality improves. Liquidity buffers remain adequate, but borrower overleveraging is a concern. To address
this, a H2 lakh cap on total borrowings has been intfroduced, along with a new three-lender rule effective April 1, 2025. While growth
may While growth may moderate, these measures aim to ensure responsible lending. The NBFC outlook remains negative, but the
MFl outlookis stable, supported by the sector'simportance and expected recovery in H2 FY26.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME)

The MSME sector remains a key pillar of India’s economic growth, contributing 45.7% to exportsin FY24 and employing over 25 crore
people across 5.93 crore units. As a major driver of entrepreneurship, job creation, and rural development, the sector is central to
India’s ambition of doubling itseconomy.

To boost MSME competitiveness, the Union Budget 2025-26 raised the ministry’s allocation by 4.6% to H23,168 crore. Key reforms
include increased investment and turnover thresholds for classification, expanded credit guarantee coverage, and targeted
schemes for first-time entrepreneurs and sectors like footwear, leather, and toys.

F

MSME exports surged from H3.95 lakh crore in FY21 to H12.39 lakh crore in FY25, with the number of exporting units tripling. The
government now focuses on promoting R&D, tech adoption, and global partnerships to enhance product quality and global
competitiveness, ensuring sustained growth and resilience for the sector.

Housing Finance

India’s housing finance sector has grown significantly, driven by rising incomes, affordability, and strong government support
through schemes like PMAY. As of March 2024, the individual housing loan portfolio stood at H33 trillion, growing at a 13% CAGR
over six years and comprising 14% of total systemic credit. Public sector banks hold 40% of this market, followed by private banks at
34.5%.

The sector is projected to grow at a 15-16% CAGR through FY30, with strong demand in affordable housing. HFCs' portfolios rose
13.2% to H9.6 trillion in FY24, with NIMs at 3.7%. Challenges include tight liquidity and stable borrowing costs, but NPAs are expected
toremain moderate af 1.6-1.8%in FY25-26.




Commercial Vehicle & Construction Equipment Finance

The commercial vehicle & construction equipment finance markets are experiencing steady growth, driven by global frade
expansion, infrastructure development, and increasing industrial activity. In 2024, the commercial vehicle market reached
$976.15 billion and is expected to grow to $1,067.45 billion in 2025. Key drivers include e-commerce logistics, last-mile delivery,
green transportinitiatives, and supply chain efficiency.

Meanwhile, the construction equipment finance market, is expected to grow in 2025. This growth is fuelled by rising demand for
construction equipment, smart city projects, accessible financing options, and stable resale values. Both sectors are set to benefit
from continued infrastructure investment and evolving market dynamics.

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank’s Overview

Headquartered in Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh, Utkarsh Small Finance
Bank Limited (Utkarsh SFBL) was incorporated on April 30, 2016, as
a public limited company under the Companies Act, 2013. As of 109
March 31, 2025, the Bank has established a strong presence
nationwide through its 1092 banking outlets spread across 23
States and 4 Union Territories of the country. It maintains a
significant presence in rural and semi-urban regions, aligning
withits mission fo serve underbanked communities.
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This strategic focus on underserved areas has not only driven the
Bank's growth but also enabled compliance with the Reserve
Bank of India’s directive that mandates at least 25% of branches
be located in Unbanked Rural Centres (URCs). As of March 31,
2025, 27% of Utkarsh SFBL's outlets were situated in URCs. Over the
past two financial years, the Bank has added more than 260
branches, a steady expansion that supports its ongoing business
growth and strengthensits diversified operational profile.
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As of March 31, 2025, Utkarsh Small Finance Bank's branch network comprised 761 Micro Banking (MB) branches and 331 General
Banking (GB) branches. The MB branches are primarily located in rural and semi-urban areas and focus on micro- banking loans
and advancing financial inclusion. In contrast, the GB branches are concentrated in metropolitan and urban centers, offering a
broader range of services, including deposit mobilization and lending products such as MSME (retail assets) loans, housing loans,
and loans forcommercial vehicles & construction equipment.
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Utkarsh SFBL is committed to advancing financial inclusion by providing access to banking services for underserved and unserved
segments of society. This includes women entrepreneurs, low- to middle-income households, micro and small enterprises, and
homebuyers from similarincome groups.

To fulfil this mission, the Bank has established a strong presence in financially underserved regions such as Bihar, Jharkhand, and
Uttar Pradesh. As of March 31, 2025, these states accounted for 54% of the bank’s gross loan portfolio, highlighting both itsimpact
and the significant growth potentialin these areas. Utkarsh SFBL actively expands its footprint to address the banking needs of all its
customers across the country.

The bank’s journey began with micro-banking operations in Uttar Pradesh in September 2009 through its promoter entity, Utkarsh
Core Invest Limited (UCL). Since then, it has built a solid reputation in the microfinance sector, laying a strong foundation for long-
term growth. While continuing to scale its micro-banking business, the Bank is also diversifying its retail loan portfolio with products
focused on MSME (Retail Assets), housing, and commercial vehicle & construction equipment (CV & CE) financing.

As of March 31, 2025, Utkarsh SFBL had a strong workforce of 19,779 employees, serving a customer base exceeding 4.9 million. The
bank’s grossloan portfolioreached H19,665.59 crores, reflecting continued growth and outreach.




4 4% 7% Utkarsh SFBL offers a wide range of banking services as
permissible for small finance banks. Its product suite includes
various savings and current account options tailored to meet
the diverse saving and fransaction needs of its customers.
Embracing digital fransformation, the Bank provides
convenient banking experiences through Internet Banking,
Mobile Banking, Bharat Connect Bill Payments, Aadhar
Enabled Payment System, ASBA, and E-Nach and UPIl-based
fransactions.
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The bank’s deposit base also witnessed substantial growth,
rising from H17,472.60 crores as of March 31, 2024, to
H21,565.70 crores as of March 31, 2025, underscoring
‘ Maharashtra MadhyaPradesh . Other States increasing customer trust and engagement.

. Bihar Uttar Pradesh . Jharkhand . Odisha

Presence across 13 States / UTs

Focusing on financial inclusion, the Bank provides a diverse suite of products and services tailored to meet the
unique needs of various customer segments.
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The Bank is led by its Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Govind Singh, who brings over 25 years of experience in
the banking and financial services sector. The board comprises members with diverse industry expertise, offering strategic
direction that supports the bank’s continued growth. Backed by a seasoned senior management team with deep industry
knowledge, the Bank remains focused on sustainable and responsible expansion.

Key highlights of our financial performance during FY2024-25
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Bank has built a robust presence in rural and semi-urban areas, with approximately 65% of its branches located in these
regions. Its distinctive branch network is designed to deliver customized and relevant financial solutions while maintaining
operational cost efficiency. The Bank’s micro banking (MB) branches provide micro-credit, a range of retail loans, deposit services,
and payment solutions to meet the diverse needs of its customers.

On the other hand, GB branches focus on garnering deposits. The Bank has adopted the strategy to target the top 100 locations
that can facilitate deposit mobilisation to expand its GB branches network.

Demographic Break up of MB Outlets Demographic Break up of GB Outlets
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88% MB Branches in Rural & Semi-urban areas 90% Branches in metropolitan and urban areas




As of March 31, 2025, the Bank operated its MSME (Retail assets), housing loan, and CV & CE loan verticals through 86, 63, and 47
branches, respectively. This extensive branch network not only supports a diversified customer base but also offers strong cross-
selling opportunities.

During FY 2024-25, the Bank delivered stable performance, with total assets growing by 18% to ¥28,127.44 crore. This positive growth

reflects the bank’s strategic expansion and broad portfolio of services. Utkarsh SFBL's gross loan portfolio and deposits grew by 7%
and 23%, respectively, reaching19,665.59 crore and¥21,565.70 crore as of March 31, 2025.

Loan Book Growth Deposits Growth

YoY Growth % YoY Growth %
31% 31% 7% 36% 27% 23%

CAGR 9% CAGR 25%
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Gross Loan Portfolio (in Crore) Deposits (in Crore)

Liabilities - Deposits Deposits Composition as on March 31, 2025

The Bank has adopted a strategic focus on India’s top 100

deposit centres, primarily targeting metropolitan and urban

markets. It offers a comprehensive suite of services at

competitive rates, catering primarily to a broad retail customer Retail Institutional
base, including senior citizens, middle-class individuals, D deposﬁi 12%;“ deposifs
salaried professionals and the self-employed.

o

To support this growth, the Bank opened 204 new branchesin FY
2024-25. The Bank has a presence across 27 States and Union
Territories, operating through a network of 1,092 banking
outlets. This includes 331 General Banking (GB) branches and
761 Micro Banking (MB) branches. Among the GB branches,
90% are situated in metropolitan and urban areas, with a focus

on mobilizing stable and sustainable deposits. Meanwhile, 88% Savings
. . deposits
of the MB branches are located in rural and semi-urban 19%

regions, playing a key role in advancing the Bank’s financial
inclusion initiatives. Complementing this network are 369 ATMs
and 760 micro-ATMs, offering cost-effective access to essential
services such as cash deposits, withdrawals, and green PIN
generation.

Current deposits

3%

The Bank continues fo enhance its digital and fintech capabilities through both direct initiatives and strategic partnerships.
Customers can now instantly open savings and term deposit accounts via video KYC on the Bank’s website. Moreover, a fintech
partnership has enabled the Bank to offer term deposit products to the fintech’s existing customer base. Innovations like
inferoperable card-less cash withdrawal (ICCW) have been introduced, allowing customers to withdraw funds from enabled ATMs
without using a physical card. The Bank also participates in the Aadhaar enabled payment system (AEPS) as both an issuer and
acquirer, facilitating convenient cash withdrawals and access fo micro-ATM services in rural and semi-urban regions.




Deposit’'s Growth

The Bank has maintained a strategic focus on achieving
sustainable and consistent deposit growth, driven by a well-
diversified and granular retail deposit portfolio. As a result, the
total deposit grew 10 321,566 crore as of Mar 31, 2025 marking a
strong year-on-year (YoY) increase of 23.4%. The Bank's CASA
Deposits grew by 31% YOY to 34,699 Crore in FY24-25 ,reaching a
CASA ratio of 21.8%.

Improvement in CASA Ratio and CASA + RTD Ratio

Mar'23 Mar'24 Mar'25
CASA (Amount in ZCrore) 2,864 3,582 4,699
61.6% 66.1% 71.1%

Mar'23 Mar'24

Mar'25

Bl CASA% Bl CASA+RTD%

Retail term deposits (RTD) emerged as a key driver, growing by
33.5% YoY to %10,635 crore as of Mar'31, 2025. The bulk term
deposit book also expanded to 6,232 crore as of Mar'31, 2025,
reflecting a 5.2% YoY growth. The overall deposit growth was
predominantly led by the surge in RTDs.

Key performance metrics saw notable improvements:
1. CASARatio: 21.8%

2. CASA+RTD Ratio: Improvedto 71.1%

3. CredittoDeposit (CD) Ratio: Improved to 86.8%
4.  Neftstable fundingratio (NSFR): Stood at 120.76%

Deposit Portfolio Enhancement

Despite industry headwinds, the Bank was able to grow its CASA
deposits by 31.2% YoY, taking CASA Ratio to 21.8% as of Mar'31,
2025. Bank’s CASA+RTD ratio improved to 71.1% reflecting
healthy retail mix.

The Bank has strengthened its insfitutional deposit base by
intensifying efforts to acquire and deepen relationships across
the Government, TASC (Trusts, Associations, Societies, and
Clubs), and Financial Institution segments. Moreover, it has
successfully reduced its reliance on high-cost bulk deposits.

Decline in Top-20 Depositors Concentration

38%

34% 29%

Mar'23 Mar'24 Mar'25

Bank focused on building well-diversified customer base.
Concentration risk reduced as share of deposits from Top-20
customers brought down to 16%.

Decline in Top-20 Depositors Concentration

21%
Mar'23 Mar'24 Mar'25

Il Top 20 Depositors

Geographically Well Diversified Mix Of Deposits

The Bank's deposit portfolio is well-diversified across
geographies, with no single State or Union Territory
accounting for more than 20% of the fotal deposits. As of
March 31, 2025, the Bank had established its presence across
27 States and Union Territories. The largest shares of deposits
come from Uttar Pradesh (17.3%), Maharashtra (14.6%), NCT
of Delhi (12.3%), Haryana (7.7%), Uttarakhand (5.9%), and
Bihar (4.8%). This broad-based distribution reflects the Bank’s
strategic focus on geographic diversification, supporting a
balanced and de-risked deposit profile.




Geographical Split of Deposits

States % Share in Total Deposit Total Banking Outlets
Andhra Pradesh 0.3% 4
Assam 0.8% 2
Bihar 4.8% 272
Chandigarh 1.8% 3
Chhattisgarh 1.3% 24
Goa 0.1% 2
Gujarat 4.2% 20
Haryana 7.7% 35
Himachal Pradesh 2.4% 4
Jammu & Kashmir 0.2% 1
Jharkhand 4.3% 99
Karnataka 1.6% 10
Kerala 2.0% 11
Madhya Pradesh 2.2% 53
Maharashtra 14.6% 85
Meghalaya 0.0% 1
NCT of Delhi 12.3% 35
Odisha 1.0% 101
Puducherry 0.1% 1
Punjab 4.3% 10
Rajasthan 2.6% 29
Sikkim 0.0% 1
Tamil Nadu 2.3% 15
Telangana 1.1% 5
Uttar Pradesh 17.3% 225
Uttarakhand 5.9% 27
West Bengal 4.6% 17
Total 100.0% 1,092

Balanced Regional Deposit Mix

Northern region
Central region
Eastern region
Western region

Southern region

North-Eastern region

Note —classification as per RBI regional categorization

B Mar'24

B Mar'25

Northern Region — Chandigarh, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu & Kashmir, NCT of Delhi, Punjab, Rajasthan

Central Region — Chhattisgarh, Madhya Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand

Eastern Region - Bihar, Jharkhand, Odisha, Sikkim, West Bengal

Western Region — Goa, Gujarat, Maharashtra

Southern Region - Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, Kerala, Puducherry, Tamil Nadu, Telangana

North East Region — Assam, Meghalaya

30.7%

31.4%




Product Offerings

The Bank offers a comprehensive suite of demand and term
deposit products, complemented by a range of digital and
utility services tailored to meet the diverse needs of its customer
base. Its product portfolio caters to individuals, senior citizens,
high-net- worth individuals (HNIs), non-residents, MSMEs,
corporates, and businesses across the retail spectrum.

Seamless digital banking solutions including internet and
mobile banking, WhatsApp Banking, UPI, and Digital Fixed
Deposits, are central to the Bank’s technology-driven
approach. Additional services such as debit cards, bill
payments, Aadhaar seeding, interoperable card-less cash
withdrawals, lockers, POS solutions, and merchant payment
soundbox apps are offered alongside insurance and asset
products. The Bank has also built a strong asset-liability franchise
and distributes third-party products through multiple channels.
For institutional clients, the Bank provides specialized solutions
such as cash management services, Smart Pay, corporate
intfernet banking, and PFMS integrafion—delivering a robust
and comprehensive institutional banking experience.

To enhance its competitive edge, the Bank has undertaken
several strategic initiatives and digital revamps, strengthening
its capabilities through both in-house innovation and external
partnerships. Bank pursued the following initiatives in the
financial year:

* Non-Resident Banking Services: Bank launched, on pilot
basis, NRO/NRE savings and term deposit products to cater
fo the Non-Resident segment.

¢ Real Estate Regulation Act (RERA) Account: The introduction
of a dedicated proposition for the Real Estate segment is
expected to help tap into alarge market opportunity in real
estate sector, enabling growthin the institutional client base
and anincrease in CASA balances.

e PFMS: Public Financial Management System (PFMS) is an
initiative of Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India which
provides a web-based application for e-payment of Direct
Benefit Transfer (DBT)/ Non DBT payments. Implementation
of PFMS payment solutions would be a leverage in building
government and TASC segments.

e E-ASBA (Application Supported by Blocked Amount):
Launch of ASBA services on Internet/Mobile Banking and UPI
platforms to serve mass segment.

e Internet Banking and Mobile Banking: Bank offers
advanced applications to the customers, which is secure
and robust and offers ease of operation. Major
developments ongoing - onboarding journey simplification,
Ul-UXimprovements and limit enhancements.

SPARSH Service Centres: The Bank is empaneled with the
Defence Accounts Department (DAD) tfo act as a SPARSH
Service Centre through all its General Banking Branches for
which the Bank entfered into an MoU with the Controller
General of Defence Accounts, Ministry of Defence. This
empanelment enables our Bank to provide last mile
connectivity fo Defence pensioners, especially those who
live in remote areas of the country and those who do not
have the means and access to logon to SPARSH Portal.

Life Insurance of India (LIC) Current Accounts: The Bank has
sighed the MoU with LIC of India for providing banking
services to Corporafte Office and its Branches/ Zonal /
Divisional Offices. This MoU will facilitate opening the
Current Account of Head Office of LIC of India for fransfer of
funds to/ from the Current Accounts of Branches and
Divisional Offices as well as for various other purposes.

WhatsApp Banking: The Bank has gone live with WhatsApp
banking services enabling mini statements, debit card
services, etc.

UPI: Ongoing utility enhancements viz UPI lite, Tap & Pay and
Auto Top up.

Fintech Partnerships: Onboarded Money Honey Financial
Services and Bajaj Capital Financial Services for sourcing FD
via physical and redirection model.

Customer Service and Digital Adoption

The Bank remains committed to delivering customer
excellence by continually enhancing ifs tfechnology
infrastructure and service delivery processes. A well-
equipped customer care center, supported by a
dedicated relafionship management channel, ensures
efficient and personalized support across customer
segments.

To streamline and elevate the service experience, the Bank
has deployed several tfechnology-driven solutions,
including tab- based onboarding, next-generation
applications, advanced customer relationship
management (CRM) systems, and video banking
capabilities. These digital tools play a key role in improving
responsiveness, accessibility, and overall customer
satisfaction.




ASSETS -LENDING PRODUCTS

Utkarsh SFBL continues fo strengthen its retail loan portfolio by focusing on a diverse mix of lending products, including micro-
banking loans through the Joint Liability Group (JLG) model, micro-banking business loans, MSME (retail assets) loans, housing

loans, andloans forcommercial vehicles & construction equipment.

As of March 31, 2025, the bank’s gross loan portfolio grew by 7.47% and stood at 219,665.59 crore. This expansion was primarily
driven by strong performance in non-JLG segments, including other retail loans and wholesale lending, which fogether registered
arobust 45% growth during FY25, albeit on a modest base. However, this growth was partially offset by a 17% decline in the JLG loan

portfolio overthe same period.

31% 31% 7% YoY Growth %

1,882

38,880

BEIDE

@ Micro-Banking
@ Other Retail Loans
Wholesale lending

Mar'22
Mar'23
Mar’24

*Excluding BC JLG portfolio; including BC JLG, JLG loan book is H?,207 crore
(47% of total portfolio) as of Mar-25;

**Includes PM Svanidhi & PM Vishwakarma loan portfolio of H crore as of Mar-25

As of March 31, 2025, the Bank's micro-banking loan book stood
at H?,679 crores. Within this, the JLG (Joint Liability Group)
segment saw a reduction, tapering down to H8,761 crores af
the close of FY25 compared to H10,634 crores in FY24. On the
other hand, the micro-banking business loan segment
demonstrated a notable expansion, climbing to H210 crores in
FY25 from H671 crores a year earlier-reflecting a year-on-year
increase of 36%. This uptick was largely driven by onboarding
seasoned JLG borrowers and sustained disbursals across
recurringloan cycles.

Looking ahead, the Bank anticipates a positive momentum in
JLG lending volumes alongside robust growth in business loan
advances, underpinned by its established reach in regions that
remain underserved. The Bank's tech-led initiatives-ranging
from fully digital loan and savings account onboarding to
services like e-KYC, e-signatures, personalized QR-based
collections, and micro-ATMs-are expected to reinforce a
scalable and efficient operating model.

While Bihar and Uttar Pradesh continue to anchor the Bank's
micro-banking operations, its geographic footprint has been
steadily expanding. As of the fiscal year-end, the micro-banking
portfolio extended across 13 states and union ferritories,
catering to over 28 lakh clienfs. The Bank’s presence spans 182
districts and is supported by a network of 761 dedicated micro-
banking outlets.

Micro-Banking Lending

Utkarsh SFBL began its journey in September 2009 from Uttar
Pradesh and has since built a strong track record in the micro-
banking sector. With a focused presence in rural and semi-
urban regions, areas that remain largely underserved, the
Bank has played a pivotal role in driving inclusive growth and
expanding access to financial services.

The Bank offers Joint Liability Group (JLG) loans, Micro-
Banking Business Loans for mature JLG clients, PM SVANidhi
loans tailored for street vendors and PM Vishwarkarma to
fraditional artisans and craftspeople. These financial
products are designed to empower low-income and
underprivileged individuals who traditionally have limited
access to formal banking. By supporting income-generating
activities and entrepreneurial ventures, these loans have
enabled many customers to improve their livelihoods and
pursue their aspirations.

The JLG structure fosters strong credit discipline through
frequent and personalinteractions with borrowers. This model
not only ensures financial sustainability across economic
cycles but also delivers meaningful social impact-making
micro-banking a true double bottom-line business for Utkarsh
SFBL.

Micro-Banking Loan Book
(in crore)

15% 23% 23%

Mar'23
Mar'24

Represents YoY Growth %




Demography wise break-up of Bank’s micro-banking
Portfolio

Metropolitan 2%

Urban
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41%
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State wise break-up of Bank’s Micro-Banking Portfolio
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Presence across 13 States / UTs

The bank offers cashless disbursement for all micro banking
loans, ensuring that funds are transferred directly into the
customer’'s Bank account. In line with ifs digital strategy, the
Bank is actively increasing cashless collections, primarily
through customer- specific QR codes and the bill desk payment
gateway. This shift is expected to lead to greater adoption of
cashless transactions, reducing operational risks associated
with physical cash and improving the efficiency of field staff.
Furthermore, the cashless payment model provides enhanced
convenience and security for customers.

Onboarding micro banking clientsis streamlined through E-KYC
and E-sign processes, optimizing operational efficiency and
ensuring a swift and seamless onboarding experience,
ultimately offering a superior customer experience.

Joint Liability Group (JLG) Loans

The Bank offers Joint Liability Group (JLG) loans to clients for
income-generating activities, leveraging a group-guarantee
model that allows individuals o access loans without the need
for collateral or security. This model encourages borrowers to
foster credit discipline through mutual support, promoting
responsible financial behaviour within the group and ensuring
timelyloan repayment.

The primary target segment for these loans is women in
households engaged in existing or potential income-
generating activities. The loan methodology includes regular
centre meetings either fortnightly or bi-fortnightly and
‘stepped-up’ loans, which increase each time a client
successfully repays a loan, demonstrating good credit
discipline and aneed forlargerloans.

As of March 31, 2025, all of the bank’s JLG loan customers were
women, with loans ranging from 6,000 to ¥1,00,000 to support
variousincome-generating ventures.

Joint Liability Group (JLG) Loans

To meet the growing funding needs of customers who have
completed multiple loan cycles, the Bank offers micro-banking
business loans (MBBL) fo its matured Joint Liability Group (JLG)
borrowers. As of March 31, 2025 we have no. of JLG borrowers
>27 Lakh and MBBL customer base is of more than 1 Lakh.
Considering MBBL penetration level of ~ 4%, there is significant
potential to grow. During FY 2024-25, the bank’s MBBL loan
portfolio reached H?10 crore as of March 31, 2025. Given the
Bank has long frack record in JLG lending and has a large
number of JLG borrowers , the Bank expects significant growth
potentialin MBBL lending which'is also reflected in credit growth
registered by the Bank in FY25. Furthermore, as the Bank
provides MBBL loans only to ifs existing borrowers with good
frack record, asset quality in MBBL loan segment remain
healthy.

MBBL Loan Book (in crore)

153% 102% 36%
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POS (in Cr)

Saving, Pension and Health Insurance for Micro- Banking Clients
As of March 31, 2025, the Bank had opened more than 25 lakh
basic savings bank deposit accounts (BSBDA), aimed at offering
appropriate savings and financial products fo microfinance
borrowers while encouraging a habit of saving.

To further promote financial security among its customers, the
Bank offers the Atal Pension Yojana (APY) to savings account
holders aged 18 to 40 years. Acting as both a point of presence
and aggregator, the Bank enrols subscribers under the National
Pension System framework, supportinglong-term savings.

The Bank also provides Hospicash, a health insurance product
that covers hospitalization expenses and also compensates for
wage loss incurred by micro-banking customers during
hospitalization, thereby offering both financial protection and
income continuity.




Other Retail and Wholesale Lending Book

The Bank has consistently focused on building a well-diversified retail loan portfolio, catering to the varied financial needs of its
customers. Over time, it has developed a comprehensive suite of retail loan offerings, including MSME (retail assets), housing loans,
commercial vehicle (CV) & construction equipment (CE) loans, among others. The bank’s core geographies—Bihar, Uttar Pradesh,
and other states—continue to offer substantial growth opportunities for these products as well.

Other Retail Assets Lending Vertical

MSME (Retail Assets) Housing Loans CV/CE Loans
Portfolio (in crore) Portfolio (in crore) Portfolio (in crore)
e o5¥
&

O
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Mar'24

MSME (Retail Assets) loans

The Bank offers a range of lending products fo MSMEs, including secured and unsecured business loans, Micro LAP, and overdraft
facilities. During FY 2024-25, the Bank expanded its MSME loan footprint fo 86 branches, driving a robust 52% year-on-year growthin
its MSME loan book-from %2,556.99 crore in FY 2023-24 to %3,874.53 crore in FY 2024-25. This significant growth was fuelled by the
bank’s deepening presence in underserved markets and its focus on financialinclusion. The MSME portfolio remains predominantly
secured, with over 95% of loans backed by collateral, and the average ticket size ranging between H25lakh and H35 lakh.

Housingloans

The housing finance segment remains a key driver of economic growth in India. Utkarsh SFBL continues to strengthenits presence in
this space by offering affordable housing loans to both salaried and self-employed individuals across formal, informal, and semi-
formalincome groups. As of March 31, 2025, the Bank provides housing loans through 63 branches.

During FY 2024-25, the housing loan portfolio grew by 36%, increasing from %676.59 crore to ¥918.29 crore. This growth can be
attributed fo the Bank’s consistent focus on building the housing loan book, expanding network and a relatively small base of the
Bank’shousingloan portfolio.

Commercial Vehicle (CV) and Construction Equipment (CE) Loans

Commercial vehicle (CV) & construction equipment (CE) loans continue to be among the key retail lending products for banks and
NBFCs across India. Utkarsh SFBL provides financing for both new and used commercial vehicles as well as construction equipment,
with used vehicle loans accounting for less than 10% of the fotal CV & CEloan book as of March 31, 2025.

The Bank primarily serves small fleet operators, focusing on core geographies such as Bihar, Jharkhand, and Uttar Pradesh- regions
that remain relatively underserved but offer strong growth potential. Moreover, markets like Chandigarh, DelhiNCR, Rajasthan, and
West Bengal are emerging as attractive opportunities for expansion.

With CV & CE loans currently being disbursed through 47 branches, the Bank’s loan portfolio in this segment grew significantly from
3944.44 crorein FY 2023-24103%1,188.13 crore in FY 2024-25.

Business Correspondent(BC)

Utkarsh SFBL infroduced the business correspondent (BC) modelin FY 2017-18 fo expand its reach into unfapped geographies and
diversify its loan portfolio. Under this model, BC partners operate as an extended arm of the bank—acquiring, managing, and
servicing customers while adhering to the bank’sinternal governance policies and procedures.

The Bank leverages BC partnerships across multiple products, including Joint Liability Group (JLG) loans, small business loans,
personal loans. As of March 31, 2025, BC partners collectively manage a loan book of ¥1,093.69 crore, attributing to 5.56% of Gross
Loan Portfolio.




Wholesale Lending (WSL)

Utkarsh SFBL's wholesale loan (WSL) portfolio grew by 19% in FY 2024-25, rising from 1,882.41 crore as of March 31, 2024, t0 32,239.73
crore by March 31, 2025. Despite this growth, the WSL portfolio's share in the bank’s total loan book grew slightly from 10.3% to 11.4%,
inline with the bank’s strategic intent to maintain the WSL share at similarlevels going forward.

The wholesale loan portfolio comprises lending to financialinstitutions (WSL FI) and Business Banking Group (BBG) loans extended to
small corporates.

AmountinX Cr

Break up Of.WhOIesale (CIgyIyZal  Mar-2025 Rating Wise WSL FI Porifolio Break up
Loan Portfolio
Below BBB Category o
WSL Fl Lending 31,337 31,287 2% AA Category

10%

Business Banking Group (BBG) %903 3596 BBB Category
Total WSL Portfolio 2,240 %1,882 2

WSLFI Lending

Utkarsh SFBL commenced its wholesale lending to financial
institutions (WSL FI) in FY 2017-18, aiming fo diversify ifs loan
portfolio and extend its geographic reach by leveraging its
strong expertise in retail lending. Under this segment, the Bank
offersloan facilities to non-banking financial companies (NBFCs),
housing finance companies (HFCs), NBFC-MFIs, and other
entities engaged in financial services, primarily to support their
on-lendingrequirements.

A Category
64%

As of March 31, 2025, 74% of the WSL Fl loan book comprises loans extended to entities rated ‘A-' category or higher by external
credit rating agencies, 24% is allocated fo entities rated in the ‘BBB’ category, while the remaining 2% is allocated fo entities rated in
the below ‘BBB’ category.

Business Banking Group (BBG) Lending

Utkarsh SFBL extends both short-term and long-term loan facilities to small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and other entities
engaged in manufacturing, services, or trading activities. These loans are designed to support working capital needs and business
expansion plans. In addition to fund-based lending, the Bank also offers non-fund-based products such as bank guarantees under
itswholesale lending portfolio.

The loans typically range from H1 crore to H10 crore and are primarily secured by immovable property as collateral.

Business Strengths & Strategies

Strong microfinance expertise and rural reach:

Utkarsh SFBL draws on the legacy and deep experience of its promoter company, UCL, to address the financial needs of unbanked
and underbanked communities. Serving the underserved is a core element of the bank’s vision. With a strong foundation in
microfinance and an extensive presence in rural and semi-urban areas, Utkarsh SFBL is well-positioned to tap info growth
opportunitiesin regions that remain relatively underpenetrated.

Expanding and diversifying the retail asset portfolio:

Utkarsh SFBL remains focused on diversifying its retail asset portfolio fo better serve the evolving financial needs of customers,
particularly from unserved and underserved segments. The Bank aims fo offer a comprehensive suite of retail loan products to
address varying customer requirements across segments.

Driven by healthy growth in other retailloan categories, the share of micro banking loans in the bank’s gross loan portfolio declined
from 62% in March 2024 to 49% in March 2025. This trend of decline in share of micro-banking portfolio is expected to continue over
shortto medium term.

Strengthening deposit base through retail-centric growth:

Utkarsh SFBL offers a comprehensive suite of demand and fime deposit products, including savings accounts, recurring deposits,
and fixed deposits—designed to meet the needs of a diverse retail customer base at competitive interest rates. The Bank continues
to prioritize deposit granularity, with a strong emphasis on growing its current account and savings account (CASA) base, along
with retail term deposits.

As of March 31, 2025, the bank’s CASA and retail term deposit portfolio stood at H15,334.16 crore, accounting for 71.10% of total
deposits, increasing from H11,550.72 crore (66.11% of total deposits) as of March 31, 2024. This consistent growth reflects Utkarsh
SFBL's strategic focus on building a stable, retail-led deposit base.




Broadening distribution network with significant cross-selling opportunities; Leverage Bank’s extensive franchise and presence
further:

As of March 31, 2025, the Bank operates an extensive physical network of 1,092 banking outlets, 708 are located in rural and semi-
urban areas, aligning with Utkarsh SFBL's core vision of financialinclusion. The Bank has opened more than 260 branches during last
two financial years FY24 & FY25, providing services to a diversified clientele. Furthermore, our franchise and large customer base, in
addition to the implementation of Lead Management System (LeMS), offers significant cross-sell opportunities.

Prioritizing risk management and operational efficiency:

Risk management is a central focus of the bank’s operations. Utkarsh SFBL has implemented a robust and comprehensive credit
assessment and risk management framework designed to identify, monitor, and manage risks across various areas, including
credit, market, liquidity, IT, and operationalrisks.

The Bank employs a range of risk parameters, including real- time monitoring of regulatory changes and market trends both
nationally and internationally. It frames policies, guidelines, and products in line with industry best practices, defines acceptable
portfolio risk limits for each product, and utilizes an early warning system to track sector performance and establish boundaries for
fund allocation to specific industries.

The bank’s effective credit risk management is evidenced by its strong portfolio quality indicators. Moreover, the bank maintained
ahealthy provision coverage ratio (PCR) of 51.18% as on March 31,2025.

The bank’s success in managing these risks can be aftributed to its efficient management feam, composed of highly qualified and
experienced professionals. Their deep industry knowledge enables the bank to navigate challenges effectively, fostering a
resilient and consistent franchise.

Pioneering technological advancements and expanding digital offerings:

The Bank harnesses advanced, cost-effective technology to streamline its operations and improve efficiency. Utkarsh SFBL is
committed to strategically investing in technology to optimize operations, reduce costs, and drive greater efficiency. Moreover,
the Bank encourages customers to transition from assisted services to a self-service delivery model. By confinuing to invest in
cutting-edge technology, Utkarsh SFBL aims fo enhance the customer experience and provide a range of failored financial
products that meet diverse customer needs.

Strategic Business Technology Transformation Project

Digital fransformation has become a key driver in the evolving financial landscape, placing customer-centricity at the forefront. To
manage and implement strategic projects efficiently, the bank has established a transformation management office (TMO) that
serves as a centralized project management office (PMO). This office ensures all initiatives are executed within established timelines,
while confinuously evaluating progress and return on investment.

In collaboration with a leading consulting firm, the bank has also formed an internal team of select professionals to support the TMO.
Utkarsh SFBL's strategy focuses on diversifying and expanding its retail asset portfolio and liabilities business, while redefining customer
journeys and optimizing operational efficiency. As part of this transformation, the bank is driving automation through the
implementation of modern loan origination systems and enhancing the digital onboarding process with the support of an internal
development feam.

The bankis embracing cloud computing to build a robust and scalable IT infrastructure. Key applications are also being upgraded or
replaced to meet the latest technological standards, ensuring a future-ready and efficient operational framework.

Commitment to Financial Inclusion and Focus on Priority Sector Lending

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) mandates that small finance banks (SFBs) allocate 75% of their loan portfolio fo priority sector lending
(PSL), compared to 40% for universal banks. On account of higher proportion of PSL as compared to the requirement of the RBI, the
Bank has been able to sell the surplus PSL portfolio through Priority Sector Lending Certificate (PSLCs) fo earn non- interestincome for
the Bank..

As of FY 2024-25, after accounting for the sale of PSLCs and IBPC, the bank’s PSL achievement (based on quarterly averages) stood at
84.79%, significantly exceeding the RBI's minimum requirement of 75%. This surplus PSL portfolio allowed the bank to earn non- interest
income from PSLCs, with PSLC income totallingZ115.17 crore in FY 2024-25.

Moreover, Utkarsh SFBL continues to comply with RBI norms for SFBs, ensuring thatloans with a ficket size of up to H25 lakh constitute no
less than 50% of its total loan portfolio. The Bank's lending fo the ficket size of less than %25 lakh was at 65.1% of the gross loan portfolio
ason March 31, 2025.




Asset Quality

Bank’s Gross NPA Increased from 2.51% during FY 2023-24 to 9.43% as on March 31, 2025. Bank’s Net NPA Increased from 0.03% in FY
2023-24 to 4.84% as on March 31, 2025. The Bank has strengthened collections team by adding more manpower as well as separate
team for bucket wise and vertical wise collections. The Bank has also implemented EBIX collection application for better tfracking of
our collection efforts. These have strengthened Bank’s collection efforts and are likely to support asset quality & collection efficiency.

The Bank was carrying floating asset provision of 189.96 Crore. During the year pursuant to the approval from Reserve Bank of India
(RBI), the Bank has fully utilized the floating asset provision as per relevant RBI regulations. Consequently, the provision for NPA

(“Provisions and Contingencies”) has been adjusted by 2189.96 Crore for the year ended March 31, 2025. On an overall basis, the
Bank had provision coverage ratio of 51.18% as of March 31, 2025, against 98.92% for FY 2023-24.

Provision Coverage Ratio

98.9%
88.3%

Mar'23
Mar'24




Financial performance
The Bank recorded a steady financial performance in FY 2024-25, with growth in business volumes and profitability. It reported an
annual operating profit (pre-provision) of 21,007 crore and a profit after tax (PAT) of ¥23.70 crore for the year.

Amount in% Cr

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

OPERATIONS

Banking Outlets 1092 888
Gross Loan Portfolio (X in crore) 19,666 18,299
Secured Advances as % of Gross Loan Portfolio 43.43% 34.35%
Total Deposits (% in crore) 21,566 17,473
CASA Ratio (%) 21.79% 20.50%
CASA + Retail Term Deposits (as % of Total Deposits) (%) 71.10% 66.11%
CAPITAL

Capital + Reserves (i.e. Net Worth) (R in crore) 2,975 2,973
Total Capital Ratio (CRAR) (%)* 20.93% 22.57%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%)* 17.88% 20.95%
Cost of Deposits (%) 8.16% 7.72%
Cost of Funds (%) 8.21% 7.80%
ASSET QUALITY

Gross NPA (%) 9.43% 2.51%
SMA 1 % 2.26% 0.97%
SMA 2 % 1.77% 0.96%
Provision Coverage Ratio (excl. Technical Write-offs) (%) 51.18% 98.92%
Standard Restructured Advances (%) 0.03% 0.06%
Net NPA (%) 4.84% 0.03%
PROFITABILITY

Net Profit (X in crore) 24 498
Yield on Advances (%) (basis Gross Loan Portfolio) 17.85% 19.01%
Net Interest Margin (%) 7.98% 9.44%
Credit Cost Ratio (%) 5.16% 2.20%
Operating Expenses to Total Average Assets (%) 6.26% 6.34%
Cost to Income Ratio (%) 61.61% 56.38%
Return on Total Average Assets (%) 0.09% 2.45%
Return on Average Equity (%) 0.79% 19.54%
OTHERS

Basic EPS 0.22 4.79

Net Asset Value per Equity Share 27 27.04




Income & Expenses

® The Net interestincome (NII) of the bank grew by 7.27% from %1,885.80 crore in FY 2023-24 t0 32,022.86 crore in FY 2024-25. The
growth in NIl in FY 2024-25 was supported by healthy growth in non-microfinance business during FY 2024-25. Bank's NIMs
declined from 9.44% in FY 2023-24 to 7.98% in FY 2024-25 on account of subdued interest rate environment and declining share
of high yielding micro- banking loan portfolio.

e The other income of the bank withessed a growth of 49.8% from 3400.40 crore in FY 2023-24 o 3¥599.83 crore in FY 2024-25
supported by growth in income from sale of PSLCs, higher income from cross-selling of third-party products, fee-based &
transactionincome and recovery from written-off accounts.

* The operating expenses of the bank increased by 25.36% during FY 2024-25 primarily on account of significant expansion in
franchise (>260 new branches during 25.36% during FY 2024-25 primarily on account of significant expansion in franchise (>260
new branches during FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25). Cost-to-income ratio of the bankincreased to 61.61%in FY 2024-25

e During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Bank has changed its accounting policy with effect from April 01, 2024 on
recognition of loan processing fees collected from the borrowers and allied expenses for more appropriate presentation of
the financial statement and alignment with industry practices. Hitherto the Bank was recognising the income or expense over
the tenure of the loan which is now recognised asincome or expense when it becomes due.

® Pre-provisioning operating profit (PPoP) of the bank grew by 0.97% year-on-year to ¥1,006.93 crore in FY 2024-25 as compared
10%997.27 crorein FY 2023-24.

e Overdallcredit costwas 5.2% for FY 2024-25.

Profit after Tax & Dividend

e Bank’s profit after tax decreased by 95% in FY 2024-25 to H23.7 crore in FY 2024-25 vs. %498 crore in FY 2023-24. Decline in PAT was
mainly due fo increase in credit cost resulting from industrywide stress in the asset quality of microfinance portfolio. The return
on average assets (ROAA) was at 0.09% during FY 2024-25 and return on equity was 0.79%in FY 2024-25.

Credit-Deposits Ratio
e Bank’s credit-deposits (CD) ratio declined from 93.7% as on Mar-24 to 86.8 % as on Mar-25 and the bank targets to reduce CD
ratio further.

NPA

e The bank’s gross NPAs increased from 2.51% as on March 31, 2024 o 9.43% as of March 31, 2025. The net NPAs increased from
0.03% as of March 31, 2024 to 4.84% as of March 31, 2025. The bank is holding provisional coverage of 51.18% as of March 31,
2025.

CRAR
* TheBank's capital plusreserves remained stable, from 2,973 crore as on March 31, 2024 t032,975 crore as on March 31, 2025.

e The bank’s capital fo risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) stood at 20.93% as on March 31, 2025 compared o 22.57% as on March
31,2024. Further, the Tier-l CRAR of the Bank stood at 17.88% as of March 31, 2025, compared to 20.95% as of March 31, 2024.

Particulars 2023-24 Creditrafings . . . . .
The Bank's certificate of deposits programme is rated, at the highest credit
CRAR 20.93% 22.57% rating grade, [ICRA] A1+ by ICRA Limited. As on March 31, 2025, the Bank’s
’ i long-term subordinated bonds were rated at A+ (Stable) rating by ICRA and
TIER-I 17.88% 20.95% CARE Ratings.
TIER-II 3.05% 1.62%
Rating Agency Facilities Credit rating
ICRA Limited Certificate of Deposit [ICRAJAT+
Subordinated Debt Programme [ICRA]A+(Stable)*
CARE Ratings Long Term Tire Il Bonds CARE A+(Stable)**

*On May 22, 2025, rating reaffirmed, and outlook revised fo Negative from Stable.

**0On June 12, 2025, rating reaffirmed, and outlook revised to Negative from Stable.




OUTLOOK

The reported year witnessed an increase in secured lending while there was a de-growth in JLG Segment. The Bank has reported
annual operating profit (pre-provisions) of H1,007 crore in FY25. The Bank's deposits registered healthy business growth of 23.4%
and reached H21,566 crore backed by increased branch penetration in urban and metropolitan areas. The bank opened 204
branches during the year including 55 GB branches which are poised o augment deposit accumulation capability of the bank.
The Bank also withessed improvement in secured lending portfolio which have increased to 43% of gross loan portfolio from 34% in
FY24 and in the process providing more stability to the bank. Our high yield JLG portfolio underperformed during the year which
we are expecting to improve going forward considering our good experience in Microfinance sector and other technological
and human inferventions. The Bank believes that there are significant growth opportunities available in the core operational
geographies, owing to robust growth potential and relatively low financial penetrationin FY26.

Utkarsh SFBL strives to be a retail-focused Bank, providing financial services to mass markets. The Bank intends fo develop and offer
a comprehensive suite of assefs and liabilities products that will acquire new customers and strengthen the relationship with
existing customers. Utkarsh SFBL will continue to augment the liabilities franchise further by expanding franchise, deepening
relationship and targeting the fop 100 districts of the country in terms of overall deposits, including tapping of metropolitan and
urban areas by promoting savings accounts and other deposit products.

Material Orders passed by the Regulators
There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators, Court, Tribunal or any other legal institution during FY 24-25,
that canimpact the growth of the organisation.

Internal Ombudsman (10)

The Internal Ombudsman Scheme is infroduced with the objective of enabling and ensuring a proper and speedy resolution of
complaints of Bank customers at the Bank level by an independent apex level authority within the Bank. Internal Ombudsman
deals only with the complaints that have already been examined by the Bank's internal grievance redressal mechanism and have
remained partly orwholly un-redressed.

Further, the Internal Ombudsman also analyses the pattern of complaints such as product/category wise, consumer groups wise,
based on geographical location etc. and suggests means for taking actions to address the root cause of complaints of different
nature. The Internal Ombudsman holds meetings with concerned functionaries/department of the Bank and seeks records/
documents available with the Bank that are necessary for examining the complaint. Furthermore, in its endeavor fo achieve fair,
fransparent, and customer-centric grievances redressal system, the Bank has synchronized its Internal Ombudsman mechanism
with the Customer Relationship Management System.

In the backdrop of above, the presence of Internal Ombudsman at the apex level of Grievance Redressal Mechanism of the Bank
is helping to enhance the impartiality of the mechanism, as the grievance resolution have an independent viewpoint as a
precursor to Banking Ombudsman.

Grievances closed by 10 in FY 2024-25:

No. of grievance No. of cases rejected No. of cases No. of grievances No. of grievances
received by the bank by Bank partly/fully reviewed by 10 closed by 10 outstanding as on
during 2024-25 during 2024-25 during 2024-25 during 2024-25 March 31, 2025
5,799 399 399 399 0

Disposal of grievances by Bank during FY 2023-24:

No. of grievances at the No. of grievances received No. of grievances disposed  No. of grievances outstanding
Beginning of 2024-25 by the Bank during 2024-25 of by the Bank in 2024-25 as on March 31, 2025
72 5,799 5,761 110

Creditfunction
The Credit Department has different verticals such as Retail Lending, Wholesale Credit, Micro Business Individual Loans, Credit
Administration (CAD) & Credit Support.

The credit department’s major objectives are as follows:
Largely responsible for development of Credit and Risk management strategies forloans acquisition ensuring sustainable business
growth & healthy portfolio for Retail lending and Wholesale lending products.

¢ Leverage on Technological tools for various credit appraisal and financial analysis. process. Leverage on Score card based
underwriting model for Retail Lending products.

¢ Prudent monitoring framework on Portfolio behavior and asset quality.

¢ Adoption of a forward-looking and market responsive approach within the framework of policy guidelines for moving into
profitable new areas of lending which are emerging in the market.

e Fulfiling responsible lending objectives.




The Credit function largely performs the following to achieve the defined objectives
e Ensuring credit expansion fo productive sectors with an emphasis on asset quality.

¢ Utilizing the sanctioning powers judiciously by following the credit norms, risk management considerations and due diligence
while appraising Wholesale & Retailloans.

¢ Ensuring prudent credit risk management practices and high standards of due diligence to protect and improve asset quality
at both transaction and portfolio levels.

e Leverage on various smart technological fools like “Perfios” tool for financial & banking analysis, “SaveRisk” & *Probe™ fools for
analysis of Companies’ financials and other critical parameters history, “Hunter & Sherlock™ tools for borrowers’ adverse history
enabling prudent due diligence, key lending decisions and optimization.

¢ LOS systems for loan applications processing and leverage on Rule Engine for adherence of various product guidelines,
automation of various processes, monitoring of early warning signals etc.

¢ Lending for the sustenance of profitability, implying the need to nurture superior credit appraisal skills through specialization
and competence building.

e Ensuring KYC norms are strictly followed, and the borrowers are carefully selected after proper pre-sanction scrutiny and
thereafter monitoring the account constantly to maintain asset quality.

e Post disbursement Portfolio & covenant monitoring on wholesale lending products with periodic reviews and monitoring visits
to Companies.

Collection Mechanism

The Bank presently has anin-house team for collections.
The team comprises Head Collections and Zonal and
Regional teams to monitor over 150 feet on street (FOS)
and control delinquencies. The field teams are well
trained in the Bank's policies and code of conduct. The
Bank also utilises an outsourced call centre for pre-EMI
calling and reminding customers in case of over-dues
for businesses other than the JLG lending business. The
Bank also has anin-house legal team for the recovery of
dues. There is a well laid down process and policy for
the entire collections cycle: from tele-calling, customer
servicing, legal notices, repossession, to auction of
assets.

The Bank has established a robust and structured in- -
house collections framework to effectively manage

and control delinquencies across ifs lending portfolio. The collections team is led by the Head of Collections, supported by Zonal
and Regional Collection Managers, who oversee and coordinate the activities of over 150 Field Officers (Feet on Street - FOS)
deployed across various geographies.

These field teams are thoroughly trained in the Bank's internal policies, operational procedures, and the Code of Conduct,
ensuring that all customerinteractions are handled professionally and ethically.

In addition to the in-house field force, the Bank leverages an outsourced call center fo manage pre-EMI (Equated Monthly
Installment) calling and to issue reminders for overdue payments. This outsourced support is utilized for alllending segments except
the Joint Liability Group (JLG) lending business, whichis managed separately.

To support legal recovery efforts, the Bank also maintains a dedicated in-house legal team. This feam is responsible for initiating
and managing legal proceedings related to overdue accounts, including the issuance of legal notices and coordination of
repossession and auction activities.

The Bank follows a well-defined and comprehensive collections policy, which governs the entire lifecycle of the collections process.
Thisincludes:

¢ Tele-calling and customerengagement

e Field visitsand follow-ups

* Issuance oflegalnotices

e Repossession of secured assets

e Auctionanddisposal of repossessed assets

This structured approach ensures consistency, compliance, and efficiency in managing delinquencies while maintaining a
customer-centric and legally sound recovery process




Treasury

The bank conducts its treasury operations from its dedicated office in Mumbai, operating under a structure that ensures
independence among the dealing desk, settlement and operations team, and risk function. This separation promotes strong
internal controls and enhances operational efficiency.

The treasury plays a vital role in managing the bank’s liquidity and financial stability. It oversees asset and liability management
(ALM) and maintains the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR), ensuring that the bank consistently meets its payment obligations and
supports asset growth by participating in money and securities markets.

The functionis governed by a board-approved comprehensive investment policy, along with otherinternalmanagement policies.
These guidelines help optimise investment portfolio yields while managing the overall cost of funds through a strategic mix of
deposits. The treasury also ensures strict compliance with regulatory requirements, including those related to the cash reserve ratio
(CRR) and statutory liquidity ratio (SLR).

To mitigate operational risks, the treasury has implemented a robust business continuity plan (BCP), which includes periodically
conducting operations from alternate sites fo ensure uninterrupted functionality.

Risk Management

Risk management forms a critical pillar of the bank’s strategic planning process, fostering informed, collaborative, and unbiased
decision-making. The bank’s ability to effectively manage diverse categories of risks—while complying with current regulations
and proactively preparing foremerging ones—positionsit as a resilient and future-ready financial institution.

The bank follows a structured and infegrated risk management approach encompassing credit risk, market and liquidity risk,
operational risk, IT and cyber security risk, and other emerging risk domains. This framework is underpinned by robust systems
involving people, processes, data, and technology fo identify, assess, monitor, and mitigate risks in a timely manner. The bank
ensures that risk management roles are handled by qualified and experienced professionals who receive continuous training to
stay abreast of evolving risks.

The bank’s risk philosophy focuses on safeguarding the interests of depositors, customers, employees, and other stakeholders while
maintaining the integrity and reputation of the institution. To cultivate a strong risk-aware culture, the bank conducts regular
training through mandatory induction programes, refresher courses, and weekly risk workshops.

Oversight of the risk function is exercised by the risk management committee of the Board (RMCB), which periodically reviews the
overall risk framework and strategic risk exposures. The bank also has dedicated senior management committees, including the
credit risk management committee (CRMC), operational risk management committee (ORMC), asset liability and market risk
committee (ALCO), and the information security committee, to manage specific risk domains. Furthermore, the bank’s internal
capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) ensures comprehensive assessment of significant business risks to maintain capital
adequacy and financial stability.

The bank has appointed a senior official as the chief risk officer (CRO), entrusted with the overall responsibility of managing key risk
verticals, including credit risk, market and liquidity risk, operational risk, information security risk, and other emerging risk areas.
Operating under the framework of board-approved risk management policies, the CRO plays a pivotal role in implementing and
overseeing the bank’s risk strategy. The CRO maintains regular engagement with the risk management committee of the Board
(RMCB), providing fimely updates and insights on risk- related developments, challenges, and mitigation strategies.

Risk Impact Mitigants

The credit risk management committee (CRMC) is responsible for
overseeing and reviewing credif risk within the bank. The committee ensures
the monitoring of prudential limits on large credit exposures, portfolio

The bank defines credit risk as concentration, loan review mechanisms, and overall risk concentration.
the potential for loss arising Furthermore, it addresses provisioning, regulatory compliance, and other
from a borrower or credit-related matters.

counterparty’s failure to meet The bank has implemented various credit risk policies to limit the exposure to
their obligations as per the credit risk. Portfolio review and monitoring are carried out through an early
agreed terms. warning framework and close monitoring of high-value customers.

This type of risk can negatively The CRMC follows the following approach:

impact the bank'’s revenue e Adhering fo RBI's guidelines and policies regarding credit risk and NPA
and margins, posing a management
significant challenge to

financial stability.

Credit Risk

e Establishing a governance framework to ensure effective oversight,
proper segregation of duties, and management of credit risk

e Setfting and monitoring credit risk appetite and limits, and taking
appropriate actionin case of breaches

* Creating a system for identifying and monitoring early warning signals
andred flag accounts




Impact Mitigants

1ok

Market Risk

@fi
Operational
risk

LN

Fraud Risk

Risks stemming from
fluctuations in market prices
could affect the bank’s ability
to generate revenue.

Inefficiencies or failures in
internal processes, systems, or
human resources can
negatively affect the
profitability of the business.

Fraud risks include cyber
threats, scams, processing
errors, and document
mishandling, all of which can
impact the bank’s reputation
and revenue generation
capabilities.

* Enhancing the use of strucfured infernal and external data fo make
informed decisions and utilizing scorecards for decision-making

o Conductingstress testing and tfaking necessary actions based on results

« Monitoring global and domestic developments, analysing industry
frends, and issuing necessary guidelines and directions

The investment committee and the asset-liability management committee
of the bank oversee investment and market risk, approving the framework
and its associated thresholds. The mid- office prepares and analyses daily
reports on the bank’s treasury activities, closely monitoring various limits,
including stop losses. A comprehensive market and liquidity risk dashboard is
shared with senior management monthly, providing detailed insights info
the investment portfolio, liquidity position, deposits, and borrowings,
supporting well-informed decision-making.

Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC), responsible for the
implementation of the Operational Risk framework of the Bank. All the new
products and processes, as well as changes in existing products and
processes are subjected fo risk evaluation by the Operational Risk team,
through the PPMC process. Outsourcing arrangements are examined and
approved by the Bank's Outsourcing Committee after a thorough review by
the Third-Party Risk Management team.

The Bank has set up a comprehensive structure for documenting, assessing,
and periodic monitoring of various risks and controls linked to various
processes across all businesses.

The Bank has a comprehensive operational risk management policy, with a
framework to identify, assess and monitor risks and strengthen controls to
improve customer service and minimise operationallosses.

The Bank has well established Business Continuity Plan (BCP) framework
which has been put in place to ensure confinuity of service to its large
customer base. The effectiveness of the approved Business Continuity Plan
(BCP) framework is tested for all identified critical units to ensure readiness to
meet various contingency scenarios and take corrective actions wherever
any issues are observed. The Bank has been effectively managing its
operations by adapting to the checks and controls of various continuity
plans.

To mitigate this risk, the Bank has put together a Fraud Risk Management
(FRM) department as an independent group in the Bank to enable fraud
prevention, monitoring, investigation, reporting and awareness creation.

Fraud Risk Management Unit (FRM): The Fraud Risk Management (FRM) unit
works within the overall risk management framework of the Bank. The
responsibilities of the FRM Unif include effective application of fraud control
measures, strategies and procedures. It is responsible for handling fraud
complaints, desktop investigation, Fraud case mgmt., internal and
regulatory reporting.

Risk Containment Unit (RCU): RCU conducts risk-based evaluation of
applications i.e. Screening & Sampling for any new account relationship in
both Asset (Pre-sanction) as well as Liability (Post A/c Opening) Businesses at
the time of on-boarding, on a sample basis. RCU Screening & Sampling (S&S)
involves review / scrutiny of applications/documents based on dynamic
trigger observed as well as inputs received from online checks such as CUG
checki.e. Hunter/Sherlock checks. The objective behind RCU S&S Is to ensure
that the submitted KYC documents are reviewed to ascertain any
inconsistency or discrepancy in the documents or information submitted to
the bank, for taking timely preventive and corrective actions fo defect and
prevent fraudulent applications at on-boarding stage.

Transaction Monitoring (TM): TM team monitors digital debit transactions
carried out through various channels and payment modes, to safeguard our
customers from any abnormal/ suspicious/fraudulent transactions.
Transactions are monitored via near real time & real tfime account alerts
generated by volumes and/or velocity based preventive rules built in IFRM
and EFRM Transaction Monitoring Tool/Solutions
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IT Risk

Liquidity Risk

Cyber Risk

The risks fied to the growing
adoption of technology
encompass systfem and process
unavailability, which can lead
to business losses due to both
uninfentional issues (such as
faulty usage) and intentional
events (such as cyber fraud).

An asset-liability mismatch can
lead to liquidity risk for the
bank, potentially forcing it to
raise new liabilities at a higher
cost or sell assets at a higher
discount rate, which could
negatively impact the bank’s
margins.

The bank’s inferconnected
structure, both internally and
externally via the internet,
along with the complexity of its
people, processes, and
technology—such as delivery
channels, cloud services,
partners, and remote
workers—the bank is
susceptible to cyber threats.
These include risks like man-in-
the-middle (MITM) attacks,
distributed denial of service
(DDoS) attacks, and
ransomware, which could lead
to financial losses, data
breaches, and reputational
damage.

To effectively manage IT risk and safeguard the confidentiality and integrity
of business and customer information, the bank has implemented security
controls in line with the RBI cybersecurity framework. Regular security
monitoring is conducted, and the bank adheres to regulatory guidelines as
they are updated. To ensure business continuity while maintaining security,
the bank has established conftrols such as VPN with multi-factor
authentication, business contfinuity plans (BCP), and incident response
protocols to address both operational and security risks.

The bank’s asset liability management (ALM) policy establishes a framework
for managing liquidity risk, ensuring that the bank can meet its liquidity
obligations and endure periods of liquidity stress, whether caused by infernal
or market-wide factors.

The bank’s liquidity profile is closely monitored both statically and
dynamically, using key liquidity ratios and periodic liquidity stress tests.
Liquidity positions and stress test outcomes are regularly reviewed by the
bank’s ALCO and the risk management committee of the board.

In addition to regulatory limits, the bank has set prudential internal limits on
liquidity gaps, borrowings, deposits, and placements. The bank also adheres
to the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) and net stable funding ratio (NSFR) inline
with RBI guidelines, ensuring alignment with the defined risk appetite.

The bank has established a robust and efficient cybersecurity framework, in
line with RBI guidelines, to enhance its cybersecurity posture. The bank has a
cybersecurity policy, cyber crisis management plan (CCMP), and
information security policies, all approved by the board. A dedicated
governance and management process has been put in place, defining
roles and responsibilities to ensure these policies are implemented,
maintained, assessed, and periodically updated.

In line with regulatory requirements, the bank has set up a cybersecurity
incident response feam (CSIRT) and a cyber crisis management team
(CCMT), as outlined in the CCMP. The security operations centre (SOC)
operates 24/7 to monitor and protect the bank’s assetsin real-time.

The bank has fully complied with the baseline cybersecurity resilience
requirements of the RBl and has implemented a layered defence strategy,
covering perimeter, network, application, data, and physical security. The
bank runs a comprehensive cybersecurity awareness program for
customers, employees, and partners. Cyber risk insurance coverage has
beensecured as afallback for cyberincidents.

The bank is ISO 27001:2013 certified and has been recognized with
consecutive awards from the Indian banks' association (IBA) for its
excellence in cyberriskmanagement over the past two years.
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The bank’s compliance department encompasses regulatory compliance, AML (anti-money laundering) compliance, and legal
compliance. It plays a critical role in ensuring adherence to applicable laws, regulations, and internal policies by facilitating
structured oversight and proactive engagement with regulatory authorities.

The department follows a well-defined process for:

e Circularmanagement process

e Returnsmanagement process

e Policymanagement process

e AML/Transaction monitoring process

o Compliancerisk assessment framework (compliance testing)

e Risk-Based Supervision (RBS) data management

e Legalmanagement

Circular management process

All scheduled commercial banks (SCBs) in India are required to comply with various guidelines issued by the reserve bank of India
(RBI) and other regulatory bodies. The bank has institutionalized a structured circular management process, which includes the

systematic dissemination, tracking, and monitoring of regulatory circulars until their complete implementation across relevant
departments.




Returns management process

In accordance with regulatory requirements, SCBs are mandated to submit periodic returns to the RBI and other authorities. The
bank’s compliance department has implemented a robust refurns management process to ensure timely and accurate
submission of all statutory and regulatory returns, thereby minimizing the risk of non-compliance.

Policy, management process

The compliance department maintains a central repository of all policies approved by the board of directors. To promote
tfransparency and regulatory alignment, all departments are required to seek inputs from the compliance and legal teams when
draffing new policies or reviewing existing ones. The departfment closely monitors the policy lifecycle to ensure timely review and
approval by the Board within the defined timelines.

AML/Transaction monitoring process under PMLA 2002.

The bank’'s AML cell, functioning under the compliance department, is responsible for ensuring adherence to transaction
monitoring guidelines as prescribed under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 (PMLA). It also oversees statutory
reporting fo the financialintelligence unit - India (FIU-IND) to ensure full compliance with applicable AML regulations.

Compliance risk assessment framework

The compliance risk assessment framework enables the bank to identify and assess compliance-related risks across departments,
products, and services. Through periodic compliance testing, the department evaluates the effectiveness of existing controls and
recommends corrective actions to address any identified gaps, thereby strengthening the overall compliance posture of the
bank.

Risk-Based Supervision (RBS) data management.

In addition to the regular and ad hoc submission of statutory returns to the reserve bank of India (RBI) and other regulatory
authorities, the bank undergoes periodic inspections by the RBl under the risk-based supervision (RBS) framework. The compliance
departmentisresponsible for coordinating the submission of data elements required for RBS and acts as the primary interface with
the RBI's onsite inspection teams.

Further, the bank is also regulated and supervised by other authorities such as UIDAI, IRDAI, SEBI, and FIU-IND, depending on the
scope of its operations. The compliance department functions as the single point of contact (SPOC) for these authorities,
representing the bankin allregulatory matters and ensuring prompt response fo information requests and inspections.

Legalmanagement

The Legal Department of Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited is structured to provide comprehensive legal support across all
business verticals, ensuring compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and internal policies. The legal management process
encompasses the following core responsibilities:

1. Legal Advisory Support
Providing legal opinions, clarifications, and approvals fo various infernal departmentsincluding:

e Branches/branch operations tfeam —on matterslike account opening, HUF formation, partnership accountissues, etc.
e Centralprocessing centre (CPC) —on operational and documentation queries.

e Recoveryand collectionsteams—onrecovery and enforcement actions.

e HRdepartment-inrelation fo employee investigations, enquiries, and disciplinary matters.

2. Contract Management

Drafting, vetting, negotiating, and standardizing various legal agreements and documentation, including but not limited to Non-
Disclosure Agreements (NDA), Master Service Agreements (MSA), Software License Agreements (SLA), Referral Associate
Agreements (RFA), Direct Selling Agent (DSA) Agreements, Branding/Co-Branding & Sponsorship Agreements, Manpower,
Housekeeping & HR Confracts, Recovery Agent & Auction Purchaser Agreements, Call Centre & Collection Agreements,
Agreements with Payment Aggregators / Gateways, Merchant Agreements (e.g., Zomato, Flipkart, etc.), All other
vendor/contractor/sub- confractor arrangements




3. Legaladvisory and policy development

e Advisingonloan and security documentation

e Issuing circulars on state-wise stamp duty rates

e Recommending delegation of powers forlegal and operational decisions
® Advising onloss of documents and related procedures

4. Productpapers and policy vetting

Legal review and sign-off on product notes, policies, guidelines, and procedural manuals prepared by business and functional
departments.

5. Vigilance matters

e Legaladvice onvigilance proceedings against employees

o Vetting oflegalrepresentationsmade fo authorities/ courts

e Tracking andsharing of FIRs fled by employees

e Licising withempanelled/local advocates forlegal supportin such cases

e Supportduring internal enquiries initiated by HR or Vigilance

6. Statutory notices and regulatory responses

Responding to legal notices and queries from government and enforcement authorities including:

e Police, Courts, DRTs, Cyber Crime, CBI, ED, GST, EPFO, ESIC, Income Tax, Revenue Authorities, Arbitration Forums, Tehsildars, efc.
e Advisoriesrelated to freeze orders, fitle search reports, property documentation and mortgage loan compliance
e Handling Banking Ombudsman (BO) complaints and customer grievances arising out of service deficiencies

7. litigation and advocate management

e Empanelment/Disempanelment of legal counsel

e Drafting, reviewing, and filing replies to legal notices, RTls, and court proceedings

8. Legal auditand RBI compliance

Conductinglegal auditsin alignment with:

e MasterDirection on Frauds - Classification and Reporting by commercial banks and select Fis (July 01, 2016)

e Master Direction on Fraud Risk Management in Commercial Banks (including Regional Rural Banks) and All India Financial
Institutions (July 15, 2024)

9. Corporate transactions and strategic actions
Legalsupport for all strategic and transactional matters, including:
e Drafting, vetting, and review of documents for reverse merger and corporate restructuring
e Supportinregulatory filings with SEBI, RBI, NSE, BSE, NCLT, ROC
e Draffing and negotiation of Engagement Letters for Valuers, Merchant Bankers, Legal Advisors, Trustees, efc.
e Review of fundraising documentation:
»  GID,KID, DTA, DTD —forissuance of Non- Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
e Vetting of Shareholders Agreements (SHA) and Share Subscription Agreements (SSA) for equity deals
10. Legal audit and RBl compliance
e Advising ontitle perfection and property due diligence
e Supervisinglegalresearch, analysing key judgments and regulatory updates
e [ssuing advisories to prevent non-compliance or avoidable litigation
e Coordinating withinternaldepartments on emerging legal frends impacting the Bank

In addition to the inferaction with the regulators, the compliance department periodically apprises the Bank’s management,
Board of Directors, and Board Committees on the changes in the regulatory environment and the status of compliance thereof in
the Bank. Necessary steps have been initiated fowards cultivating and building a strong compliance culture within the Bank.

Audit and Internal Control Systems

The Bank’s Intfernal Audit function plays a pivotal role in ensuring robust governance, risk management, and control processes.
With a team of skilled professionals, the function provides assurance and advisory services that enhance the organization’s overall
operational efficiency & objective evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, information security controls,
risk management and processes on an ongoing basis to provide assurance that the policies, regulations, and infernal standards
defined formanagement of the various risks are operating effectively.




Akey focus area for the function is leveraging technology to enhance audit efficiency and effectiveness. In thisregard, IT/ IS audits
emerge as a prominent area of emphasis, enabling the function fo assess the organization’s technology infrastructure and
identify potential vulnerabilities. Additionally, system-based offsite audits are being successfully implemented, allowing for more
comprehensive and remote assessments. In congruence with the Reserve Bank of India’s Guidelines on Risk Based Internal Audit
(RBIA), the Bank has adopted a robust Internal Audit Policy and undertakes a comprehensive Risk Based Audit of operating units.

The audif function is strengthening its data analytics capabilities fo conduct data-driven audits and review on a continuous basis,
enabling frend analysis of the issues with agility, utilizihg advanced tools and techniques to analyse large datasets and identify
potential risks. Computer-Assisted Audit Techniques (CAATs) tools are being extensively used to scrutinize financial transactions,
detect anomalies, and provide valuable insights in audit recommendations. Additionally, it performs end-to-end reviews of new
product, processes & systems, ensuring the alignment with Bank's strategic objective & regulatory requirement.

The Intfernal audit practices are guided by the globally recognized standards and best practices outlined by The Institute of
Internal Auditors (IlA). The department adopts the lIA's Quality Assurance and Improvement Program (QAIP) framework fo ensure
the quality and effectiveness of its internal audit activities. This commitment to quality and best practices enables the department
to maintainits high standards and deliver effective support to the organization.

The Head - Internal Audit functionally reports to the Audit Committee Board (ACB), ensuring the Independence, and for
administrative purpose, reports to the Managing Director & CEQ. The Internal Audit Department works under the guidance of
Audit Committee Board (ACB) and the ACB reviews the efficacy of the Internal Audit Department, the effectiveness of controls laid
down by the Bank and compliance with internal and regulatory guidelines, thus ensuring the alignment with the Best Practices on
corporate governance.

Vigilance Mechanism

The Bank’s Vigilance and Security Department  play a multi- dimensional role in the Bank. The department investigates all types of
internal fraud cases such as corruption, cash misappropriation as well as external fraud cases such as cash snatching, theft,
robbery, dacoity, untoward incidents and policy and procedural violation cases including whistle blower complaints.

All investigations are reporfed directly to the Bank’'s HR department for initiating suitable disciplinary actfion once upon
categorizinginto ‘vigilance' or ‘non-vigilance' angle.

The Vigilance department imparts periodical training tfo the bank officials on vigilance awareness, surveillance, safety and
security of the Bank’s assets. The department also does surprise visits to branches to facilitate preventive vigilance.

The Bank’s Vigilance Tele calling team contacts and receive feedback on its vigilance measures. The Bank also works closely with
police department and other related government departments. Furthermore, Utkarsh SFBL issue timely reminders on vigilance
and security awareness. In cases of security issues, the feam files police report and send fo concerned business feams for filing
criminal cases against the guilty.

Information Technology (IT)

In today’s rapidly evolving tfechnological landscape, meeting shifting customer expectations is paramount. Automation and
digitization are key enablers in leveraging fechnology to address the unique needs and preferences of Bank's customers, thereby
driving business growth.

As part of the Bank digital transformation journey, the Bank has launched several initiatives this year to provide seamless access to
the Bank services. These include the intfroduction of new secured credit card products, a personal loan platform, Aadhaar
Enabled Payment Systems (AEPS), and mulfiple automation initiatives within Bank's Micro Banking segment. These efforts aim to
expand the Bank product offerings while embedding robust operational controls into Bank's systems. Additionally, Bank
infroduced WhatsApp Banking fo enhance customer service accessibility.

The Bank have also strengthened Bank's technological capabilities through collaborations with multiple fintech partners to
enhance the Bank liability, asset, and card product portfolios. The Bank Know Your Customer (KYC) process has been fortified with
the infegration of Video KYC (VKYC), biometric verification, and facial authentication. Furthermore, The Bank has upgraded
existing products with features such as cardless cash withdrawals at ATMs, eMandates for NACH, and ASBA functionalities via
Infernet and Mobile Banking. Enhancements to Bank's Digi Onboarding platforms have significantly improved customer
acquisition turnaround times (TAT). The Bank has also enriched various features in Bank's existing business applications to improve
product offerings and customer service, while reinforcing operational controls and efficiency.

In line with Bank's unwavering commitment to innovation, The Bank has re-architected and refreshed Bank's systems to enhance
scalability, reliability, and security. Strategic technology acquisitions and investments in automation tools, analytics, and machine
learning have been made to boost operational efficiency and risk management. Key focus areas include APl banking and
middleware platforms, low-code/no-code development platforms, cloud infrastructure, and extended collaboration through
Office365. Several infrastructure-led initiatives have been implemented to revamp and upgrade platforms, thereby enhancing
business- critical applications to supportincreased business volumes.




The Bank has also completed a comprehensive blueprint for Bank's Business Transformation project, which includes a detailed
review of existing products, operational processes, and Bank's current technology stack. This inifiative is being led by a specialized
team known as the Transformation Management Office (TMO), which oversees the Bank’s tfransformation journey. The project is
currently in the “Implementation” phase, during which various infernal systems, processes, and applications are being
modernized. As part of this effort, the Bank has embarked on a major Core Banking replacement project, transitioning fo the
Infosys Finacle Core Banking platform.

At Utkarsh, the Bank places their Bank's employees at the heart

of everything Bank do. Bank's human resources framework is USFBL's Employee Strength
designed to promote inclusive growth, fransparency, and

equity. With a structured HR setup spanning recruitment,

operations, training, and employee engagement—supported

by a zonal structure—Bank ensure last- mile connectivity. Bank's 16,081
technology-driven HR services, including a mobile-enabled

platform, support real-time access to key functions. As of March 15,424

31, 2025, Bank's workforce grew to 19,779, reflecting Bank's 1,724
ongoing expansion and commitment to creating a 623 1,452
collaborative, diverse, and growth-oriented workplace.
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Learning and development remain central to Bank's people ’ 13,926

strategy. Through programs like Utkarsh Aarambh, Utkarsh
Pragati, Udaan, Saksham, and Manthan, Bank offer employees
opportunities to build functional, leadership, and compliance 13,453

skills. In FY 2024-25, over 28,700 new joiners aftended induction, @
and more than 7,600 existing employees engaged in % g .
developmental programs. Initiatives like the Probationary L% ‘g g
Officer Program, JUMPP 2.0, and 0 2 Q@
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Bank's partnership with IPB and Baddi University ensure Bank g g % § %
cultivate talent aligned with Bank's mission. 5] <] w o o
To foster a culture of continuous learning and engagement, 2 = o0

Bank rolled out initiatives such as 360-degree feedback,

management development programs, and succession

planning for key roles. Bank digitized many aspects of the

employee lifecycle—from hiring fo ID issuance—and onboarded apprentices under government schemes for future-ready talent.
Bank's focus also included virtual training and leadership workshops aimed at improving performance across sales, liabilities, and
assets.

Bank promote employee well-being through structured engagement activities, wellness initiatives, and recognition programs.
From celebrating milestones like Bank's 8th anniversary to awarding long-serving employees and recognising fop performers,
Bank's aim is to motivate and retain talent. Bank's POSH policy, applicable to all employees and stakeholders, reinforces Bank's
zero-tolerance stance against harassment. These initiatives underscore Bank's commitment to building a supportive, safe, and
purpose-driven workplace.

Cautionary Statement

Statementsincluded in this MD&A describing the Bank’s priorities, forecasts, predictions, general market conditions, expectations,
efc., can constitute ‘forward-looking statements’ within the scope of applicable legislation. Such factors and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, the Bank's ability to execute plans for development and expansion, variation between anticipated
and actual non-performing advances, credit loss reserve, fechnological change, investmentincome and various risk profiles.
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To
The Members
Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the 35th Annual Report on the business and operations of Utkarsh
Corelnvest Limited (‘UCL’ or the ‘Company’), together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

The Company has adopted Ind AS since April 01, 2018 and accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”), as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
underthe Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and as amended from fime to time.

The Company has recorded the following audited financial performance (on Standalone basis) for the year ended March 31,
2025:

(Amount in % crore)

Particulars IR LR CLIRL Y-l For the Year ended Change in %
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total Income 43.45 4.52 861%
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (EBITDA) 40.59 2.03 1899%
Finance Charges - - -
Depreciation 0.02 - -
Provision for Income Tax 10.30 0.59 1660%
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 30.27 1.45 1995%
Other Comprehensive Income Actuarial gain / (loss) (0.01) (0.03) (66%)
on defined benefit obligation

Total Comprehensive Income 30.26 1.41 2041%

*Absolute amount for FY2024-25%1,09,418 (33,24,390 for FY2023-24)

Further, the Company has recorded the following audited financial performance (on consolidated basis) for the year ended
March 31, 2025:

(Amount in % crore)

Particulars IR R CEIR-L [Tl For the Year ended Change in %
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total Income 4,155.62 3,383.55 23%
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (EBITDA) 1,294.40 1,845.46 (30%)
Finance Charges 1,714.39 1,298.16 32%
Depreciation 135.48 108.89 24%
Provision for Income Tax (133.17) 108.57 (223%)
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (422.30) 329.84 (228%)
Other Comprehensive Income 2.53 24.28 (20%)
Total Comprehensive Income (419.77) 354.12 (219%)

A.FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

Dividend
Your Directors have not recommended any Dividend for this financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Net Worth

The Company’s Net-worth as on March 31, 2025 stood at ¥855.94 crore comprising of paid-up equity capital of 99.37 crore and
Reserves of X756.57 crore (excluding Revaluation Reserve, Investment Reserve and Intangible Assets) on Standalone basis. Further,
on a Consolidated basis, the Net-worth stood at %1,727.91 crore comprising of paid-up equity capital of 99.37 crore, Reserves of
%1,628.54 crore while excluding the non-controlling interest of ¥780.31 crore.




B. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company'’s Philosophy
The Company has a Corporate Governance framework that lays out various requirements of Corporate Governance as set out
under various regulations and the best practices.

Constitution of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (CA 2013) and
the Articles of Association (‘AoA’) of the Company.

The Board consists of eminent persons with considerable professional expertise in Audit, Banking, Compliance, Finance, Risk,
Strategy, Technology and other related fields. Their experience and professional credentials have helped the Company to gain
insights for strategy formulation, monitoring control framework and direction setting for the Company, thus adding value to set a
strong foundation enabling the overall growth objective of the Company.

The Board of the Company comprised of four (04) Directors consisting of two (02) Independent Directors, one (01) Nominee
Directorandone (01) Managing Director & CEO ason March 31, 2025.

All the Independent Directors have given the declarations that they meet the criteria of independence, as laid down under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the declaration of independence provided by them, all the aforesaid two
(02) Independent Directors would qualify to be classified as Independent Directors under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors on the Board of the Company are included in the Director's Data Bank of MCA. One of the
Independent Directors, Mr. Sundararajan, is not required to pass Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test (OPSAT) in terms of
exemption from OPSAT, while Mr. Atul, Independent Director of the Company has passed the OPSAT on January 26, 2022 for
Independent Director’'s Databank.

Committees of the Board of Directors

For effective decision-making, the Board acts through various Committees, which oversee specific operational or strategic
matters falling within the ambit of the specific terms of reference of those Committees. The Board has constituted six (06)
Committees. Allthe Board Committees have specific charter aligning with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued on October 19, 2023 and these Committees monitor
activities falling within theirrespective terms of reference.

Composition of the Committees and attendance of the Directors af the Committee Meetings and the Board Meetings held during
the financial yearunderreview have been given as Annexure - ‘A’ to thisreport.

Board Evaluation and Remuneration Policy
The Independent Directors of the Company carried out an Annual Performance Evaluation of the entire Board, the Chairperson
and the individual Directors, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees.

The Board has framed a Corporate Governance Policy, which inter alia deals with remuneration structure and criteria for selection
and appointment of Directors.

Management Discussion & Analysis

Management Discussion & Analysis (MDA) is formed part of Annual Report of the company for the year ended March 31, 2025.This
part has been elucidated on the points of the task taken by the management in terms of the relevant Act and Regulations and this
affair of the company along with its banking subsidiary.

C. STATUTORY DISCLOSURE

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The particulars to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to conservation of energy and
technology absorption are not applicable to the Company as the Company is not engaged in these types of activities as per the
Memorandum of Association (MOA) & Articles of Association (AOA) of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Earnings / Outgo
As the Company has not carried out any activities relating to the export and import during the financial year, there are no foreign
exchange expense and foreign exchange income during the financial year under review.




Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism / Anti Bribery)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelinesissued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and
other applicable laws, the Company has established the Vigil Mechanism, as part of its Whistle Blower Policy, for the employees to
report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct. Additionally,
the Company places zero tolerance for any integrity issue. Towards this, all the new as well as the existing employees are frained to
maintain high standards of integrity in their work area. The Company's Whistle Blower Policy thus enables the employees to
escalate, including any perceived integrity issues. The policy also encourages stakeholders, other than the employees to escalate
such concerns.

Inthe FY 2024-25, no case of bribery or whistle blower disclosures or any case of corruption have been reported to the Company.

Risk Management Policy

Pursuant to the circular on ‘Review of Guidelines of Core Investment Company’ as issued by Reserve Bank of India on August 13,
2020, the Risk Management Policy of the Company has been infroduced and adopted post approval of the Board. Further, in terms
of the circular issued by RBI on ‘Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued on October 19, 2023, the Risk Management Policy of the Company has been revised, updated
with the changes and adopted post approval of the Board of the Company.

There isno element of risk, which has been detected so far as a threat to the existence of the Company.

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to Section 13?2 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number
116886W / 066580) was appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of five years (05) from FY 2021-22 upto FY
2025-26.

Issue of Employee Stock Options

As part of the HR Policy for retention of employees in Utkarsh Group, the Company has Board approved ESOP policy. During FY 2024-
25, as per policy, the ESOPs of the Company have also been allotted to, including the employees of the subsidiary — ‘Utkarsh Small
Finance Bank Limited’ (USFBL). The employees of the subsidiary and of the Company were assessed and recommended by the
Board Committees and the Options at the employee level were decided by the respective Boards or as delegated by the Board.

Details of ESOPs offered during the year are as below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number of Average Number of Average

Particulars
LT XTSI ([ I IV E (SN o) ((«-W share options exercise price
(in Units) per share (in ) (in Units) per share (in )
Outstanding options at the beginning of the year 13,09,227 119.40 29,96,867 115.67
Add: Granted during the year 17,500 125 30000 125
Add: Adjustment of previous year (negative impact) 2,43,354 110.61 - -
Less: Lapsed/ forfeited during the year 2,93,875 116.63 10,91,634 115.38
Less: Exercised during the year 6,27,475 116.11 3,23,530 116.37
Less: Adjustment of previous year - - 3,02,476 113.09
Outstanding options at the end of the year 6,48,731 120.68 13,09,227 119.40
Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year 6,13,888 120.44 9,91,210 117.60
Deposits

The Company is a non-deposit taking company i.e., Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Deposit taking - Systemically
Important - Core Investment Company (NBFC-ND-SI-CIC) and thus has not accepted any deposits during the FY 2024-25.




Details of Top Ten (10) employees in terms of Remuneration of the Company
The Company had only seven (07) employees during FY 2024-25, the details of which are asunder:

_# Name Designation DOJ Qualifications  Age Exp. Total Last
Remuneration Employment
®r
1. Mr.Suman Managing Director 30-Sep-23 MBA 43 16 60,00,000 USFBL
Saurabh & CEO PGDRM Years years +
Mr. Harshit Chief Financial 35 12
02-Apr-18 1 4
2. Agrawal Officer pr CA Years years + 8,87,56 USFBL
Mr. Neeraj 34 11
. t -Nov-
3 Kumar Tiwari Company Secretary  10-Nov-14 [N Years = years+ 10,34,556 }
Mr. Raju Assistant Manager, 31 1
4, Pandey Accounts 04-Oct-18 M. Com Years years + 5,85,804 USFBL
Mr. Vikas Assistant Manager, 35 14 CMS IT Services
5 Kumar Singh  HR, IT & Admin 23-Sep-19 MCA Years  years+ 523,716 Pvt. Ltd.
. ARSAN & Co.
Mr. J i - 9 ’
6. proal Assistantmanager -, e 5, - B-Com, 3 393036  Charfered
Kapoor Internal Audit CA Inter Years years +
Accountants
. - Senior Executive- 26
7. Miss Anjali HR & Training 01-Apr-24 MBA years 1 year 3,00,000 -
*Cost To Company

Other Statutory Disclosures:

a. Allrelated party transactions entered into FY 2024-25 were at Arm's Length basis in the ordinary course of business. There were no
materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the inferest of the Company at large;

b. There were no significant / material orders passed by the Regulators / a Court / Tribunal, etc. during FY 2024-25, which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations;

c. There were no adverse observations / qualifications in the Statutory Auditors’ Report;
d. Allrecommendations of the Audit Committee were approved by the Board;
e. Properinternalfinancial controls were in place, and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively;

f.  There were no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, that have occurred
between April 01, 2024 and the end of the Financial Year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2025.

D. OTHER DISCLOSURES

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. Some of the areas which are
covered by the Code of Conduct are fairness of employment practices, protection of infellectual property, integrity, customer
confidentiality and conflict of interest.

Vigilance

Your Company is responsible, both to the members and to the communities in which the Company operates and aspires to be
transparent in all the dealings. The Code of Conduct requires the employees not to be engaged in integrity related issues. The Code
mentions that the Company maintains the highest level of professional ethics and personal infegrity to avoid situations in which an
individual's personalinterest may conflict or appear to be in conflict with the interest of the Company.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and relevant provisions of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. S. N. Ananthasubramanian & Co. [ICSI Unique Code:
P1991MH040400] as the Secretarial Auditor for the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Auditor has carried out the Secretarial Audit, a copy of
whichis enclosed as Annexure 'B' to this Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Your Company has Board approved policy for CSR, which is drawn in line with the existing regulations. The CSR initiatives of the
Company isrouted through CSR Implementing Agency, i.e. Utkarsh Welfare Foundation (UWF).




Your Company has been providing for CSR contribution in line with statutory requirements (currently 2% of average of last 3 years’
profit), every year as part of its CSR initiatives to UWF, for undertaking various welfare activities.

As per the above provision, the obligation towards CSR contribution amounted to 5.00 lakh, towards CSR contribution for FY2024-25.

The CSR Activities are monitored by the CSR Committee of the Board, comprised of the following members:
i. Mr.G.S.Sundararajan, Independent Director, Chairperson
ii. Mr. Atul, Independent Director
ii. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (POSH)

Pursuant to provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH Act,
2013), Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (‘UCL’ or ‘the Company’) upholds working women's fundamental right to equality and dignity af the
workplace and abides by three key obligations as advised under the POSH Act 2013:

1. Prohibition
2. Prevention, and
3. Redressal

Group Company Policy on POSH Act, 2013 is adopted and circulated amongst employees of the Company and is updated on the
website of the company. In view of the small structure (establishment) of the Company, as advised thereby, the establishment having
less than 10 workers, a Local Complaints Committee (LCC) structure which is required to be constituted by the District Officials is
applicable to deal withiin case of complaint(s) received.

WEB LINK FOR ANNUAL RETURN

The Company is having its website i.e. www.utkarshcoreinvest.com; and the Annual Return of the Company has been published on
such website at the web-link:

https://www.utkarshcoreinvest.com/index.php/InvestorRelations/annuals reports

E. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
In pursuance of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors do hereby confirm and declare that:

a. inthe preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the FY 2024-25 and of the

profit orloss of the Company for the FY 2024-25;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

F. Acknowledgment

Your Directors would like fo express their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and assistance received from all the stakeholders
including shareholders, bankers, regulatory bodies and other partners during the year under review.

The Directors of the Company are thankful to the customers for posing their faith in the products and services offered by the Banking
Subsidiary, i.e. Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited and their continued patronage.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the commitment displayed by all the employees of
the Company, resulting in the committed performance of the Company and its subsidiary during the yearunder review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

G. S. Sundararajan Suman Saurabh
Chairperson Managing Director & CEO
DIN- 00361030 DIN- 07132387

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025

Place: Chennai Place: Varanasi




Annexure 'A'’

COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board functions either as a full Board or through various Committees which oversee operational or strategic matters.

The Board has constituted various such Committees of Directors, required including as per the Companies Act, 2013, to monitor the
activities falling within their respective terms of reference. The composition, dates of meetings and names of the members of these

Committees ason March 31, 2025 are given below:

SI. Name of Composition of the Committee No. of Meetings Date of
No. | the Committee held During the FY 24 Meetings

1 Audit Committee of 1.Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director 21 May,2024

the Board (ACB) (Chairperson) 07 Aug, 2024
2.Mr. Atul, Independent Director 4 30 Dec, 2024
3.Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director 04 Mar, 2025

2 Corporate Social 1.Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director 21 May,2024
Responsibility (Chairperson)

Committee 2.Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director 1
(CSRC) 3.Mr. Atul, Independent Director

3 Nomination & 1.Mr. Atul, Independent Director (Chairperson) 21 May,2024
Remuneration 2.Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director 3 19 Sep, 2024
Committee (NRC) 3.Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director 04 Mar, 2025

4 Share Allotment 1.Mr. Atul, Independent Director 04 Mar, 2025
Committee (SAC) 2.Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director

3.Mr. Suman Saurabh, MD & CEO ]

5 Group Risk 1.Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director 07 Aug,2024
Management (Chairperson) 30 Dec,2024
Committee 2.Mr. Atul, Independent Director 04 Mar,2025
(GRMC) 3.Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director 3

4.Mr. Suman Saurabh, MD & CEO

6 Promoter Dilution 1.Mr. G. S. Sundararajan, Independent Director -

Monitoring (Chairperson)

Committee 2.Mr. Atul, Independent Director

(PDMC) 3.Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh, Nominee Director 0
4.Mr. Suman Saurabh, MD & CEO

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors of the Company met five (05) times during FY 2024-25. The maximum gap between any two (02) Board
meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty (120) days at any point of time. The details of the Meetings conducted are
asunder:

M| Members Directorship No. of Dates of
Meetings Meeting
1. Mr. G. S. Sundararajan Chairperson, Independent Director 21 May, 2024
2. Mr. Atul Independent Director 07 Aug, 2024
3. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh Nominee Director 5 20 Sep, 2024
4. Mr. Suman Saurabh Managing Director & CEOQ 30 Dec, 2024
04 Mar, 2025




Attendance of the Board of Directors

The details of the attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and Annual General Meeting held during
FY 2024-25 along with the number of other Directorships and Committee Membership(s) / Chairmanship(s) held by them, is given

below:

SI Name of Director DIN Category

Number of meetings held during the FY2024

1. Mr.G.S. Sundararajan 00361030 Chairperson,
Independent Director

Mr. Atul 07711079 Independent Director
. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh 02848538 Nominee Director

4. Mr. Suman Saurabh 07132387 Nominee Director
ABCD -Board of Directors
ANACB - Audit Committee of Board
ACSRC - Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
ANRC -Nomination & Remuneration Committee
ASAC - Share Allotment Committee
AGRMC - Group Risk Management Committee
APDMC - Promoter Dilution Monitoring Committee

Y

'I.;J'e"f di g™

5 4 1 3 -
5 4 1 3 1
4 3 1 2 1

GR PD No. of
MC MC Directorship

3 0 Public Private

- 5 1
3 - _ -
2 - 1 4
3 - - 1
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FORM No. MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

P e |

To,

The Members,

Utkarsh Coreinvest Limited,

CIN: U65191UP1990PLC 045609

S-24/1-2, 4th Floor, Mahavir Nagar, Orderly Bazar,
New Mahavir Mandir, Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh - 221002

We have conducted Secretarial Audit of compliance with the applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate
practices by Utkarsh Coreinvest Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’) for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books and papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 complied with statutory provisions listed hereunder and also, that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the exfent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books and papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
forthe Financial Yearended 31st March, 2025 according fo the provisions of:

(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder: Not applicable as the securities of
the Company are notlisted on any Stock Exchange;

(il

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iii)
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
(iv) Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: Not applicable fo the extent of Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowing during the period under review;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
v) Act’): Not applicable as the securities of the Company were not listed on any Stock Exchanges during the period under
review;

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
d) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
e) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.




(vi) The management hasidentified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically applicable to the Company:

a) Reserve Bankof India Act, 1934 and guidelines made thereunder;

b) Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, and circulars issued, guidelines
made thereunder;

Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
c) Company (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016 and modifications thereof.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges; Not Applicable as the Securities of the
Company are notlisted on any Stfock Exchange during the period under review.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with provisions of the Act, Rules, applicable Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards etc. mentfioned above.

We further report that:

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, and Independent Directors. There has been no change in the composition of Board of Directors during the period
underreview.

(i) Adeqguate notice is given to all Directors to schedule Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance before the meeting and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

(iii) As recorded in the minutes, all the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried through with requisite
majority.

We further report that based on the representation made by the Company and on the basis of the compliances taken on record
by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the opinion that the management has adequate systems and processes
commensurate with its size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines, and We further report that during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 following major event has occurred which
had abearing onthe Company's affairsin pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, efc.

We further report that during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 following major event has occurred which had a bearing
onthe Company’s affairsin pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, efc.

a) The Members of the Company, at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 29th May, 2024, approved the following:

¢ Amendment of Article 13 and relevant texts of the Articles of Association (AOA) of the Company for the extension of
timeline by three (03) years periodi.e. up to January 22, 2027 towards the allotment of up to 3% (three percent) of the
paid up share capital of the Company on a Fully Diluted Basis as on September 27, 2016 ("Permitted Sponsor
Issuance"), pursuant fo the Second Restated and Amended Shareholders' Agreement dated March 1, 2021, as
amended by the First Amendment fo the Second Restated and Amended Shareholders' Agreement, dated
February 21, 2023, and the Second Amendment to the Second Restated and Amended Shareholders Agreement,
dated April 26, 2024 (collectively "SHA"), each executed by the Company, Mr. Govind Singh, Ms. Revati Govind and
the Trust and other shareholders of the Company.

b) The Members of the Company, at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 29th June, 2024, approved the following:

¢ cancellation of the entitlement of RAAG Family Private Trust ("Trust") to the right o be issued and allotted Equity
Shares/Share Equivalents/other securities aggregating up to 3% (three percent) of the paid up share capital of the
Company on a Fully Diluted Basis as on September 27, 2016 ("Permitted Sponsor Issuance”), pursuant to the Second
Restated and Amended Shareholders' Agreement dated March 1, 2021, as amended by the First Amendment fo the
Second Restated and Amended Shareholders' Agreement, dated February 21, 2023, and the Second Amendment
fo the Second Restated and Amended Shareholders Agreement, dated April 26, 2024 (collectively "SHA"), each
executed by the Company, Mr. Govind Singh, Ms. Revati Govind and the Trust and other shareholders of the
Company.

¢ inconsideration of the waiver/ termination/ cancellation of the right of the Trust in relation to the Permitted Sponsor
Issuance, payment of an amount aggregating to INR 30 Crore to the Trust by the Company, constituting a full and
final settlement for the Trust, for the waiver / termination / cancellation of its right in relation to the Permitted Sponsor
Issuance.




* amendment of the Articles of Association of the Company, reflecting the cancellation of the entitlement of Trust to
the right fo be issued and allotted Equity Shares/Share Equivalents/other securities aggregating up fo 3% (three
percent) of the paid up share capital of the Company on a Fully Diluted Basis as on September 27, 2016.

As informed by the Company, and based on a legal advice obtained, the aforesaid cash settlement was carried out with the
approval of the Board of Directors and the Shareholders, towards the waiver, termination, or cancellation of rights associated with
the Permitted Sponsor Issuance. In our view, there is neither any explicit provision under the Act and/or legal precedents, nor is
there any restriction under the Act which prohibits such cash settlementin lieu of a waiver of such rights.

c) The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 20th September, 2024 has approved the Scheme of the
Amalgamation of Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited ("Transferor Company") with Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited ("Transferee
Company") subject to regulatory approvals, as may be required.

This Reportis o be read with our letter of even date annexed as Annexure — Awhich forms anintegral part of thisreport.

ForS.N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN & Co.
Company Secretaries

ICSI Unique Code: P1991MH040400
Peer Review Cert. No.: 5218/2023

S.N. Viswanathan

Managing Partner

ACS: 61955 | COP No.: 24335
ICSIUDIN: A061955G000469527
28th May, 2025 | Thane
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Annexure-A

To,

The Members,

Utkarsh Coreinvest Limited,

CIN: U65191UP1990PLC 045609

S-24/1-2, 4th Floor, Mahavir Nagar, Orderly bazar,

New Mahavir Mandir, Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh — 221002

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial yearended 31st March, 2025 of even date is fo be read along with thisletter.

Management’s Responsibility:

It is the responsibility of management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and fo ensure that the systems are adequate and operate
effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility:

1. Ourresponsibility is fo express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company
withrespect to secretarial compliances.

2. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

3 We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is adequate and
appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4 Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance whether the statements prepared, documents or Records, in
relation fo Secretarial Audit, maintained by the Company, are free from misstatement.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulatfions and happening of events, etc.

Disclaimer:

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
withwhich the management has conducted affairs of the Company.

7. Wehave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

ForS.N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN & Co.
Company Secretaries

ICSI Unique Code: P1991MH040400
Peer Review Cert. No.: 5218/2023

S.N. Viswanathan

Managing Partner

ACS: 61955 | COP No.:24335
ICSIUDIN: A061955G000469527
28th May, 2025 | Thane
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
(Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Standalone
Other Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
ended, and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
acceptedinIndig, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit and total comprehensive income (including
other comprehensive income), the changesin equity and its cash flows for the yearended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the otherinformation. The otherinformation comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Standalone financial statements and our
auditor'sreport thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements our responsibility is to read the otherinformation and in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in thisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone financial statements

The Company'sBoard of Directorsis responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in Indig, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detfecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial
statements that give a frue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud orerror.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends fo liquidate the Company or fo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
doso.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users tfaken on the basis of these
Standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We have also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than forone
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
infernal control.

Obtain an understanding of intfernal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attentfion in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor'sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements including the disclosures,
and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bearonourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we did not identify any matters that were of such
significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, that they would
be considered key audit matters. Accordingly, no such matters have been described in our auditor's report. Furthermore, there
were no circumstances where disclosure was precluded by law or regulation, or where adverse consequences were expected fo
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter:

We draw attention to the Note No. 35 of Financial Statements- Scheme of Amalgamation (the "Scheme") involving [UCL/Transferor
Company] and [USFBL/Transferee Company], as approved by the respective Boards of Directors on February 13, 2024, and March
14-16, 2024, with the final approval provided by both the Boards on September 20, 2024. The Scheme has been formulated in
compliance with the dilution requirements stipulated under the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for Small
Finance Banks (SFB Guidelines) and the RBI (Acquisition Directions), which require the promoter's equity stake in the Transferee
Company to be reduced to 40% within five years, and further to 26% within 15 years, from the commencement of business
operations.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the equity shareholding of the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company would be reduced to nil
upon the dissolution of the Transferor Company, and no shareholders of the Transferor Company will qualify as promoters of the
Transferee Company. Consequently, this amalgamation is intended to ensure compliance with the above-stated regulatory
requirements.

The RBI vide their NOC dated January 02, 2025 have conveyed their ‘No-Objection’ to the proposal and fo proceed with the
amalgamation in compliance with all applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. Further, the approval from Stock
Exchangesis awaited.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters
specifiedin paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary forthe purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from

b
) our examination of those books.

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
c) Income, Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure B'. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financialreporting.

9) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’'s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: In our opinion and
to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us, the provisions of section 197 read with
schedule V to the companies Act, 2013 in respect of the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during
the year. The remuneration paid is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

h) Withrespect fo the other matters o be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according fo the
explanations given to us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements. Refer Note no.22 fo the standalone financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

il. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required fo be fransferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.(a) The management has represented that, fo the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced
orloaned orinvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

iv.(b)  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person or entities, including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly orindirectly, lend orinvestin
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

iv.(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company hasnot declared or paid dividend during the year.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (STANDALONE)

vi. Based on our examination of the books of account and other relevant records of the Company, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
been operative from 1st April, 2023 for all relevant fransactions recorded in the software.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record

retention.
For DMKH & CO, CA Manish Kankani
Place: Mumbai Chartered Accountants Partner
Date: May 30, 2025 Firm Registration No.: 116886W Membership No.:158020

UDIN: 25158020BMIZKU4703




ANNEXURE “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred toin Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and Books of account and records examined
by us inthe normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: -

i.a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property, plant and equipment.

b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

d) According fo the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable properties held
by the company; hence the said clause is not applicable to the company.

e) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or infangible assets during the year ended March
31,2025.

f) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

i The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (“NBFC"). Accordingly, it does not hold any inventory. Hence the
provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said orderis not applicable to the company.

i a) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, provided guarantee or
provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

b) The investments made by the Company, during the year, are not prejudicial to its interest. During the year the
Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

c) The Company has not granted any loans to its employees during the year, Accordingly, the requirement to report
under clause 3(iii)© of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in nature of loans granted to companies, Firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships, or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

e) There were no amounts of loans and advances in nature of loans granted to companies, Firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which has fallen due during the years, that have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

f) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans, either repayable at demand or without
specifying any ferms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{iii) (f) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

iv. There are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities given in respect of which provisions of Section 185 of the
Companies Act 2013 are applicable. The Company being NBFC, nothing contained in Section 186 is applicable,
except subsection (1) of that section.

V. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to
be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the
extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable fo the
Company.

Vi. The Central Government has not specified the maintfenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the companies
Act, 2013, for the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the
Orderis not applicable to the Company.

vii. ) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and
service tax, provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given fo us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory dues were in outstanding, at the year ending, for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable.

b) The dues of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, cess and other
statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows :

Nature of Amount in Period to which Forum where

Nature of payment the dues (% in Crores) the amount relates | the dispute is pending.
Income Tax Income-tax

Income Tax Act, 1961 Demands 1.04 AY 1819 Appellate Tribunal (ITAT)




viii.

ix. a)

o)

c)

d)

e)

f)

X. Q)

o)

xi. a)

p)

c)

Xii.

Xiii.

xiv. a)

o)

XV.

xvi. a)

o)

c)

d)

XVii.

XViii.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of accounts, in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirements to
report on clause 3(viii) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings due to any lender during the year. Accordingly, the
requirements to report on clause 3(ix) (a) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or government or any
government authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year, hence the requirement to report on clause
3(ix) (c) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix) (d) of the Order
isnot applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, the company has not taken any funds from
any entity or persons on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates.

The Company has noft raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate
companies. Hence the requirement to report on clause 3(ix) (f) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debtinstruments), hence the requirement to report on clause 3(x) (a) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/fully or partially or optionally
convertible debenture during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x) (b) of the
Orderisnot applicable to Company.

No Fraud by the Company orno fraud on the Company has been noticed orreported during the year.

During the year, no report under subsection (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by us in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Government.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower
complaintsreceived during the year by the company.

The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xii) (a), 3(xii) (b) and 3(xii) (c) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

The Company has aninternal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The Internal Audit reports of the company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit, have
been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence requirements to report to clause 3(xv) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company has obtained the requisite registration as a Non-Banking Financial Institution under section 45 — |A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, the
requirement fo report on clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016, and continues to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

There isno Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) (d) of
the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neitherincurred cash losses in the current financial year norin the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report
Clause 3(xviii) of the Orderis not applicable to the company.




XiX.

XX. Q)

o)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which cause us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of this audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as fo the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reportfing is based on the facts up to date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that allliabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by
the Company asand when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts in respect of CSR that are required fo be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to
sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note no. 19 to the financial statements.

In respect of ongoing projects, there are no unspent amountsin respect of CSR, that are required to be transferred to
aspecialaccountin compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been
disclosedin Note no. 19 to the financial statements.

For DMKH & CO, CA Manish Kankani

Place: Mumbai Chartered Accountants Partner
Date: May 30, 2025 Firm Registration No.: 116886W Membership No.:158020

UDIN: 25158020BMIZKU4703




Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India(“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintfenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference fo these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by (“ICAI"). Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of infernal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement including, the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference fo these standalone financial statements is a process
designed fo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company'’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statementsincludes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial Reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference o these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Notfe on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DMKH & CO, CA Manish Kankani
Place: Mumbai Chartered Accountants Partner
Date: May 30, 2025 Firm Registration No.: 116886W Membership No.:158020

UDIN: 25158020BMIZKU4703
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Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Assets
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 1.25 24.96
Bank balance other than above 4 531.85 463.48
Investments in subsidiaries 6 7,899.58 7,898.78
Other financial assets 5 6.86 3.12
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 122.55 124.16
Property, plant and equipment 7 3.11 -
Other non-financial assets 8 0.19 0.19
Total assets 8,565.39 8,514.69
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
- Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises 9 0.57 0.75
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 0.94 2.02
enferprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 10 3.41 2.64
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 11 0.43 0.36
Other non-financial liabilities 12 0.59 4.01
Equity
Equity share capital 13 993.72 987.44
Other equity 14 7,565.73 7,517.47
8,565.39 8514.69
Total liabilities and equity
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notfes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
for DMKH & Co. for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 116886W/066580 CIN: U65191UP1990PLC045609
Manish Kankani Suman Saurabh G.S. Sundararajan*
Partner Managing Director and CEO Chairperson
Membership No: 158020 DIN: 07132387 DIN: 00361030
Neeraj Kumar Tiwari Harshit Agrawal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS: 12101 ACA: 417412
Place: Mumbai Place: Varanasi, Gaya Jee* & Chennai**

Date: 30 May 2025 Date: 30 May 2025




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Otherincome 15 434.54 45.20
45.20

Total income 434.54

Expenses 14.36

Employee benefits expenses 16 15.630 -

Depreciation 17 0.190 10.54

Others expenses 18 13.040

Total expenses 28.86 24.90

Profit/(Loss) before tax 405.68 20.30

Tax Expense:

Current tax 56 102.98 5.85

Profit/(Loss) for the year 302.70 14.45

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
-Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation* (0.11) (0.32)

Total

(0.11) 0.32
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
*Absolute amount for 31 March 2025: INR 109,418, (31 March 2024: INR 3,24,390) 302.59 14.13

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per share of INR 10 each

Diluted earnings per share of INR 10 each 3.06 0.15
3.05 0.15

Summary of material accounting policies 29

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone 29

financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached. 2

for DMKH & Co. for and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. 116886W/066580 CIN: U65191UP1990PLC045609

Manish Kankani Suman Saurabh G.S. Sundararajan*

Partner Managing Director and CEO Chairperson

Membership No: 158020 DIN: 07132387 DIN: 00361030
Neeraj Kumar Tiwari Harshit Agrawal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS: 12101 ACA: 417412

Place: Mumbai Place: Varanasi, Gaya Jee* & Chennai**

Date: 30 May 2025 Date: 30 May 2025




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

Cash flow statement for the year ending 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES

Net Profit/(loss) before Tax 405.68 20.30
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 0.19 -
Dividend income (379.64) -
Interest income (40.59) (34.42)
Sharebased payment adjustment (0.36) (7.96)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation (0.11) (0.32)
Operating (Loss)/profit before Working Capital Changes (14.83) (22.40)

Adjustments for:

(Increase) in bank balance other than above (68.25) (38.85)
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets (3.74) (1.73)
Decrease in other non financial asset 0.00 0.05
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables (1.2¢) 0.03
(Decrease)/Increase in other financial liability 0.77 0.70
(Decrease)/Increase in other non financial liability (3.42) 3.20
Increase/(Decrease) in provision 0.07 (0.55)
Cash Flow before taxation (75.83) (37.16)
Income Tax (paid)/ refund - Net (101.37) (8.23)
Net cash flow from operating activities (192.03) (67.79)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend income 379.64 -
Interest income 40.47 33.51
Purchase of property, plant and equipments (3.30)

Net cash used in Investing Activities 416.81 33.51

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of Equity Shares including Securities premium 51.51 59.19
Payment to shareholder under Shareholder agreement (300.00) -
Net cash flow from Financing Activities (248.49) 59.20
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent Flow (A+B+C) (23.71) 24.92
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalent 3 24.96 0.04
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent 3 1.25 24.96
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.




AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (STANDALONE)

for DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 116886W/066580

Manish Kankani
Partner
Membership No: 158020

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2025

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
CIN: U65191UP1990PLC045609

Suman Saurabh G.S. Sundararajan*
Managing Director and CEO Chairperson

DIN: 07132387 DIN: 00361030

Neeraj Kumar Tiwari Harshit Agrawal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS: 12101 ACA: 417412

Place: Varanasi, Gaya Jee* & Chennai**
Date: 30 May 2025
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Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
Note As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

3 Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
- On current accounts 1.25 24.96

Total 1.25 24.96

4 Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents

In Bank deposits 531.85 463.48

Total 531.85 463.48

5 Other financial assets

Receivable from Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited 577 2.18
Other recoverable 0.02 0.01
Plan asset receivable for leave encashment provision 1.07 0.93
Total 6.86 3.12

6 Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in -
- 759,272,222 (31 March 2024: 759,272,222) Equity shares of 7,899.58 7,898.78
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

7,899.58 7,898.78

Total

Out of Above 7,899.58 7,898.78

In India

QOutside India - -

Subsidiary details Proportion of the ownership interest
Name of the entity and Relationship Principal place of Principal As at As at
business activities 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited-Subsidiary Varanasi Banking Business  68.92% 69.06%




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross value Depreciation Net Value
. As at - . As at As at . As at As at
Particulars 1 April 2024 Additions Disposals 31 March 2025 | 1 April 2024 the year Disposals 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2025
Owned Assets
Vehicles 0.10 - - 0.10 0.10 - - 0.10 -
Computers 2.98 3.30 - 6.28 2.98 0.19 - 3.18 3.11
Total 3.08 3.30 - 6.38 3.08 0.19 - 3.27 3
Gross value Depreciation
As at As at As at For As at As at
Particul Additions Disposals X Disposals
arficulars 1 April 2023 fm Isp 31 March 2024 | 1 April 2023  the year 5P 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2024
Owned Assets
Vehicles 0.10 - - 0.10 0.10 - - 0.10 -
Computers 2.98 - - 2.28 2.98 - - 2.18 0.00
Total 3.08 - - 3.08 3.08 - - 3.08 -




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
Note As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)
Pre-paid expenses 0.19 0.19

8 Other non-financial assets

Total 0.19 0.19

9 Trade payables

Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 21) 0.57 0.75
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 0.94 2.02
Total 1.51 2.77

Trade payables ageing schedule:

As on 31 March 2025

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Particul Total

arficuiars Unbilled | Notdue | Lessthan 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years ota
(1) MSME - 0.57- - - - 0.57
(ii) Others 0.43 0.51 - - - - 0.94

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - R
(iv) Disputed dues -Others - - - - R _
Total 0.43 1.08 - - - - 1.51

As on 31 March 2024

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Particul Total
arficuiars Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years ota

(1) MSME 0.75 - - - - - 0.75
(ii) Others 1.55 - 0.47 - - - 2.02

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - _
(iv) Disputed dues -Others - - - - - _ _
Total 2.30 - 0.47 - - - 2.77

10 Other financial liabilities

Employee benefits payable 3.41 2.64

3.41 2.64

Information about the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk is included in Note 31

11 Provisions

0.12 0.01
Provision for employee benefits 0.31 0.35
Provision for gratuity
Provision for other employee benefits 0.43 0.36
Total
12 Other non-financial liabilities
0.36 3.61
Statutory dues payable 0.15 0.34
TDS payable 0.08 0.06

GST payable
PF payable 0.59 4.01




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
13 Share capital
Authorised

Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
Note As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Equity shares

(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)
10,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: 10,00,00,000) Equity shares of INR 10 each 1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares
9,93,71,965 (Previous year 9,87,44,490) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 993.72 987.44
993.72 987.44

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(in units) (in units)
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 98,744,490 987.44 9,84,20,960 984.21
Issued during the year 627,475 6.28 323,530 3.23
Outstanding at the end of the year 99,371,965 993.72 98,744,490 987.44

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

(i) Equity shares

"The Company hassingle class equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per equity share. They entitle the holders to participate in the
dividendsin proportion to the number of shares held.

However, as per the Shareholders Agreement, in the event of liquidation, the net proceeds shall be distributed in the following
manner:

- First preference shall be given to the Investors (ABF, AGIMDC Il, AVMS, CDC, FCIEF Il, FCIEF Ill, HDFC Ergo, HDFC Life, HDFC Ltd., Hero,
ICICI Pru, IFC, JIF, Lok CGF, NMI, rAPM, RBL, Sarva Capital, SFRE-SICAV-SIF, Shriram and SIDBI), shareholders which have been allotted
equity shares pursuant to ESOP plan 2010 and other shareholders (other than the shareholders which have been allotted equity
shares pursuant to grant of employee stock option of the Company excluding ESOP Plan 2010).

- Second preference shall be with shareholders which have been allotted equity shares pursuant to grant of employee stock options
of the Company (excluding ESOP Plan 2010) and sponsors of the Company.

-Remaining shareholders shall have third preference over the residual assets of the Company at the time of liquidation. "

(c) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares is set below:

Equity shares 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

British International Investment PLC 13,726,978 13.81% 13,726,978 13.90%
(Formerly known as CDC Group PLC) 8,581,150 8.64% 9,702,950 9.83%
RBL Bank Limited 7,702,602 7.75% 7,702,602 7.80%
NMI Frontier Fund KS, Norway 7,660,082 7.71% 7,660,082 7.76%

Faering Capital India Evolving FUND I 37,670,812 37.91% 38,792,612 39.29%




(d) Shares reserved forissue under options - Refer Note 26 for details of shares to be issued under employee stock option plan.

(e) Pursuant to Shareholder Agreement dated September 27, 2016 (post receipt of RBI's in-principle approval for issue of SFB licence)
and subsequent amendments thereto, Mr. Govind Singh was fo be issued upto three percent (3%) of the paid up share capital of the
promoter company either by the promoter company or by the SFB entity on a fully diluted basis within a period of Seven (7) years from
the date of commencement of banking operations i.e. upto January 22, 2024.commencement of banking operations i.e. upto
January 22, 2024.

Subject to RBI approval, the Board of Directors of the Bank has, vide the resolution passed at its meeting held on January 14, 2020,
read along with resolution passed by it on July 20, 2020, approved the grant of options equivalent to 0.60% of the paid up share capital
of the Bank as of March 31, 2020 constituting 45,55,633 Equity Shares to Mr. Govind Singh, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank under the MD & CEO ESOP Plan. However, In response o the Bank’s letter dated January 21, 2021 in the matter
seeking RBI approval, Department of Regulation, RBI Central Office vide its reply letter dated June 9, 2021 has stated that the said
remuneration proposal does not have RBl approval.

The Second Restated and Amended Shareholders’ Agreement dated March 1, 2021, as amended by the First Amendment to the
Second Restated and Amended Shareholders’ Agreement, dated February 21, 2023, and the Second Amendment to the Second
Restated and Amended Shareholders’ Agreement dated April 26, 2024 (“SASRASHA"), (collectively, “SHA™") and Amendment of the
Articles of Association of the Company dated May 27, 2024 (as amended from time fo time) executed amongst the Company, the
sponsors and the other shareholders provides that the Company has agreed to issue Equity Shares/Share Equivalents/other securities
that are equal to 3% of the paid up share capital of the Company on a Fully Diluted Basis as on September 27, 2016, to RAAG Family
Private Trust (“Trust”) (“Permitted Sponsor Issuance”), within a specified time period as reflected in the SASRASHA, at a price not less
than [R109.36 pershare] and asamended from time fo time.

Further in this regard, basis discussions between the Company, Trust and the Investors (as defined in the SHA), including calls with
Investors dated [January 18, 2024 and April 30, 2024], it was proposed that the Company makes a settflement to the Trust, for an
amount aggregating to INR 30,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty Crore) (“Settlement amount”), in consideration of the waiver/
fermination/ cancellation of the right of the Trust in relation to the Permitted Sponsor Issuance, which will constitute a full and final
settlement for the Trust, for such waiver/ termination/ cancellation of the Permitted SponsorIssuance.

Apropos the above, the Board of Directors of the company accorded its approval dated June 07, 2024 towards settlement fo the trust
amounting to %30 crore subject to approval by the shareholders of the company. The Company vide Extra-Ordinary general meeting
of shareholders held on June 29, 2024 received requisite approval towards the above stated payment to the trust and thereby
extinguishment/ waiver/ cancellation of the rights of the trust under the Shareholders Agreement dated April 26, 2024 and Articles of
Association of the Company. Further, the Company provisioned the above amount of 230 crore in its books of accounts during June
2024, out of which an amount of %10 crore has been paid o the trust dated June 29, 2024 and the balance of %20 crore paid dated
August 12,2024.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025

(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated) As at As at
Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

14 Other equity

Capital redemption reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 90.00 90.00
Add: Transfer from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss = -
Balance as at the end of the year 90.00 90.00

Securities premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year 6,531.69 6,479.52
Add: Transfer from stock option outstanding 32.16 17.75
Add: On issue of shares during the year 66.54 34.41
Balance as at the end of the year 6,630.39 6,531.69

Employees stock options outstanding

Balance as at the beginning of the year 82.71 142.77
Add: Compensation for options granted 0.44 (6.57)
Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings (8.75) (35.73)
Exercise of stock options (32.16) (17.75)
Balance as at the end of the year 42.24 82.71

Equity component of financial instruments
Balance as at the beginning of the year (109.01) (109.01)
Balance as at the end of the year (109.01) (109.01)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Balance as at the beginning of the year (0.45) (0.13)
Other comprehensive income (0.11) 0.32
Balance as at the end of the year (0.56) (0.45)

Statutory reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 218.15 215.28
Add: Transferred from surplus 60.60 2.87
Balance as at the end of the year 278.75 218.15

Other Equity - Fair valuation changes

Balance as af the beginning of the year 4,121.67 4,121.67
Add: Fair valuation of equity share capital - -
Less: Loss on extinguishment - -
Balance as at the end of the year 4,121.67 4,121.67

Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year (3,275.76 (3,323.06
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year 302.70 14.45
Add: Amount fransferred to statutory reserve - (2.87)
(created under Section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934)
Add: ESOP Reserve Adjustment (51.85) 35.73
Less: Payment to shareholder under shareholder agreement (300.00) -
Balance as af the end of the year (3,324.91) (3,275.76)
Share Application money pending allotment
Balance as at the beginning of the year 21.54 -
Shares issued during the year (21.54) -
Share application money received during the year 0.23 21.54
0.23 21.54
Treasury shares
Balance as af the beginning of the year (2.45) (2.45)
Treasury shares exercised during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year (2.45) (2.45)

Fair value changes relating to own credit risk of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year (160.62) (160.62)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

(160.62) (160.62)

Total

7565.73 751747




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Nature and purpose of otherreserve :

Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve represents amount transferred from surplus in statement of profit and loss towards redemption of
preference shares without freshissue of capital, as was required under Companies Act, 2013.

Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

ESOP Reserve
The said amount is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued fo employees under Utkarsh Corelnvest Ltd and its
subsidiary Utkarsh Small Finance Bank.

Equity component offinancial instruments
This represents the equity component of the financial liability created on account of classification of equity share capital as financial
liability.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans represents the following as perInd AS 19, Employee Benefits: (a) actuarial gains and losses
(b) the return on plan assets, excluding amountsincluded in netinterest on the net defined benefitliability (asset); and (c) any change
inthe effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amountsincludedin net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)

Statutory reserve

The said reserve has been created under Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. As per the said section, every Non-Banking
Financial Company shall create a reserve fund and transfer a sum noft less than 20% of net profit every year before declaration of
dividend.

Other Equity - Fair valuation changes

The said reserve represents the premium amount paid by the shareholders transferred on account of reclassification of equity share
capital as financial liabilities. During the year ended 31 March 2019, due fo substantial modification of the shareholder agreement,
the Company has reclassified the equity share capital from financial liability to equity. Accordingly, the amount debited to said
reserve in the previous periods was credited. Further, on the date of said reclassification, the Company has recorded the equity atf
the fair valuation on the date of reclassification and accordingly, the impact of the same has been booked in other equity. Loss on
extinguishment of financialliability has beenrecorded in the said reserve.

Retained Earnings

The said amount represents accumulated surplus/(deficit) of the profits earned by the Company. The company has provided for INR
30 million fo RAAG trust in lieu of issuing 3% of share capital on fully diluted basis as per share holder agreement and article of
asssociation

Share Application money pending allotment
This amount represents amount received from share holders against which shares are yet fo be allotted.

Treasury shares
The said amount represents sharesissued to the ESOP trust and subsequently issued to the employees of the Company.

Fair value changes relating to own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
The said amount represents fair value changes on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss relating to own
creditrisk which isrecognised in other comprehensive income.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025

(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated) As at As at
. Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
15 Otherincome

Dividend Income 379.640 -
Dividend income from current investments 40.590 34.42
Recovery from written off portfolio - -
Miscellaneous income 12.70 10.68

1.61 0.09
Total 434.54 45.20

16 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and bonus 12.91 14.08
Contribution fo provident and other funds 0.51 (0.09)
Share based payment to employees 1.98 0.18
Staff welfare expenses 0.23 0.19
Total 15.63 14.36

17 Depreciation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.19 -

Total 0.19 -

18 Other expenses

Repairs and maintenance 0.02 0.02
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibilities 0.50 0.40
Legal and professional charges 6.58 5.18
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - -
Director sitting fees 3.67 3.13
RBI Compounding fees - -
Communication expenses 0.07 0.06
Miscellaneous expenses # 1.32 0.84
Lease rent * 0.88 0.93
Total 13.04 10.54

* Represents lease rentals for short term leases in the current year
# -Includes INR 1,91,172 /- for year ended 31 March 2025 for director travel (INR 1,33,162 for the year ended 31 Match 2024)

19 Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years 20.99 15.14
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year Nil Nil
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses for the year 0.50 0.40

Various Head of expenses included in above:
Other expenses (Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibilities) 0.50 0.40

Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 0.50 0.40
Details of related party transactions 0.50 0.40

Provision for CSR Expenses
Opening Balance - -

Add: Provision created during the year 0.50 0.40
Less: Provision utilised during the year 0.50 0.40
Closing Balance - -
The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required to be Nil Nil
spent by the Company during the year

Nil Nil
The total of previous years' shortfall amounts
The reason for above shortfalls by way of a note
The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company Contribution made Contribution made

towards CSR activities towards CSR activities

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has formed a CSR Committee of the Board of Directors. The CSR
Committee has also approved a CSR Policy where certain focus areas out of list of activities covered in Schedule VI of the
Companies Act 2013, has been identified.




AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (STANDALONE)

Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

20 Auditors remuneration (Included in legal and professional charges, excluding taxes)
Payments to auditor (excluding tax)
- Statutory auditor 0.90 1.06
- Other services 0.03

- Reimbursement of expenses
0.00

Total 90.03 1.06




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

21 Amounts payable to Micro and Small enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommmends
that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as allotted after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such
enterprises as at 31 March 2024 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the
Company. Further in the view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the
provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is not expected to be material. The Company has
notfreceived any claim forinterest from any supplierunder the said Act.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as af the end of the year. 0.58 0.75
Interest due thereon remaining outstanding as at the end of the year. Nil Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Nil Nil

Development Act, 2006.

The amount of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the Nil Nil
appointed date during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment Nil Nil
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without

adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting Nil Nil
yedar.
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding Nil Nil

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section
23 of the Micro, Smalland Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

22 A. Contingent liabilities
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts in respect of Income Tax is INR 10.39 (31 March 2024: INR 10.39).

B. Commitments
There are no commitments as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

C. Contingent assets
There are no contfingent assetfs as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

23 Detuails of pending litigations As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Proceedings by Company against theft* 2.51 2.51
Income Tax CIT (A) - Refund 114.30 114.30
Income-tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) - Demand 10.39 10.39

*An amount of INR 0.14 (31 March 2024: 0.14) has been recovered in earlier years and INR 2.37 (31 March 2024 : 2.37) is yet to be
recovered. The total unrecovered amount (against theft) is written off in the previous years.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

24 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when

they are expected to be recovered or seftled.
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

(1) Assets Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months

A Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1.25 - 1.25 24.96 - 24.96
Bank balance other than above - 531.85 531.85 - 463.48 463.48
Investment in subsidiary - 7,899.58  7,899.58 - 789878 7,898.78
Other financial assets 6.86 - 6.86 3.12 - 3.12
Total financial assets 8.11 8,431.43 8,439.54 28.08 8,362.26 8,390.34

Non-financial assets

B Current fax assets (net) - 122.55 122.55 - 124.16 124.16
Property, plant and equipment 3.11 3.11 - - -
Other non-financial assets 0.19 - 0.19 0.19 - 0.19
Total non-financial assets 0.19 125.66 125.85 0.19 12416 124.35
Total Assets 8.30 8,557.09 8,565.39 28.27 8,486.42 8,514.69
Liabilities

am
Financial liabilities

A Trade Payable 1.51 = 1.52 2.77 2.77
Other financial liabilities 3.41 - 3.41 2.64 - 2.64

Non-financial liabilities

B Provisions 0.43 - 0.43 0.36 - 0.36
Other non-financial liabilities 0.59 0.59 4.01 - 4.01
Total financial liabilities 5.94 - 5.95 9.78 - 9.87
Total Liabilities -

5.94 5.94 9.78 - 9.78
Net -
2.36 855709 8,559.45 18.49 8,486.42 8,504.91

25 Segmentreporting

The Board of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108,
"Operating Segments.” The Company's operating segments are established in the manner consistent with the components of the
Company that are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined in 'Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.' As
the Company is not having any commercial operations, hence there are no separate reportable segments as perind AS 108.

Information about products and services:
The Company does not have any commercial operations. Hence, the said disclosure is not applicable.

Information about geographical areas:
The Company does not have any commercial operations. Hence, the said disclosure is not applicable.

Information about major customers (from external customers):
The Company does not have any commercial operations. Hence, the said disclosure is not applicable.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

26 Employee benefits

The Company operates the following post-employment plans -
Defined Benefit plan

Gratuity

Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the
payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is
earlier.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried
out as at 31 March 2025. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service
cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the

amountsrecognisedin the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Net defined benefit liability 0.12 0.01

A) Funding

B)

The scheme is fully funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The funding requirements are based on the gratuity
fund’s actuarialmeasurement framework set outin the funding policies of the plan. The funding of the planis based on a separate
actuarial valuation for funding purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the assumptions set out in Section D below.
Employees do not contribute to the plan.

Expected contributions to gratuity plan for the year ending 31 March 2026 is INR 0.28

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) / liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset)
liability and its components:

As d a 0 As at 31 March 2024
Defined Fair value Net defined Defined Fair value Net defined
benefit  of plan benefit benefit  of plan benefit
obligation assets (asset)/ liability | obligation assets (asset)/ liability

Balance at the beginning of the year 0.70 0.68 0.01 1.42 1.26 0.16
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 0.17 - 0.17 0.13 - 0.13
Past Service cost - - - - - -
Inferest cost (income) 0.05 0.05 0.00 0.10 0.09 0.01
Total (A) 0.22 0.05 0.17 0.23 0.09 0.14

Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements loss (gain)
— Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:

- demographic assumptions - - - - - -

- financial assumptions 0.01 = 0.01 (0.00) - (0.00)
- experience adjustment 0.11 - 0.11 0.33 - 0.33
- Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 0.01 (0.01) - 0.00 (0.00)
Total (B) 0.13 0.01 0.11 0.32 0.00 0.32
Other
Contributions paid by the employer - 0.18 (0.18) - 0.61 (0.61)
Benefits Paid - (1.28) (1.28)
Total (C) = 0.18 (0.18) (1.28)  (0.67) (0.61)
Balance at the end of the year 1.04 0.92 0.12 0.70 0.68 0.01
C) Plan assets 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

"The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest
rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules,
makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy,
thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the
duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates,
which shouldresultin aincrease in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).
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D) Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date

(expressed as weighted averages): 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.50% 7.10%
Future salary growth 8% 7.00% for the first 2 years,
and 9.00% thereafter

Withdrawal rate: 13.10% - 31.90% 13.10% - 31.90%

All ages

Retfirement Age (in year) 60 60
Mortality Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)

Discount rate: The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market yields at the
balance sheet date on government bonds. The currency and term of the government bonds is consistent with the currency and
estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Salary escalation rate: Salary increase takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and
demandin the employment market.

E) Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions
The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial assumption, holding other assumptions constant,

showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that were
reasonably possible at the reporting date.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (0.07) 0.07 (0.05) 0.05
Salary growth rate (1% movement) 0.07 (0.07) 0.05 (0.05)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide
an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

F) Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Oto 1 Year 0.14 0.10
1to 5 Year 0.50 0.32
5 Year onwards 1.12 0.90
Total 1.76 1.32

Asat 31 March 2025, the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 7 years (31 March 2024: 7 years)

G) Description of risk exposures
Investment risk
"The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected returnon any particularinvestment.

Interestrisk (discount rate risk)
"Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company tothe risk of fallin interest rates. A fallininterest rates will resultin anincrease in
the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in anincrease in the value of the liability.

Mortality risk

"The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants. For the current year, we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table.

Achange in mortality rate willhave a bearing on the plan's liability."

Salary risk

"The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviationin the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present
value of obligation willhave a bearing on the plan'sliability.

ii) Defined contribution plan
The Company makes monthly contribution towards Provident Fund which is a defined contribution plan. The Company has no
obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as they
accrue. The amount recognised as expense fowards such contribution are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provident fund 0.50 0.52

iii) Other long-term benefits
The Company provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the Company which can be carried forward to
future years. Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for compensated absences is as under-
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Provision for leave encashment and gratuity (0.11) 0.29
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27 Employee stock options

A Description of share-based payment arrangements
The Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme to be administered through a Trust. The Scheme is applicable
fo all the eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiary Companies (‘Group’). The scheme provides that subject fo
continued employment with the company, the employees are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Company that
may be exercised within a specified period.

The Company formed Utkarsh ESOP Welfare Trust (‘Trust’) to issue ESOPs to employees of the Company as per Employee Stock
Option Scheme. Total 1,200,000 equity shares has been reserved under ESOP scheme 2016 and pursuant fo Shareholder
agreement executedin the year2016-17 additional 5,989,594 equity shares has been reserved for the purpose of ESOP scheme.

The trust holds these shares for the benefit of the employees and issues them to the eligible employees as per the recommendation
of the compensation committee. The Trust in turn allots the shares to employees on exercise of their right against cash. The
compensation costs of stock options granted to employees are accounted by the Company using fair value method.

The Trust does not have any transactions/activities other than those mentioned above, hence it is treated as a part of the
Company and gets consolidated with the standalone books of the Company.

The Company granted 17,500 (31 March 2024, 30,000) options to the employees of the Company during the year.

The options vested shall be exercised within a period of 24 months from the datfe of vesting. The plan shall be administered,
supervised and implemented by the Compensation Committee under the policy and frame work laid down by the Board of
Directors of the Company in accordance with the authority delegated to the Compensation Committee in this regard from time
to time.

The said ESOP scheme is an equity seftled scheme as the same would lead fo a seftlement in its own equity instruments.

The Company granted options to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiary, Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited on
September 19, 2024. Since the ESOP cost for the grant was not approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC)
and the Board of Directors of the Bank, the Company cancelled grant by passing a Board Resolution on May 20, 2025. Therefore,
the said grant may be considered for cancellation in totality effective Septemebr 19, 2024 in terms of fulfilling the requirement
under corporate governance and accounting principles. Further to apprise that a note on the re-issuance of ESOP grant to the
employees of USFBL and UCL may be placed before the Committee during current financial year.

These options shall vest on graded basis as follows:

Time period Percentage Vesting condition
On completion of 1 year 25% Service
On completion of 2 years 25% Service
On completion of 3 years 25% Service
On completion of 4 years 25% Service
B Reconciliation of outstanding share options
Set out below is a summary of options granted under the plan
As O a 0 As at 31 March 2024
Number of Average Number of Average
share options exercise price | share options exercise price
(in Units) per share (in Units) per share
Outstanding options at the beginning of the year 1,309,227 119.40 29,96,867 115.67
Add: Granted during the year 17,500 125.00 30,000 125.00
Add: Adjustment of previous year (negative impact) 243,354 110.61 - -
Less: Lapsed/forfeited during the year 293,875 116.63 10,91,634 115.38
Less: Exercised during the year 627,475 116.11 3,23,530 116.37
Less: Adjustment of previous year - - 3,02,476 113.09
Outstanding options at the end of the year 648,731 120.68 13,09,227 119.40
Options vested and exercisable af the end of the year 613,888 120.44 9,91,210 117.60

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2025 was

116.11 (31 March 2024 INR 116.37).
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C Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following contractual expiry date and exercise options.

No of options outstanding
Grant date Expiry date Exercise price As at 31 March 2024
1 April 2014 1 April 2016 - 1 April 2019 21.60 - _
1 April 2015 1 April 2017 - 1 April 2020 21.60 - _
1 April 2016 1 April 2018 - 1 April 2021 21.60 - _
1 April 2017 1 April 2019 - 1 April 2022 109.36 - -
1 April 2018 1 April 2020 - 1 April 2023 109.36 - _
1 April 2019 1 April 2021 - 1 April 2024 109.36 - _
1 June 2019 1 June 2021 - 1 June 2024 109.36 179,094 4,69,000
9 Dec 2019 9 Dec 2021 - 9 Dec 2024 125.00 12,500 35,000
1 Oct 2020 1 Oct 2022 - 1 Oct 2025 125.00 416,669 7.67,727
1 April 2021 1 April 2023 - 1 April 2026 125.00 3,750 7,031
1 April 2022 1 April 2024 - 1 April 2027 125.00 7,031 12,188
1 April 2023 1 April 2025 - 1 April 2028 125.00 12,187 18,281
1 April 2024 1 April 2026 - 1 April 2029 125.00 17,500 _
Weighted average remaining confractual life of options oufstanding at the end of the year 1.28 years 2.05 years

D Measurement of Fair values

The fair value of employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes model. The weighted average fair value of
each option on the grant date ranged between INR 9.54 - 203.60

The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share
based payment plans are as follows:

fotee | Borcee | share | Rekfe | rel
1 April 2014 1 April 2016 - 1 April 2019 33.83% 21.6 28.72 8.81% 11.57-16.12
1 April 2015 1 April 2017 - 1 April 2020 43.09% 21.6 45.51 7.74% 27.54 - 32.21
1 April 2016 1 April 2018 - 1 April 2021 52.41% 21.6 71.4 7.46% 53.15-57.95
1 April 2017 1 April 2019 - 1 April 2022 30.91% 109.36 82.19 6.68% 9.54-23.70
1 April 2018 1 April 2020 - 1 April 2023 29.51% 109.36 107.19 7.40% 23.88 - 42.55
1 June 2019 1 June 2021 - 1 June 2024 19.60% 109.36 132.13 7.03% 49.31 - 67.99
1 Oct 2020 1 Oct 2022 - 1 Oct 2025 47.00% 125.00 131.59 5.55% 50.10 - 65.77
1 April 2021 1 April 2023 - 1 April 2026 49.30% 125.00 142.50 5.80% 53.60 - 77.00
1 April 2022 1 April 2024 - 1 April 2027 49.10% 125.00 155.20 6.20% 60.00 - 88.30
1 April 2023 1 April 2025 - 1 April 2028 47.90% 125.00 166.70 7.10% 68.20 - 99.40
1 April 2024 1 April 2026 - 1 April 2029 46.70% 125.00 278.90 7.00% 173.90 - 203.60

The dividend yield has been taken as 0% in all the fair value calculations as Company has never distributed dividend in the past
and does not intend to distribute its earnings in the foreseeable future.

E Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
For details on the employee benefits expense, refer Note 26

As the scheme is applicable to all the employees of the group, the Company has made a cross charge to
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank for the ESOP expense incurred by the Company on behalf of Utkarsh Small Finance Bank.
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28 Related party disclosure
i. Name of the related party and nature of relationship:-

A. Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship

a. Key managerial personnel

i Mr. Ashwani Kumar - Managing Director & CEO (ceased fo be MD & CEO w.e.f. 19 December 2023)
i Mr. Suman Saurabh - Managing Director & CEO (w.e.f. 19 December 2023)
i Mr. G.S. Sundararajan - Independent Director
v Mr. Gaurav Malhotra — Nominee Director (ceased to be director w.e.f. 25 August 2022)
v Mr. Aful — Independent Director
Vi Mr.T. K. Ramesh Ramanathan — Nominee Director (ceased to be director w.e.f. 13 March 2024)
Vi Mr. Harjeet Toor — Nominee Director (ceased to be director w.e.f. 23 June 2022)
vii M. Aditya Deepak Parekh —Nominee Director
b. Subsidiaries Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

C. Company in which Director / KMP / their Relatives are Member and have the Controlling Rights / Shareholding in that
Company exceeding 50%
Utkarsh Welfare Foundation (Ceased to be related party w.e.f. Dec 19, 2023)
Faering Capital Private Limited (Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh has the controlling right in the capacity of MD)
Faering Capital LLP (Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh has the controlling right in the capacity of designated Partner)
AMP Fitness LLP (Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh has the controlling right in the capacity of designated Partner)

B. Related party transactions during the year and balance receivable from and payable to related parties as at
the balance sheet date:

Name of related party Nature of transaction Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Utkarsh Welfare Foundation (i) Contribution fowards CSR activities 0.50 0.40
(i) ESOP cost cross charge (2.34) (8.14)
(ii) Fixed deposits placed during the year 589.35 178.75
(iii) Fixed deposits matured during the year 521.10 139.90
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited  (iv) Interest received 40.59 34.42
(v) Service charge on collection 0.15 0.13
(vi) Dividend received 379.64 -
(vii) Rent Paid 0.88 0.93
(viii) Deemed Investment in USFB 0.80 1.39

(Basis IND AS Fair valuation)
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C. Compensation of key managerial personnel

29.

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Short-term employee benefits

Ashwani Kumar - 5.26
Suman Saurabh 5.81 2.10
GS Sundararajan 1.25 1.06

Post-employment defined benefit plan
Ashwani Kumar - 1.1
Suman Saurabh 0.25 0.1

Other long term benefits
Ashwani Kumar - 0.34

Suman Saurabh 0.1 -

Share-based payments

Ashwani Kumar* - (0.32)

Suman Saurabh 0.82 -

Sitting fees

GS Sundararajan 1.18 1.10

Atul 1.24 0.96
10.66 11.73

* Reversal of ESOP Cost by 0.70 million due to cancellation of 39,875 ESOPs (proportionate 39,875 and Total 57,625) granted to
Mr. Ashwani Kumar during FY24.

Terms and conditions
All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and at normal commercial terms.

. Receivables as at balance sheet date:

Name of related party Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Ltd. - Investment in FDR 527.00 458.75
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Ltd. - Current Account 1.11 21.72
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Ltd. - Other receivables 5.77 2.18

Earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

a) Basic earning per share

Profit/(loss) affer tax 302.70 1445
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — Basic 9,89,88,994 78,275,137
b) Diluted

Profit/(loss) affer tax 302.70 1445
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — Basic 9,89,88,994 78,275,137
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of 373,348 1,111,091
employee stock options 99,386,227
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — Diluted 9,93,62,341

Earnings per share

Basic — par value of INR 10 each 3.06 0.15

Diluted - par value of INR 10 each 3.05 015
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30 Financial instruments - fair value and risk management

A. Financial instruments by category
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
cost cost
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents = - 1.25 - - 24.96
Bank balance other than above = = 531.85 - - 463.48
Other financial assets = = 6.86 - - 3.12
- - 539.96 - - 491.56
Financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities = - 3.41 - - 2.64
- - 3.41 - - 2.64

B. Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at 31 March 2025 Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 1.25 - - - -
Bank balance other than above 531.85 - - - -
Other financial assets 6.86 - - - -
539.96 - - - -

Financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities 3.41 - - - -
3.41 - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 24.96 - - - -
Bank balance other than above 463.48 - - - -
Other financial assets 3.12 - - - -
491.56 - - - -

Financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities 2.64 - - - -
2.64 - - - -

The respective carrying values of certain on-balance sheet financial insfruments approximated their fair value. These financial
instrumentsinclude cash in hand, balances with other banks and certain other financial assets and liabilities. Carrying values were
assumed to approximate fair values for these financial instruments as they are short-term in nature and their recorded amounts
approximate fair values or are receivable or payable on demand.
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C.

31

Valuation framework
The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making
the measurements.

Level 1:Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair
value aninstrument are observable the instrumentisincludedinlevel 2.

Level 3:If one or more of the significant inputsis not based in observable market data, the instrumentsisincluded in level 3. That s, Level
3inputsincorporate market participants’ assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order to bear
thatrisk. The Bank develops Level 3inputs based on the bestinformation available in the circumstances.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be received to sell the
asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Financialrisk management
The Company's activities exposure is to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operationalrisk.

Risk managementframework
(a) Riskmanagement structure and Company's risk profile

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The board of directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly fo the board of directors oniits activities.

Efficient and timely management of risks involved in the Company's activities is critical for the financial soundness and profitability of the
Company. Risk management involves the identifying, measuring, monitoring and managing of risks on a regular basis. The objective of
risk management is to increase shareholders' value and achieve a return on equity that is commensurate with the risks assumed. To
achieve this objective, the Company employsleading risk management practices and recruits skilled and experienced people.

The Company’srisk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence fo limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the company’s activities. The company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit
committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported fo the audit committee.

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company'sinvestment in debentures, cash and cash equivalents, otherbank balances, etc.
The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Cash and bank balances and other financial assets

Cash and bank balances of the Company are held with banks which have high credit rating. The Company considers that its cash and
cash equivalents and other financial assets have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
setftled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is fo ensure, as far as possible, that
it will have sufficient liquidity fo meet ifs liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses orrisking damage to the Company's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at the reporting date. The amount are gross & undiscounted.

Contractual cash flows

As at 31 March 2025 Carrying Gross nominal 6 month 6-12 1-2 2-5 More than
amount inflow/ (outflow) or less months years years 5 years
Non - derivative financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 3.41 (3.41) (3.41) - - - -
Contractual cash flows
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Gross nominal 6 month 6-12 1-2 2-5 More than
amount inflow/ (outflow) or less months years years 5 years

Non - derivative financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities 2.64 (2.64) (2.64) - - - -
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(i)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates — will affect the Company’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

The company is not exposed fo any currency risk as Company does not have any foreign currency transactions during the current
yearand comparative year.

Interest Rate Risk
The Company does not have any borrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The inferest rate profile of the Company'sinterest-bearing financialinstruments as reporfed fo the management is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(iif)

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 531.85 463.48
Financial liabilities - R

Legal and operational risk

Legalrisk

Legalrisk is the risk relating to losses due to legal or regulatory action that invalidates or otherwise precludes performance by the
end user orits counterparty under the terms of the contract or related netting agreements.

The Company has developed preventive controls and formalised procedures to identify legal risks so that potential losses arising
from non-adherence fo laws and regulations, negative publicity, efc. are significantly reduced. The Company also has well
established legal procedures to scrutinise product offerings and manage risks arising out of its fransactions."”

Operational

Operationalrisk is the exposure to loss resulting from inadequate or failed intfernal processes, people and systems, or from external
events. The Company has clearly defined operations procedures for each of its products and services. It also has advanced
computersystems that enable it to run operations with speed and accuracy.

The operational risk department operates independently from other units of the Company and reports directly to the Audit
Committee, which consists of members of the Board. It conducts regular reviews of all business areas of the Company and reports
control deficiencies and exceptions to the Company's policies and procedures. It also recommends measures to mitigate
operationalrisk, which are implemented by managementimmediately.
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32 Capitalmanagement

33

34

"The basic approach of capital adequacy framework is that, a financial institution should have sufficient capital o absorb shocks
on account of any unexpected losses arising from the risks inits business.

As per RBI guidelines, the Company is required to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted asset ratio. Capital management
entails optimal utilization of scarce capital fo meet extant regulatory capital requirements. The Company has put in place an
appropriate Risk Appetite framework and computes its capital requirements and adequacy as per extant regulatory guidelines.
Going forward, attempt shallbe made to strengthen Capital allocation practices and enhance efficiency of capital.”

Regulatory capital

The Company's regulatory capital consists of the sum of the following elements :
Common equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital, which includes ordinary share capital, related share premiums and retained earnings.

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

The Company does not have any elementsin Tier 2 capital.

Common equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital

Paid up share capital 993.72 987.44
Capital redemption reserve 90.00 90.00
Securities premium account 6,630.39 6,531.69
(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss account (3,324.91) (3,275.76)
Statutory reserve 278.75 218.15
ESOP outstanding account 39.79 80.26
Prepaid expenditure (0.19) (0.19)

4,707.55 4,631.59

Tier 2 capital instruments
Less: Investment in excess of 10% of Own fund -

4,707.55 4,631.59
Total regulatory capital 4,707.55 4,631.59
Risk weighted assets 7909.55 7,9201.90
CRAR (%) - Refer note 34 (a) 59.52% 58.61%
CRAR -Tier | Capital (%) 59.52% 58.61%
CRAR -Tier Il Capital (%) 0.00% 0.00%

Capital allocation

Management uses extant regulatory capital ratios to monitor its capital base. The amount of capital allocated to each operation
or activity is based primarily on regulatory capital requirements. Theoretically, maximisation of the return onrisk-adjusted capital is
the principal basis used in determining how capital is allocated within the Company fo partficular operations or activities. Going
forward, capital allocation for various lines of business and activities shall be attempted, as part of annual business plan based on
synergies with other operations and activities, the availability of management and other resources, and the fit of the activity with
the Company’slonger-term strategic objectives.

Liquidity coverage ratio

Numerator | Denominator | 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24 | % of variance | Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25%

502.04 2.22 | 22666.00% | 2720.88% 733.04% Maijorly, due to higher increase in Callable FD by 202%
against decrease in outflow by 64% year on year

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short ferm lease of building that have a lease
term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on straight line
basis.

Rent expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss on account of short term exemptionis INR 0.88 (31 March 2024 : INR 0.93)




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

35 Asperthe SFB Guidelines and RBI Clarifications read with the RBI Acquisition Directions, the promoter (in this case, 'UCL' or ‘Transferor
Company') of a smallfinance bank (in this case 'USFBL' or ‘Transferee Company') is required fo reduce its equity shareholding stake
in the smalll finance bank to 40% within a period of 5 (five) years from the date of commencement of business operations by the
small finance bank. Thereafter, the promoter’s equity stake in such small finance bankis required to be further brought down to 26%
withina period of 15 (fiffeen) years from the date of commencement of business operations by the small finance bank.

Further, as per the RBI Clarifications, the promoter may elect to exit, or cease to be a promoter of a small finance bank after expiry
of 5 (five) years from the date of commencement of business operations by the small finance bank depending upon the RBI's
regulatory and supervisory comfort and regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”). In view of the
foregoing, and pursuant to Direction 7.1 of the RBI Acquisition Directions, the Board of Directors of both the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company have, considering the opfion of such a reverse merger fo be the most efficient mode of ensuring
compliance with the RBI mandated dilution requirements, granted an in-principle approval to such proposed reverse merger on
February 13,2024 and March 14-16, 2024 respectively.

The Scheme has been formulated in view of the above, and consequent to the amalgamation as contemplated under the
Scheme, and dissolution of the Transferor Company, the Transferor Company’s shareholding in the Transferee Company would be
reduced to niland since none of the shareholders of the Transferor Company will qualify as a promoter of the Transferee Company,
the Scheme willresultin compliance with dilution requirements under the SFB Guidelines and the RBI Acquisition Directions.

Apropos the above, the Board of Directors of both the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company provided final approval
to the scheme on September 20, 2024 and the scheme has been submitted to RBI on September 30, 2024 and the stock exchanges
i.e. BSE and NSE on October 01, 2024. The appointed date under the said scheme is April 01, 2025 or such other date as may be
approved by NCLT or such other competent authority.

Further, the RBI vide their NOC dated January 02, 2025 have conveyed their ‘No-Objection’ to the proposal and to proceed with
the amalgamation in compliance with all applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. Also, the approval from the Stock
Exchanges are awaited.

36 Additional Disclosures as required by Reserve Bank of India (RBI)

a) Components of ANW and other related information:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

i) ANW as a % of Risk Weighted Assets 59.52% 58.61%
ii) Unrealized appreciation in the book value of quoted investments - -
iii) Diminution in the aggregate book value of quoted investments - -
iv) Leverage Ratio 0.00 0.00

Note: The ANW as a % of RWA as at 31 March 2025 disclosed above is as per RBI circular “RBI/DoR(NBFC)/2016-17/39 dated August
25,2016, Master Direction DoR(NBFC).PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17 (Updated as on December 29, 2022)". ANW as a % of RWA as at 31
March 2025 has been calculated without considering the fair value changes in other equity as part of free reserves. If the Company
consider the fair value changes in other equity and equity component of financial instruments, the ANW as a % of RWA as at 31
March 2025 willbe 110.25% (31 March 24:109.39%).

b) The Company has the following direct exposure to real estate sector:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Residential Mortgages
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be - -
occupied by the borrower or that is rented
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c) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:

. 1day 8days 15days Over1 Over 2 Over3 Overé Over1l Over3 Over Total
Particulars (31 March 2025) RV to  1030/31 month to months to monthsto months yearto years to 5 years
7 days 14 days days 2 months 3 months é months to 1 year 3 years 5 years

Borrowings - - - - - - - - - - -
Advances - - - - - - - - - - -
Deposits accepted - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency Assets - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency Liabilities - - - - - - - - - - _
Investments - - - - - - - - - 7,971.43 7,971.43

. 1day 8days 15days Over1 Over 2 Over3 Overé6 Over1l Over3 Over Total
Particulars (31 March 2024) 1o to  1030/31 month to months to months to months yearto years to 5 years
7 days 14days days 2 months 3 months 6 months to 1 year 3 years 5 years

Borrowings - - - - - - - - - - -
Advances - - - - - - - - - - -
Deposits accepted - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency Assets - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency Liabilities - - - - - - - - - - -
Investments - - - - - - - - - 7,971.43 7,971.43

d) Investments:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Value of Investments

(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) in India 7,971.43 7,971.43
(a) outside Indiq, - -
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) in India - -
(a) outside Indiq, - -
(iii) Net Value of Investments
(a) in India 7,971.43 7,971.43
(a) outside Indiq, - -
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i) Opening balance - -
(i) Add : Provisions made during the year = -
(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - -
(iv) Closing balance - -

e) Business Ratio:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Return on Equity 3.55% 0.17%

Return on Assets 3.54% 0.17%

Net Profit per Employee 37.82 1.77
f) Provision and contingency

Provisions for depreciation on Investment
Provision towards NPA

Provision made towards Income fax 102.98 5.85
Provision for Standard Assets - -
Other Provision and Contingencies = -

Particulars I8 RV Eel  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

g) Draw down from Reserves
There has been a draw down from reserves amounting to 300 mn. during FY 2024-25 on account of settlement of liability and
thereby extinguishment / waiver / cancellation of the rights of the trust under the Shareholders Agreement dated April 26, 2024
and Articles of Association of the Company, (previous year: Nil).
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h) Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Particulars TR RV G EC  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Concentration of Advances

Total advances fo twenty largest borrowers

(%)of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances

Total exposure fo top five NPA Accounts

i) Sector wise Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Sector Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector

g RIS For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Agriculture & allied activities
MSME
Corporate borrowers
Services
Unsecured personal loans
Auto loans
Other personal loans

j) Movement in Non-Performing Asset (NPA)

Particulars @ RV X oSl For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Net NPA to net advances percentage
Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening balance

b) Additions during the year
c) Reduction during the year
d) Closing balance
Movement of net NPAs

a) Opening balance

b) Additions during the year

c) Reduction during the year

d) Closing balance

Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

a) Opening balance

b) Provisions made during the year

c) Write off/ write back of excess provisions
d) Closing balance
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k) Disclosure with respect to customer complaints

Particulars Number of complaints

LI AV E Sl For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
No. of complaints received during the year - -
No. of complaints redressed during the year - -
No. of complaints pending af the end of the year - -

1) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC:

The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the financial year ended 31 March 2025 and financial
year ended 31 March 2024.

m) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

Regulator Registration No. Date of Registration
Ministry of Corporate Affairs U651921UPT1990PLC045609 24 June 2016

n) Details of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
No penalties has been imposed by RBI and other regulators on the Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2025
and 31 March 2024.

o) Unsecured Advances
The Company has not given any unsecured advances against infangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses,
authority, etc. during the financial year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

p) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
The Company has not purchased/sold any non-performing financial assets during the financial year ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2025.

d) Disclosure of frauds reported during the half-year ended March 31, 2024 vide DNBS. PD. CC No. 256/03.10.042/2011-12 dated 2 March 2012
During the year ended March 31, 2025:-

D g the year ended During the year ended
a 0 31 March 2024
Particulars Less than INR 1 Lakh to More than | Less than INR 1 Lakhto More than
INR 1 Lakh INR 5 Lakh INR 5 Lakh [ INR 1 Lakh INR 5 Lakh INR 5 Lakh
55 %% 55 %% 9582|553 %% ©3 3z O3 S=
T Z ; SZ 5 Z ; S Z 5 5 Z S Z
298 28 3= 282=(12828= 28 8= 2§ 2=
o} o} o} o} o} o}
A) Person involved

Staff - - - - - - - - - - - _
Customers - - - - - - - - - - - _
Staff and Customers - - - - - - - - - - - _
Total - - - - - - - - - - _ _

B) Type of Fraud
Misappropriation and - - - - - - - - - - R _
Criminal Breach of Trust - - - - - - - - - - - _
Fraudulent Encashment/manipulation of books - - - - - - - - - - - -
of accounts or through fictitious accounts and
conversion of property.

Unauthorised credit facilities extended for - - - - - - - - - - - _
reward or for illegal gratification
Negligence and cash shortages - - - - - - - - - - - R
Cheating and forgery - - - - - - - - - - - R
Irregularities in foreign exchange transactions - - - - - - - - - - - _
Any other type of fraud not coming under - - - - - - - - - - - -
the specific heads as above
Total - - - - - - - - - _ _ _

r) The Company has no exposure or transactions regarding overseas assets.

s) There are no derivatives as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. Accordingly disclosure pertaining to derivatives vide DNBR
(PD) CC.N0.053/03.10.119/2015-16 dated 01 July 2015 are not provided.

) The Company has no investment in other CICs as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

u) The Company has no Off Balance Sheet exposure as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
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Additional Disclosures as required by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) basis Scale Based Regulation (SBR)
(Refer Circular No- RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.NO.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022)

Exposure:
Exposure to real estate sector

Category

As at
31 March 2025

i) Direct exposure

a) Residential Mortgages—

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by
the borrower or thatis rented. Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.

b) Commercial Real Estate —

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings, retail space,
multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily residential buildings, multi tenanted
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB)

[imits.

c) Investmentsin Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures —

i. Residential
ii. CommercialReal Estate

ii) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and Housing

Finance Companies.
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

As at
31 March 2024

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

The Company does not have any exposure to capital market as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Sectoral exposure

As at 31 March 2025

Percentage of
Gross NPAs to
total exposure
in that sector

As at 31 March 2024

Total Exposure
(includes on
balance sheet &
off-balance
sheet exposure)
(% crore)

Gross
NPAs
(% crore)

Percentage of
Gross NPAs to
total exposure
in that sector

Total Exposure Gross
(includes on NPAs
balance sheet & | (% crore)
off-balance
sheet exposure)
(% crore)
1. Agriculture and Allied Activities - -
2. Industry - -
[ - -
ii.... - -
Others - -

Total of Industry - R
(i+ii+...+Others) - R

3. Services - _
i.. - _
ii... - _
Others - _
Total of Services - -
(i+ii+...+Others) - -

4. Personal Loans - _
[ - _
ii... - _
Others - _
Total of Personal Loans - -
(i+ii+...+Others) - -

5. Others, if any - -
(please specify) - -

Intra-group exposures

Particulars

i. Total amount of infra-group exposures

ii. Total amount of fop 20 infra-group exposures

iii. Percentage of infra-group exposures to total exposure of
the NBFC on borrowers/customers

LOEC NI PIiVEN  As at 31 March 2024

8,433.46
8,433.46
100%

8,381.43
8,381.43
100%
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5 The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

B) Related Party Disclosures
Related Party Parent (as per ownership Subsidiaries Associates/ Directors
or control) Joint ventures
As at As at As at As at As at As at As at As at
ltems 31 March 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March
2025 2024 2025 2024 2024 2023 2025 2024
Borrowings - - - - - - - -
Deposits - - 527.00 458.75 - - 0.31 10.30
Placement of deposits - - 545.85 458.75 - - 10.81 15.74
Advances - - - - - - - -
Investments - - 7,899.58 | 7,898.78 - - - -
Purchase of fixed/other assets - - - - - - - -
Sale of fixed/other assets - - - - - - - -
Interest paid - - - - - - - -
Interest received - - 40.59 34.42 - - 0.76 0.25
Others - - - - - - - -
Related Party Key Management Relatives of Key Total
Personnel Management Personnel
As at As at As at As at As at As at
ltems 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Borrowings - - - - - -
Deposits 0.60 0.48 0.75 1.41 528.66 470.95
Placement of deposits 0.91 1.20 1.54 1.48 559.11 477.17
Advances - - - - - -
Investments - - - - 7,899.58 7,898.78
Purchase of fixed/other assets - - - - - -
Sale of fixed/other assets - - - - - -
Interest paid - - - - - -
Inferest received 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.03 41.42 34.74
Others - - - - - -
C) Disclosure of complaints
1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year - -
2. Number of complaints received during the year - -
3. Number of compilaints disposed during the year - -
3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5. Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman - -
5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman - -
5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued - -
by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman - -
against the NBFC
6. Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) - -
2) Since, no complaints have been received during year ended March 2025 and FY 2023-24, hence, the ground of complaints are
Nil for both years.
D) The Company does not have any loan or have not issues any debt securities during year ended March 2025 and FY 2023-24.
E) Since, none of the conditions for divergence in asset classification and provisioning are met, hence, the same is not applicable fo

the Company during year ended March 2025 and FY 2023-24.
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Additional Disclosures as per Schedule Il Amendment by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated March 24, 2021:

38 There are no immovable properties in the name of Company included in property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets.

39 The Company has not entered into a transaction where the fair value of investment property (as measured for
disclosure purposes in the financial statements) is measured on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under
Rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

40 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the current or previous year.

41 The Company has not guaranteed any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the
related parties, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand; or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

42 (a) The Company has not advanced / loaned / invested funds fo any other person or entity, including foreign entfities
(Infermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shaill:
(1) directly or indirectly lend / invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
(Il) Provide any guarantee, security or the like fo or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(b) The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the
Company shall:
(I) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultfimate
Beneficiaries”)
(Il) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

43 No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

44 The Company has no borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

45 The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

46 There are no identified promoter of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

47 No transactions have taken place with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956.

48 There are no charges / satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period.

49 There are no capital work in progress, investment property in progress and infangible assets as at March 31, 2025 and
March 31, 2024. Hence, there are no projects in progress or temporarily suspended. Also, there are no projects whose
completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost as per original plan.

50 The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed u/s (87) of section 2 of the Act read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

51 There are no approved Scheme of Arrangements by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013 as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

52 There are no Security deposits, lease liabilities and long-term borrowings of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and
March 31, 2024.

53 There are no any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year and previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

54 There have been no trading / investment in crypto / virtual currency during the year and previous year. Also, there
have been no deposits and advances received from any person for the purpose of tfrading / investment in crypto
currency during current year and previous year.
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55 Additional Disclosures as required by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) basis Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India
(Non-Banking Financial Company- Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023
vide RBI / DoR / 2023-24 / 106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 updated as on March 21, 2024

Particulars
Liabilities side Amount Amount
outstanding | overdue
(1) | Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(Q) Debentures: Secured Nil Nil
: Unsecured Nil Nil
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits*) Nil Nil
(b) Deferred Credits Nil Nil
(c) Term Loans Nil Nil
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing Nil Nil
(e) Commercial Paper Nil Nil
(f) Public Deposits* Nil Nil
(9) Other Loans (specify nature) Nil Nil
(2) | Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures Nil Nil
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in Nil Nil
the value of security
(c) Other public deposits Nil Nil
Assets side Amount outstanding
(3) Break-up of Loans & Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured Nil
(b) Unsecured Nil

(4) | Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

(a) Financial lease Nil

(b) Operating lease Nil
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire Nil

(b) Repossessed Assets Nil
(iif) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed Nil

(b) Loans other than (a) above Nil

(5) | Break-up of Investments
Current Investments

1. Quoted
(i) Shares -
(a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nil
(i) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
2. Unguoted
(i) Shares N
(a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
Long Term investments
1. Quoted
(i) Shares _
(a) Equity 7,899.58
(b) Preference Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
2. Unguoted
(i) Shares -
(a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil

(v) Others (please specify) Nil
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(6) | Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:
Please see Note 2 below

Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties **

(a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil

(b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil

(c) Other related parties Nil Nil Nil
2. Other than related parties Nil Nil Nil

Total

(7) | Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted):

Category Market Value/ Book Value
Break up or fair (Net of
value or NAV Provisions)
1. Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries Nil 7899.58
(b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil
(c) Other related parties Nil Nil
2. Other than related parties Nil Nil
Total Nil 7899.58
(8) | Other information
Particulars Amount
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties Nil
(b) Other than related parties Nil
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties Nil
(b) Other than related parties Nil
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt Nil
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Income Tax

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
BRI X Sl For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current tax expense 102.98 5.85
Tax for earlier years - -

Tax expense 102.98 5.85

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars

Profit before tax 405.68 20.30
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.17% 102.10 25.17% 5.11
Effect of:

Permanent differences 0.00% = 0.50% 0.10
Tax for earlier years 0.00% - 0.00% -
Tax exempt income 0.00% - 0.00% -
Change in unrecognised temporary differences 0.15% 0.59 3.68% 0.75
Others 0.07% 0.28 -0.52% (0.11)
Effective tax rate/tax expense 25.38% 102.98 28.82% 5.85

Uncertain tax positions
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts in respect of Income Tax is INR 124.69 (31 March 2024: INR 124.69).

Uncertain tax positions
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom.

TR W RGN EC  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deductible temporary differences 0.59 1.51
Deferred tax on account of indexation on equity shares of - 620.08
investment in subsidiary*

Total 0.59 621.59

* From FY 2024-25, there will be no indexed cost of acquisition. Hence, there is no disclosure made for deferred tax impact on
investment in subsidiary as tax base and carrying value will be the same.

Audit Trail
Enhancing Accountability and Transparency: Implementation of Audit Trail
The company had implemented an audit trail system within our company's software which has impact on books of accounts

with effect from April 01, 2023. This implementation underscores our commitment fo transparency, accountability, and data
integrity. Audit trail has been implemented for all transactions recorded in the software throughout the year.

By capturing and documenting critical events and activities within our systems, we ensure a comprehensive record that
enhances security, facilitates compliance, and supports effective decision-making.

In addition, audit trail data is preserved in the system as per statutory requirement for record retention. The company’s
dedication to maintain a robust audit trail reflects ongoing efforts fo uphold the highest standards of governance and security
across all aspects of business operations.
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B Backup Schedule and Data Preservation:

The company is following a backup schedule and data preservation protocol within the organization The company’s backup
schedule entails frequent and systematic backups of critical data assets to safeguard against potential data loss or corruption.
This proactive approach ensures that valuable information remains protected and accessible in the event of unforeseen
circumstances. The Backup for the accounting software Intellect Core Banking System is done on a Daily basis and preserved at
DisasterRecovery (DR) site located at Hyderabad.

As per our report of even dafe attached.

for DMKH & Co. for and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
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Reporting entity
Utkarsh Coreinvest Limited (“the Company’ or ‘‘Holding Company”) is domiciled in India. The Company is having its registered

office at Varanasi. The Company was formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited and got the name changed to Utkarsh
Coreinvest Limited w.e.f. 11 Ocfober2018.

The company was primarily engaged in the business of micro finance, following group lending methodology and providing small
value unsecured bank loans fo lower income groups of Below Poverty Line (“BPL") in urban and rural areas. During the financial
year 2016-17, the Company executed a business transfer agreement with its subsidiary Company ‘Utkarsh Small Finance Bank
Limited’ (‘USFB’) and transferred all its assets and liabilities (except certain statutory assets, vehicle and statutory liabilities).
Accordingly, the business of micro finance was also transferred to USFB.

On 3 May 2018, the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") has granted its approval to the Company for carrying on the business of a Non-
Deposit taking- Systemically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI) under the Certificate No C.07.00781.

Material accounting policies
The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the financial statements.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statfements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) as amended from time to
time.

These financial statements were authorized forissue by the Company’s Board of directors on 30 May 2025.

The Company is regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’). The RBI periodically issues/amends directions, regulations and/or
guidance (collectively “Regulatory Framework”) covering various aspects of the operation of the Company, including those
relating fo accounting for certain types of transactions. The Regulatory Framework contains specific instructions that need to be
followed by the Company in preparing ifs financial statements. The financial statements for the previous years may need to
undergo changes in measurement and/or presentation upon receipt of clarifications on the Regulatory Framework or changes
thereto.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for the following items:
Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value or amortised value;
Net defined benefitliability/ (asset): present value of defined benefit obligationless fair value of plan assets.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have
beenrounded to the nearest million rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of the Company’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of these financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actualresults may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo estimates are recognized
prospectively.

Judgments

Information about the judgements made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognized in the standalone financial
statements have been given below:

Note 30 - Financial instruments - fair value and risk
management: assessment of business model within which the
assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual
terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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B. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the
standalone financial statements for every period ended are included below:

* Nofte 26 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, the present value of the
gratuity obligation and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due fo the complexities involved in the valuation and its longterm
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporfing date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the inferest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries.
Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Note 31 -Impairment of financial assets: key assumptions in determining the average loss rate

e Note 30 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments: When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques as per the valuation policy. The inputs fo these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of the respective financialinstruments.

b. Revenue Recognition

e Dividendincome is accounfed on an accrual basis when the right fo receive the dividend is established. Thisis generally when
the shareholders approve the dividend.

* Income from interest on deposits and interest-bearing securities is recognized on a time proportion basis taking info account
the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

¢ Allotherfeesare accounted foras and when they become due.
c. Financial Instruments.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
anotherentity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

The Company initially recognizes loans and advances on the date on which they are originated. All other financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, which is the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provision of the
instrument.

Financialinstrument are initially measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs are added to, subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are
measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Classifications

The Company classifies ifs financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair value depending on the
Company’s business model formanaging the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

iii. Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business modelin which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this
best reflects the way the businessis managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

*  How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and
reporfed fo the entity'skey management personnel.

*  How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

¢ The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular, whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash
flows through the sale of the assets.
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* The frequency, volume, and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the
Company’s stated objective formanaging the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized.

* Therisks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how
those risks are managed.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as

well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing oramount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Debt Instruments at amortized cost

Afinancial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

* [tis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assetsin order to collect contractual cash flows.

* The contractualterms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.
Affer initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking intfo account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortizationisincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from ECL impairment are recognized in
the profit orloss.

Debt instrument at fair value through other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Afinancial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

* |tis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

« The contractualterms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income is recognized basis EIR method and the losses arising from ECL impairment
are recognized in the profit orloss.

Debt instrument atfair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any debtinstrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The Company classifies its investment in financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. The said classification depends upon
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flow. The said assets are
measured at fair value whose gains and losses shall be recorded in statement of profit orloss.

Financial assets not measured atfair value
The carrying value less expected credit loss provision of other financial assets are assumed to approximate their fair values due to
their short-term nature.

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Company changes its
business model formanaging financial assets.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e.removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

* Therightstoreceive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligationto paythe received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘passthrough’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. If the Company evaluates that substantial risk
and reward have not been transferred, the Company continues fo recognize the transferred asset. If the Company evaluates

that substantial risk and rewards are neither transferred nor retained and the control of the asset is also not transferred, the
Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognizes an associated liability. The fransferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated
to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain orloss that had been recognized in OClis recognized in profit orloss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financialliabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financialliabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at amortized cost, as
appropriate.

Allfinancial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of amortized cost, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Classification and subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortizationisincluded as finance costsin the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss

When a financial liability contract contains one or more embedded derivative, the Company may designate the entire hybrid
contract as at fair value through profit andloss unless:

* the embedded derivative(s) does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract; or

e it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar hybrid instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded
derivative(s) is prohibited, such as a prepayment option embedded in a loan that permits the holder to prepay the loan for
approximately its amortized cost.

The fair valuation changes on the liabilities subsequently measured at FVTPL account are recognized in profit and loss account
except the changesin the liability’s credit risk, which isrecognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial liabilities not measured atfair value

The carrying value less provision of other financial liabilities are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term
nature.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes a
financial liability when its w
contractual obligations are =

discharged or cancelled or expires.

Modifications of financial assets and
financiallliabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Company evaluates
whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially |
different. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from
the original financial asset are
deemed fo have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is
derecognized and a new financial
assetisrecognized at fair value.
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If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result
in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a
modification is carried out because of financial difficulfies of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented tfogether with
impairment losses. In other cases, itis presented asinferestincome.

Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability or equity based on the modified ferms is recognized aft fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability or equity recognized
with modified termsis recognized in profit orloss orin other equity in case the same is a transaction with the shareholders.

Offsetting of financial instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).

Fair value measurement

Fairvalue is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly tfransaction between market
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company
has access at that date.

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company has classified the financial instruments based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarized below:

Level 1 financial instrument, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2 financial instrument, if there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take intfo account in pricing a transaction like quoted price for
identicalinstruments, interest rates & yields adjusted for condition and location of the asset or fo the extent fo which it relates.

Level 3 financialinsfrument, if adjustments are based on one or more unobservable inputs where there is no market activity for the
asset or liability at the measurement date The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is
normally the tfransaction price i.e. the fair value of consideration given or received. If the Company determines that the fair value
on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to
measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit orloss on an appropriate basis over the life of
the instfrument.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Company recognizesimpairment allowances for ECL on all the financial assets that are not measured at FVTPL:
e Financial assets that are debt instruments

* Bankbalance

* Ofherfinancial assets

No impairmentlossisrecognized on equity investments.

ECL are probability weighted estimate of creditlosses. They are measured as follows:

* Financial assets that are not creditimpaired — as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting dafe.

* Financial assets with significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired — as the present value of all cash shortfalls that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset.

* Financial assets that are credit impaired — as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated cash flows.

With respect to other financial assets, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For
financial assets at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date, not covered by forward
exchange confracts, are translated at year end rates. The resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Non-monetary assets are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Initial Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation as adjusted forimpairment, if any.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as a
separate item (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in statement of Profit and loss.

{
;

measured as per the previous GAAP and used it as its deemed
cost as at the date of tfransition.

Subsequent Measurement ’-_,,.
=
ol

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that —-f'""‘h-....
the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure - ~
will flow to the Company.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value a "
for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, . ‘ .-
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Impairment

Carrying amounts of assets or a Cash Generating Unit (*CGU") are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether
there is any impairment. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss whenever the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount..

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided as per straight-line method from the date of addition over the estimated useful life of the asset. The
management believes that depreciation rates currently used, fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment, which are in accordance with lives prescribed under Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial year end and changes, if any, are
accounted for prospectively.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-base payment arrangements

The Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) to be administered through Utkarsh ESOP
Welfare Trust and also issues options to employees which are not routed through the Trust. The Scheme provides that subject to
continued employment with the Company, the employees are granted an option fo acquire equity shares of the Company
that may be exercised within a specified period.

The grant-dafe fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted fo employees is generally recognized
as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period of the awards. The amount recognized as an
expense isadjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service conditions are expected to be met, such that
the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the related service conditions at the vesting
date.

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The Company has
following defined contribution plans:

Provident Fund

The Company contributes to mandatory government administered provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme as
the Company does not carry any further obligation, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. The contributions
are accounted foron an accrual basis and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company'’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earnedin the current and prior periods, discountfing that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in Other
Comprehensive Income. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the
discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year
after taking info account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense
(income) and other expensesrelated to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit orloss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed orwhen a planis curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service
or the gain orloss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs..
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v. Otherlong-term employee benefits

Accumulated absences expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months is treated as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long-term employee benefits of accumulating
compensated absences is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

i. Incometax

Income tax expense comprises of current tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except fo the extent that it relates fo items recognized
directly in equity orin Other Comprehensive Income.

Currenttax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporfing date

.Curren’r tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

* hasalegally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

¢ infendseitherto settle on anet basis, or fo realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
j.  Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI, balances with other banks and money at call and short
noftice.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the Statement of Financial Position.
Segmentreporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

The board of directors of the Company has been identified as the chief operating decision maker for the Company.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

I.  Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as aresult of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are defermined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the fime value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

The provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A disclosure for Contingent Liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
noft, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligationin respect of which the likelihood of
ouftflow of resourcesis remote, no provision or disclosure ismade.

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets
atthe end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed, where aninflow of economic benefitis probable.
m. Leases
The Company’slease asset class primarily consists of leases for buildings.

A contractis, or contains, alease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset for a fime in exchange for
aconsideration.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months orless. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

n. Earning per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the posttax effect of exceptional item:s, if
any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of exceptionalitems, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and
other charges to expense orincome (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares on account of
employee stock options, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

o. CashFlow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available information.

Suman Saurabh
Managing Director and CEO
DIN: 07132387
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
(Formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

Report onthe Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements of Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Consolidated other comprehensive income), Consolidated statement of changes in equity and Consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafterreferred to asthe "Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration
of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiary as were audited by the other auditors, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013("“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section
133 of the Act read with the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and Consolidated profit and
total comprehensive income (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
onthatdate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India fogether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw aftention to Note 41 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements which specifies that there are 89 legal cases
pending aggregating to 30.29 million which may impact the Group’s operations as they are uncertainin nature. Our opinion is not
modifiedin respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report Including Annexures to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report, and Shareholder Information, but does not include the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the other information
and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
statements or ourknowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in thisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the respective Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in
the Group eitherintends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, orhas no realistic alfernative but fo do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(l) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether adequate internal financial controls systems are in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

* Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exits related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability fo continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company fo cease to continue as a going
concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying fransactions and eventsin
amanner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entity or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entity included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this
regard are further described in paragraph of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including and significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we may have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bearon ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.




Other Matters:

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 2,78,354.41 million
as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of Rs. 38,894.06 million, total profit after tax of Rs. (4,145.99) million, and net cash outflows of Rs.
4,855.79 million for the year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not
modifiedin respect of the above matters withrespect to ourreliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary forthe purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS
financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports
of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary
company, none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a
directorinterms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company’sinternal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) Withrespectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiary, as
notedinthe "Other Matters” paragraph:

I. The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 31 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

ii.  Provision has been made in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS,
for material foreseeable losses, on long ferm contracts including derivative contracts. Refer Note 16 to the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statementsin respect of suchitems asit relates to the Group.

iii. There are no amounts which are required fo be transferred to the Investor Education and profection Fund by the Holding
Company orits subsidiary company incorporated in India during the year ended 31st March 2025.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced orloaned
orinvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to orin any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly orindirectly lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Group from any person or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whetherrecorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our nofice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Holding Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. The final dividend proposed in the previous
year and declared and paid during the current year by the Subsidiary Company is in compliance with the provisions of
Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.




Vi.

Vii.

2)

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports of the statutory
auditors of such subsidiary company incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the
current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

Based on our examination, which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors of the subsidiary
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India have used accounting software for maintaining books of account which
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that have operated throughout the year for all relevant
tfransactionsrecorded in the software system:s.

Further, during the course of audit, we and respective other auditors of above referred subsidiary, whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management of the Holding Company, have not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

Further, in accordance with the requirements of the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
applicable with effect from April 1, 2023, the audit trail feature has been operated throughout the financial yearended
March 31, 2025, for alltransactions recorded in the software, and the audit trailhas not been tfampered with and the audit trail
hasbeen preserved by the Company and its subsidiary as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

With respect to the matters specified in the Paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (‘CARQO’)
issued by the Central Governmentin terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, o be included in the Auditor's Report, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by the auditors of the respective
companies included in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Holding Company and based on the identification of matters of
qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO reports by the respective component auditors and provided to us, we report
that the auditors of such companies have not reported any qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO report

For DMKH & CO, CA Manish Kankani
Place: Mumbai Chartered Accountants Partner
Date: 29 August 2025 Firm Registration Number: 116886W Membership Number: 158020

UDIN:




Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members of
Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (hereinafter referred fo as
“the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements of the Holding Company and such company incorporated in India under the Act which is its
subsidiary company, as of that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
which are companies incorporated in India has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial control over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on
the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reportfing criteria established by the respective companies considering the essenfial components of infernal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in
India, internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note") issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethicalrequirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls overfinancial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in allmaterial respects.
Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of internalfinancial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporfing is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

a. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

b. Provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of the company; and

c. Providereasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company'sassets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(l) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company incorporated in India based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such company incorporatedin India.

Ouropinionis not modified in respect of thismatter.

For DMKH & CO, CA Manish Kankani
Place: Mumbai Chartered Accountants Partner
Date: 29 August 2025 Firm Registration Number: 116886W Membership Number: 158020

UDIN:
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Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 33,317.37 28,464.66
Bank balance other than above 3 1,091.08 1,825.86
Loans 4 180,404.62 1,76,500.05
Investments 5 50,224.67 36,501.58
Other financial assets 6 2,333.15 2,774.43
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 7 782.70 311.59
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 3,015.25 1,519.58
Property, plant and equipment 8 5,961.74 5,014.85
Capital work-in-progress 8 630.05 102.84
Other intangible assets 9 210.41 241.71
Other non-financial assets 10 472.39 177.35
Total assets 278,443.43 2,53,434.50
Equity and Liabilities
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
- Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises 11 101.36 107.12
" - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 11 306.11 387.39
enterprises and small enterprises "
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 12 18,454.23 34,904.54
Lease liability 49 3,453.41 2,716.73
Deposits 13 222,352.97 1,79,975.81
Subordinated liabilities 14 5,158.86 2,098.12
Other financial liabilities 15 3,306.61 3,825.92
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 97.03 97.03
Provisions 16 58.74 130.02
Other non-financial liabilities 17 71.85 80.96
Equity
Equity share capital 18 993.72 987.44
Other equity 19 16,285.42 19,241.64
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 17,279.14 20,229.08
Non controlling interest 19 7,803.12 8,881.78
Total liabilities and equity 278,443.43 2,53,434.50
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
for DMKH & Co. for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 116886W /066580 CIN: U65191UP1990PLC045609
Manish Kankani Suman Saurabh G.S. Sundararajan*
Partner Managing Director and CEO Chairperson
Membership No: 158020 DIN: 07132387 DIN: 00361030
Neeraj Kumar Tiwari Harshit Agrawal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS: 12101 ACA: 417412
Place: Mumbai Place: Varanasi & Chennai*

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Statement of Consolidated profit and loss For the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year

for the year

Note ended ended
I. Revenue from operations 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income 20 38,453.66 30,928.36
Fees and commission income 21 440.40 475.28
Net gain on fair value changes 25
Total revenue from operations 38,894.06 31,403.64
Il. Other income 22 2,662.13 2,431.86
I1l. Total income
41,556.19 33,835.50
IV. Expenses
Finance costs 23 17,143.85 12,981.62
Fees and commission expense 24 1,218.64 631.48
Net loss on fair value changes 25 242.18 -
Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category
Impairment on financial instruments 26 13,698.54 3,783.76
Employee benefits expenses 27 8,536.41 7,397.36
Depreciation and amortisation 28 1,354.79 1,088.92
Others expenses 29 4,916.40 3,568.30
Total expenses 47,110.81 29,451.44
V. Profit/(loss) before tax (5,554.62) 4,384.06
Tax Expense:
Current tax 7 264.86 1,803.51
Deferred tax 7 (1,596.53) (717.80)
VI. Profit for the year (4,222.95) 3,298.35
VIl. Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation 33.85 6.93
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (8.55) (1.82)
Subtotal (A) 25.30 5.11
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Debt securities measured at FVTOCI - reclassified to other comprehensive income - 317.69
- Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - (79.96)
Subtotal (B) - 237.73
Other comprehensive income (A + B) 25.30 242.84
VIII. Total comprehensive income for the year (4,197.65) 3,541.19
IX. Profit for the year attributable to :
- Equity holders of the parent (3,126.17) 2,437.58
- Non-confrolling interest (1,096.78) 860.77
X. Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to :
- Equity holders of the parent 18.58 179.10
- Non-conftrolling interest 6.72 63.74
XI. Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to :
- Equity holders of the parent INR (3,107.59) 2,616.69
- Non-conftrolling interest INR (1,090.06) 924.50
XIl. Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per share of INR 10.00 each 2 (42.66) 33.56
Diluted earnings per share of INR 10.00 each (42.50) 33.19

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
CIN: U651921UP1990PLC045609

Suman Saurabh
Managing Director and CEO

for DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 116886W /066580

Manish Kankani
Partner

G.S. Sundararajan®
Chairperson

Membership No: 158020 DIN: 07132387 DIN: 00361030
Neeraj Kumar Tiwari Harshit Agrawal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS: 12101 ACA: 417412

Place: Varanasi & Chennai*
Date: August 29, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 29, 2025




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ending 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year

Note

For the year

ended ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax (5554.62) 4,384.06
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1354.79 1,088.92
Impairment provision/ write offs 13698.54 3,783.76
Net (gain) / loss in fair value changes 242.18 -
Finance costs 17143.85 12,981.62
Interest income on investments (2709.59) (2,112.40)
Interest income on Loans (34234.33) (27,916.56)
Interest income on term deposits (93.79) (75.07)
Interest income on RBI Reverse Repo, TREPS Reverse Repo, Call / Term Lending) (1415.95) (824.33)
Employee share based expense 221.60 28.98
Impairment on non-financial asset 12.56 3.60
Profit/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (2.40) -
Profit/Loss on sale of investments (118.93) -
Operational cash flows from interest -
Interest paid on Deposits 14116.38) (9,301.53)
Interest received on Loans and Advances 36351.36 29,301.84
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 10,778.88 11,342.89
Adjustments for:
(Increase) in loans (19715.88) (46,182.78)
(Increase) in other financial assets (109.12) (836.32)
Decrease/ (increase) in other non-financial asset (295.04) (31.83)
Increase in deposits 40883.13 37,561.80
Increase in other financial liability (518.85) 1,260.58
Increase in other non-financial liability (9.11) (62.46)
Increase in trade payables (87.05) 74.40
Increase in provision (49.99) 12.90
Cash flow from operations 30,876.98 3,139.19
Income tax paid (735.97) (1,911.30)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 30,141.01 1,227.89
Il. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments (including capital work in progress) (1388.32) (563.25)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 12.77 2.32
Purchase of infangible assets (127.62) (164.92)
Purchase of investments (12881.03) (8,200.43)
Acquisition by Non-Controlling Interest 91.56 4,716.85
Deposits in other bank balances (1578.57) (4,307.60)
Withdrawals in other bank balances 2343.58 2,529.26
Interest received 4120.36 2,908.92
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (9,407.28) (3,078.84)
1ll. Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of equity shares 51.28 59.19
Share application money received 0.23 -
Payment to shareholders under shareholder agreement (300.00) -
Payment of lease liabilities (828.55) (710.06)
Repayment of borrowings (27695.48) 22,160.00
Proceeds from borrowings 11540.00 (14,716.74)
Proceeds from issue of subordinated liabilities 3,049.99 -
Reapyment of subordinated liabilities - (246.02)
Dividend paid (170.59) -
Interest paid (1527.90) (1,356.41)
Net cash (used in)/ from financing activities (C) (15,881.02) 5,189.97
Refer Note 33 for Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 4,852.71 3,339.02
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalent 28464.66 25,125.64
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent 33317.37 28,464.66




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ending 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

For composition of cash & cash equivalents
Notes: 3

1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS 7) on Cash Flow Statement.
2. Figures in Bracket represents Cash Outflow.
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

for DMKH & Co. for and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. 116886W /066580 CIN: U65191UP1990PLC045609

Manish Kankani Suman Saurabh G.S. Sundararajan*

Partner Managing Director and CEO Chairperson

Membership No: 158020 DIN: 07132387 DIN: 00361030
Neeraj Kumar Tiwari Harshit Agrawal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS: 12101 ACA: 417412

Place: Mumbai Place: Varanasi & Chennai*

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

3 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in RBI current accounts

- in deposits accounts (with maturity less than three months)
- call/nofice lending (with less than three months maturity)

- ferm lending (with less than three months maturity)

- term lending (with maturity less than three months maturity)
Reverse repo

Less : Allowance for Impairment loss

Total (A)

Balances with banks earn interest at fixed rates. Short term deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit
rates. The Company has not taken bank overdraft, therefore the cash and cash
equivalent for cash flow statementis same as cash and for cash equivalent given above.
Bank balance other than above

Fixed deposits with bank not considered as cash and cash equivalents

Less : Allowance for Impairment loss
Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Information about the Group’s exposure to fair value measurement and credit and
market risks are included in Note 40 and 41 respectively.

4 Loans

At Amortised cost

(A)

(i) Bills Purchased and Bills Discounted
(i) Loans repayable on Demand
Term Loans

Total (A) - Gross

Less : Allowance for Impairment loss
Total (A) - Net

(B)

(i) Secured by tangible assets and intangible assets
(i) Covered by Bank/Government guarantees

(i) Unsecured

Total (B) - Gross

Less : Allowance for Impairment loss

Total (B) - Net

(€

(i) Priority Sector

(i) Banks

(i) Others

Total (C) - Gross

Less : Allowance for Impairment loss
Total (C) - Net

All the Loans above are Loans in India.
For details pertaing to Allowance for Impairment Loss refer note 41

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

792.73 790.21
435.44 745.74
6,750.09 6,688.79
1,250.00 3,754.02
24,091.87 16,487.86
33,320.13 28,466.62
2.76 1.96
33,317.37 28,464.66
1,826.45
1,091.42 1,826.45
1,091.42 0.59
0.34
1,091.08 1,825.86
34,408.45 30,290.52
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6,862.92 4,628.90
189,741.83 1,77,622.20
196,604.75 1,82,251.10
(16,200.13) (5,751.05)
180,404.62 1,76,500.05
84,018.75 62,646.27
290.83 0.19
112,295.17 1,19,604.63
196,604.75 1,82,251.09
(16,200.13) (5,751.05)
180,404.62 1,76,500.04
144,681.40 1,42,307.67
51,923.35 39,943.43
196,604.75 1,82,251.10
(16,200.13) (5,751.05)
180,404.62 1,76,500.05




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

At Fair Value
Amortised Through Through Designated at Sub- Total  Others Total
cost other profit or fair value
comprehensive  loss through profit
income or loss
5 Investments: (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(2)+(3)+(4) (&)  (7)=(1)+(5)+(¢6)

Government securities 37,512.06 - 5,348.01 - 5,348.01 - 42,860.07
Debt securities - - 67.89 - 67.89 - 67.89
Equity instruments - 7,309.89 7,309.89 7,309.89
Total - Gross (A) 37,512.06 - 12,725.79 - 12,725.79 - 50,237.85
(i) Investments in India 37,512.06 - 12,725.79 - 12,725.79 - 50,237.85
(ii) Investments outside India - - - - - - -
Total (B) 37,512.06 - 12,725.79 - 12,725.79 - 50,237.85
Less: Allowance for (13.18) - - - - - (13.18)
Impairment loss (C)

Total - Net D= (A)-(C) 37,498.88 - 12,725.79 - 12,725.79 - 50,224.67

During the year ended March 31, 2025, pursuant to the implementation of the Master Direction - Classification, Valuation and
Operation of Investment Portfolio of Commercial Banks (Directions) 2023, effective from April 01, 2024, covering regulatory change
by the RBI related to restrictions on sale of securities from HTM portfolio, the group had reassessed its business model and concluded
that investment in Government securitites are primarily intfended to collect contractual cash flows being solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Consequently, the group has reversed accumulated fair value loss of Rs.
366.81 million on such investment in Government securities and related deferred tax of Rs. 92.32 million in other equity on April 1,
2024.

As at 31 March 2025

Government securities - 33,033.26 33,033.26 - 33,033.26
Debt securities - 3,478.33 3,478.33 - 3,478.33
Equity instruments - - -
Total - Gross (A) - 36,511.59 - - 36,511.59 - 36,511.59
(i) Investments in India - 36,511.59 - - 36,511.59 - 36,511.59
(ii) Investments outside India - - - - - - -
Total (B) - 36,511.59 - - 36,511.59 - 36,511.59
Less: Allowance for - (10.01) - - (10.01) - (10.01)
Impairment loss (C)

Total - Net D= (A)-(C) - 36,501.58 - - 36,501.58 - 36,501.58

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

6 Other financial assets

Inferest accrued on investments - 542.89
Bank deposit (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date) 0.00 -
Advances recoverable in cash 2,332.89 2,230.89
Other recoverables 1.09 0.94

2,333.98 2,774.72
Less : Allowance for Impairment loss 0.83 0.29
Total 2,333.15 2,774.43

Information about the group's exposure to fair value measurement and credit and market risks are included in note 40 and 41




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

7 Income tax
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

Current tax

Current period (a) 264.86 1,803.51
Changes in estimates related to prior years (b) = -
Deferred tax (c) - -
Attributable to- - -
Originatfion and reversal of temporary differences (1,596.53) (717.80)

Sub-total (c) (1,596.53) (717.80)
Tax expense (a)+(b)+(c) (1,331.67) 1,085.71

B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Before Tax (expense)/ Net of Before Tax (expense)/ Net of
tax income tax tax income tax

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/asset 33.85 (8.55) 25.31 6.93 (1.82) 511

Debt instruments fair value through other comprehensive - - - 317.69 (79.96) 237.73

33.85 (8.55) 25.31 324.62 (81.78) 242.84

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

. year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars

%o Amount % Amount
Profit before tax 25.17% (5,554.62) 25.17% 4,384.06
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (1,397.99) 1,103.38
Effect of:
Permanent differences -0.40% 22.05 0.33% 14.35
Tax exemption/deduction 0.82% (45.70) -1.09% (47.82)
Change in unrecognised temporary differences -0.01% 0.59 0.02% 0.75
Changes in estimate related to prior years 0.00% 0.00% -
Changes in tax rate 0.00% 0.00% -
MAT credit written off 0.00% = 0.00% -
Others -1.61% 89.38 0.34% 15.06
Effective tax rate/tax expense (1,331.67) 1,085.71




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

D. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Movement of deferred tax assets / liabilities presented in the balance sheet

Particulars

Deferred tax assets:

As at
31 March 2024

Recognised in profit or Recognised in OCI

loss during the year

during the year

Recognised in OCI
during the year

As at
31 March 2025

Loans 1,095.86 1,507.11 2,602.97
Lease Liabilities 135.38 15.26 150.64
Others 400.29 28.22 428.51
Property, plant and equipment (223.07) 16.35 (206.72)
1,408.45 1,566.94 - 2,975.40
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 6.61 6.61
Others (117.74) (29.59) 8.55 92.32 (46.46)
(111.13) (29.59) 8.55 92.32 (39.85)
Net deferred tax assets 1,519.58 1,596.53 (8.55) (92.32) 3,015.25
Particulars As at Recognised in profit or Recognised in OCI Recognised in OCI As at
01 April 2023  loss during the year during the year during the year 31 March 2024
Deferred tax assets:
Loans 888.60 207.26 1,095.86
Lease Liabilities 131.14 4.24 135.38
Others (101.64) 501.92 400.29
Property, plant and equipment (229.36) 6.28 (223.07)
688.74 719.71 - 1,408.45
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 6.61 6.61
Others (201.43) 1.91 81.78 (117.74)
(194.82) 1.9 81.78 (111.13)
Net deferred tax assets 883.56 717.80 (81.78) 1,519.58

E. Unrecognised deferred tax balances

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable profit

will be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom.

Particulars
Deductible temporary differences
Total

F. Uncertain tax positions

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

0.59

1.51

0.59

Refer Note 31 on contfingent liabilities and commitment relating to income

tax matter under dispute.

Particulars
Current Tax
Total

As at 31 March 2025

1.51

As at 31 March 2024

782.70

311.59

782.70

311.59




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

8 Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
T 0z e 5 :3 2 3
<< GE’ e % ™ < << a>’~ % ™ 5 ™ Q ™ Q
Particulars -8 = 2 2 5 < -9 o g 5 < 5 5 e
o N 2, 5 a 0w Y TN < g_ w9 0w Y w 9
e o ° a <O " = a <O <O <O
< < < a = < 2 a = = s
Owned Assets
Leasehold improvement 576.59 - 18628 258 760.29 193.40 71.51 1.19 263.72 496.58  383.19
Computers 75225 - 309.82 57.92 1,004.15 492,61  218.76 56.56  654.81 349.34  259.64
Vehicles 65.95 - 3378 6.83 92.90 12.91 16.46  2.47 26.90 66.00 53.04
Office equipment 403.71 - 12476 3.19 52528 216.16 98.80 3.13 311.83 213.46  187.55
Electrical equipment 535.05 - 72.52 403 603.54 181.85 67.02 3.03 24584 357.70  353.19
Furniture and fixtures 656.98 - 65.20 6.08 716.10 328.59 88.41  4.42  412.58 303.52  328.39
Generator 111.34 - 68.67 132 178.69 42.20 1438 0.93 55.65 123.04 69.14
Land 121.20 - - - 121.20 - - - - 121.20  121.20
Building 1,001.30 - - - 1,001.30 34.21 16.69 - 50.90 950.40  967.09
Right of use assets
Premises 3,776.19  -1,275.13 - 5,051.32 1,534.87 588.44 - 2,123.31 | 2,928.01 2,241.32
ATM Machines 107.69 - 1700  1.06 123.63 56.60 15.43  0.90 71.13 52.49 51.09
Total 8,108.25 - 2,153.16 83.0110,178.40 | 3,093.40 1,195.90 72.63 4,216.67 | 5,961.74 5,014.85
Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
R 3| 3 5 3 I 8
. € £ £ 2 88| g $ 2 B8] 5] 38
Particulars e & = 2 G S -9 2 2 G S G S w =
o 2 T & g5| °F T & 25| 425 “%
2 2 2 8 s | & S B s = =
Owned Assets
Leasehold improvement 500.80 78.10 231  576.59 134.67  60.05 1.31 193.40 383.19  366.13
Computers 640.55 - 18826 76.57 75225 403.79 164.72 75.90 492.61 259.64  236.76
Vehicles 2644 - 4089 1.38 65.95 5.00 8.49  0.58 12.91 53.04 21.44
Office equipment 321.90 - 8371 1.90  403.71 153.10  64.92 1.86 216.16 187.55  168.81
Electrical equipment 502.47 - 3428 1.70 535.05 127.14  56.21 1.49 181.85 353.19  375.33
Furniture and fixtures 633.45 - 2710 3.57 656.98 26486 67.12  3.39 328.59 328.39  368.59
Generator 85.57 - 2577 - 111.34 32.40 9.80 - 42.20 69.14 53.17
Land 121.20 - - - 121.20 - - - - 121.20  121.20
Building 1,001.30 - - - 1,001.30 17.47 1673 - 34.21 967.09  983.83
Right of use assets
Premises 3,51437 - 261.82 - 3,776.19 1,097.56 437.31 - 1,534.87 | 2,241.32 2,416.80
ATM Machines 97.12 - 10.57 - 107.69 43.94  12.66 - 56.60 51.09 53.18
Total 744516 - 750.49 87.42 8,108.25 | 2,279.93 898.00 84.52 3,093.40 | 5,014.85 5,165.24

For capital commitments made by the group refer note 31
Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP):

Ageing Schedule As O a 0
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Projects in Progress 630.05 - - - 630.05
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 630.05 - - - 630.05
Ageing Schedule As on 31 March 2024
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Projects in Progress 102.84 - - - 102.84
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 102.84 - - - 102.84

There are no projects where the completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan
as at 31 March 2025 and as at 31 March 2024.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

9 Intangible assets

10 Other non-financial assets

As at
31 March 2025

Gross Block Amortisation Net Block

= - wn = = ) <
I S -9 o g -9 -9
<< GE’ § 4 ] << g 8 ® »Q

Particulars -8 = 2 2 5 < -~ o o 5 5.
5N 3 5 a @ 2 BN £ a 2 s 23
@ £o) o o <O * = a <O <O
< < < a = < 2 a = =

Owned Assets

Computer software 824.29 - 127.62 951.91 582.58 158.92 741.50 210.41

Right of use assets

Core banking software 16558 - - 165.58 165.58 - 165.58 -

Total 989.87 - 127.62 - 1,117.48 748.16 158.92 - 907.08 210.41

Gross Block Amortisation Net Block

= - < = = < i)
= € N S o q pa
<o & 2 2 58 | g ¢ g 58 =8

Particulars -9 = 2 2 5 < ] o o 5 5.
5N 3 B a @ 2 5N £ a 2 s 23
) '5' k] K% <O %) = 0 < O < O
< < < a = < 2 a = =

Owned Assets

Computer software 659.40 164.90 824.29 416.55 166.05 582.58 241.71

Right of use assets

Core banking software 16558 ~ 165.58 141.91 23.68 165.58 -

Total 82498 ~ 164.90 989.87 558.46 189.73 748.16 241.71

As at

31 March 2024

Capital advances 63.89 3.77
Staff advances - -
Prepaid expenses 408.50 173.58
Total 472.39 177.35
11 Trade payables
Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 46) 101.36 107.12
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 306.11 387.39
Total 407.47 494.51
Trade payables ageing schedule:
Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
Particulars . Total
Unbilled | Notdue | Lessthan1year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years
(1) MSME 100.80 0.57 - - - - 101.36
(ii) Others 303.00 0.51 - - 2.59 - 306.11
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues -Others - - - - - - -
Total 403.80 1.08 - - 2.59 -| 407.47
As on 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
Particulars " Total
Unbilled | Notdue | Lessthan1year | 1-2years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years
(1) MSME 86.93 B 20.19 - B B 107.12
(ii) Others 342.07 B 29.79 15.53 B T 387.3%
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - B - - B - -
(iv) Disputed dues -Others - B - - B - -
Total 429.00 B 49.98 15.53 B | 494.51




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
. - 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
12 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

At Amortised cost

Term loans

- from banks

- from financial institution 18,454.23 33,262.61

- from others - -
RBI repo - 1,641.93
Total 18,454.23 34,904.54
Borrowings in India 18,454.23 34,904.54
Borrowings outside India - -
Total 18,454.23 34,904.54

Information about the group's exposure to fair value measurement and credit and market risks are included in note 40 & 41
Information about the lease liabilities is included in Note 49

Terms of Borrowings (Other than debt securities)

Nature of Facility Amount | Contractual| ROl |Date of first | Terms of repayment Date of
o/s amount o/s repayment maturity

As at 31 March 2025

ecured Refinance from Financial Institution

NABARD Refinance 8* 1.26 - | 8.50% | 30-Aug-20 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 28-Feb-25
NABARD Refinance 9* 3.49 - | 8.50% | 30-Sep-20 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 29-Mar-25
NABARD Refinance 12 1,009.07 1,000.00 |8.60% | 30-Jun-23 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 31-Mar-26
NABARD Refinance 13 815.92 810.00 | 8.60% | 31-Aug-23 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 31-May-26
NABARD Refinance 14 908.59 900.00 |8.50% | 30-Sep-23 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 31-Dec-25
NABARD Refinance 15 3,525.42 3,500.00 | 8.55% | 31-Aug-24 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 30-Nov-26
NABARD Refinance 16 1,814.39 1,800.00 |8.50% | 31-Mar-25 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 30-Jun-27
NABARD Refinance 17 3,021.53 3,000.00 |8.45% | 31-Jul-25 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 31-Oct-27
NABARD Refinance 18 3,021.53 3,000.00 | 8.45% | 31-Aug-25 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 30-Nov-27
NABARD Refinance 19 3,002.07 3,000.00 | 8.40% | 30-Sep-25 | Principal Quarterly /Interest Monthly | 31-Dec-27
Refinance SIDBI 461.52 460.00 | 5.50% | 1-Mar-27 | Principal Bullet /Interest Monthly 1-Mar-27
Refinance SIDBI 541.79 540.00 | 5.50% | 1-Mar-27 | Principal Bullet /Interest Monthly 1-Mar-27
Refinance NHB 327.64 327.64 | 4.90% 1-Apr-23 | Principal & Interest Quarterly 1-Oct-29

*Amount outstanding includes interest on borrowings paid in the next financial year

Nature of Facility Amount | Contractual| ROl |Date of first | Terms of repayment Date of
o/s amount o/s repayment maturity

As at 31 March 2024

Secured borrowing in the form
of Inter Bank Paticipatory
Certificates (IBPC)

HDFC BANK LIMITED 2,060.20 | 2,000.00 | 6.50% | 10-Apr-24 | Bullet repayment 10-Apr-24
MIZORAM RURAL BANK 1,723.71 1,700.00 | 5.50% | 26-Jun-24 | Bullet repayment 26-Jun-24
HDFC BANK LIMITED 2,032.98 | 2,000.00 | 6.50% | 30-May-24 | Bullet repayment 30-May-24
YES BANK LIMITED 2,015.74 | 2,000.00 | 5.40% | 5-Aug-24 | Bullet repayment 5-Aug-24
YES BANK LIMITED 3,015.20 | 3,000.00 | 6.00% | 28-Aug-24 | Bullet repayment 28-Aug-24
YES BANK LIMITED 2,001.81 2,000.00 | 6.00% | 23-Sep-24 | Bullet repayment 23-Sep-24
HDFC BANK LIMITED 4,004.80 | 4,000.00 |6.99% | 29-Jul-24 | Bullet repayment 29-Jul-24
Secured Refinance from Financial Institution
NABARD - Refinance 6 302.29 300.00 | 9.00% | 31-Jan-20 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 31-Jul-24
NABARD - Refinance 7 604.33 600.00 | 8.50% | 31-Jul-20 Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 31-Jan-25
NABARD - Refinance 8 402.89 400.00 | 8.50% | 31-Aug-20 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 28-Feb-25
NABARD - Refinance 9 1,010.71 1,000.00 | 8.50% | 30-Sep-20 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 31-Mar-25
NABARD- Refinance 10 1,115.89 1,110.00 | 6.25% | 31-Aug-22 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 31-Jan-25
NABARD- Refinance 11 744.89 740.00 | 6.30% | 30-Sep-22 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 28-Feb-25
NABARD- Refinance 12 2,016.38 | 2,000.00 |8.60% | 30-Jun-23 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 31-Mar-26
NABARD- Refinance 13 1,500.88 1,490.00 | 8.60% | 31-Aug-23 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 31-May-26
NABARD- Refinance 14 2,117.26 | 2,100.00 |8.50% | 30-Sep-23 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 31-Dec-25
NABARD- Refinance 15 5,036.31 5,000.00 | 8.55% | 29-Feb-24 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 30-Nov-26
SIDBI- Refinance 6 670.07 667.20 | 6.55% | 10-May-22 | Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 10-Feb-25
SIDBI- Refinance 7 460.35 460.00 | 5.50% | 9-Apr-24 Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 1-Mar-27
NHB 425.92 425.92 | 4.90% | 1-Jul-23 Principal Half yearly/Interest Monthly | 1-Jan-30
RBI Repo
LTRO - 6 1,641.93 1,500.00 | 4.00% | 12-Dec-24 | Bullet 12-Dec-24

All secured term loans were secured by way of exclusive charge on the standard assets portfolio receivables pertaining to micro
credit loans and cash collateral as per the respective agreements.
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As at As at
i i 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
13 Deposits (at amortized cost)

Deposits
(i) From Banks = 43,279.04
(ii) From Others * 222,352.97 1,36,696.77
Total 222,352.97 1,79,975.81

* Includes deposit received from related parties refer Note no. 36 for the same

14 Subordinated Liabilities (at amortized cost)

Subordinated debt 5,158.86 2,098.12
Total (A) 5,158.86 2,098.12
Subordinated Liabilities in India 5,158.86 2,098.12
Subordinated Liabilities outside India - -
Total (B) 5,158.86 2,098.12

Concentration by location is based on the subscriber country of incorporation.
Information about the Group'’s exposure fo fair value measurement and credit and market risks are included in Note 40 and 41.

Terms of Subordinated liabilities

Nature of Facility Amount Contractual ROI | Date of first Terms of Date of

o/s amount outstanding repayment repayment maturity
As at 31 March 2025

Unsecured

Redeemable non convertible debt - 15 149.57 150.00 10.58% | 30/Aug/25 | Bullet repayment |30/Aug/25
Redeemable non convertible debt - 16 | 1,949.80 1,950.00 12.50% | 26/Jun/27 | Bullet repayment | 26/Jun/27
Redeemable non convertible debt - 17 | 2,000.82 2,000.00 11.00% | 28/Jun/31 | Bullet repayment | 28/Jun/31
Redeemable non convertible debt - 18 | 1,058.67 1,050.00 10.90% | 27/Nov/31 | Bullet repayment |27/Nov/31

As at 31 March 2024

Unsecured
Redeemable non convertible debt - 15 148.38 150.00 10.58% | 30-Aug-25 | Bullet repayment | 30-Aug-25
Redeemable non convertible debt - 16 | 1,949.74 1,950.00 12.50% | 26-Jun-27 | Bullet repayment | 26-Jun-27
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
15 Other financial liabilities
Employee benefits payable 369.09 608.49
Bills payable 1,296.56 1,839.85
Security deposit from staff 64.77 70.03
Expenses payable 400.22 504.57
Client insurance payable 8578 107.85
Others* 1,140.24 695.13
Total 3,306.61 3,825.92
*Others comprises of settlement accounts
16 Provisions
For Employee Benefits
Provision for gratuity * (34.29) 16.44
Provision for leave benefits 42.81 57.64
Allowance on impairment loss on off-book exposure ** 10.27 28.55
Ofthers 39.95 27.39
Total
58.74 130.02

* Refer note 34 for employee benefits.
** For information about allowance on impairment loss on off book exposure refer note 41.

17 Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable 71.85 80.96
Total 71.85 80.96
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
18 Share capital
Authorised
Equity shares
10,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: 10,00,00,000) Equity shares of INR 10 each 1,000 1,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up

Equity shares
9,93,71,965 (Previous year 9,87,44,490) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 993.72 987.44
Total 993.72 987.44

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particular
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares (in units) shares (in units)
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 98,744,490 987.44 9,84,20,960 984.21
Issued during the year 627,475 6.28 3,23,530 3.23
Outstanding at the end of the year 99,371,965 993.72 9,87,44,490 987.44

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Group has single class equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per equity share. They entitle the holders to participate in
the dividends in proportion to the number of shares held.

However, as per the Shareholders Agreement, in the event of liquidation, the net proceeds shall be distributed in the following
manner:

- First preference shall be given to the Investors (ABF, AGIMDC I, AVMS, CDC, FCIEF Il, FCIEF Ill, HDFC Ergo, HDFC Life, HDFC Ltd.,
Hero, ICICI Pru, IFC, JIF, Lok CGF, NMI, rAPM, RBL, Sarva Capital, SFRE-SICAV-SIF, Shriram and SIDBI), shareholders which have
been allotted equity shares pursuant to ESOP plan 2010 and other shareholders (other than the shareholders which have been
allotted equity shares pursuant to grant of employee stock option of the Group excluding ESOP Plan 2010)

- Second preference shall be with shareholders which have been allofted equity shares pursuant to grant of employee stock
options of the Group (excluding ESOP Plan 2010) and sponsors of the Group.

- Remaining shareholders shall have third preference over the residual assets of the Group at the time of liquidation.

(c) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares is set below:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Name of the equity shareholders

Number of % of Holding Number of % of Holding

shares (in units) shares (in units)

NMI Frontier Fund KS, Norway 7,702,602 7.75% 7,702,602 7.80%
British International Investment PLC 13,726,978 13.81% 13,726,978 13.90%
(Formerly known as CDC Group PLC)
Faering Capital India Evolving FUND || 7,660,082 7.71% 7,660,082 7.76%
RBL Bank Limited 8,581,150 8.64% 9,702,950 9.83%
Total 37,670,812 37.91% 38,792,612 39.29%

(d) Shares reserved for issue under options - refer Note 35 for details of share to be issued under employee stock option plan

(e) Pursuant to Shareholder Agreement dated September 27, 2016 (post receipt of RBI's in-principle approval for issue of SFB licence)
and subsequent amendments thereto, Mr. Govind Singh was fo be issued upto three percent (3%) of the paid up share capital of the
promoter company either by the promoter company or by the SFB entity on a fully diluted basis within a period of Seven (7) years
from the date of commencement of banking operationsi.e. upto January 22, 2024.commencement of banking operationsi.e. upto
January 22, 2024.

Subject to RBI approval, the Board of Directors of the Bank has, vide the resolution passed at its meeting held on January 14, 2020,
read along with resolution passed by it on July 20, 2020, approved the grant of options equivalent to 0.60% of the paid up share
capital of the Bank as of March 31, 2020 constituting 45,55,633 Equity Shares to Mr. Govind Singh, Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Bank under the MD & CEO ESOP Plan. However, Inresponse to the Bank's letter dated January 21, 2021 in the
matter seeking RBI approval, Department of Regulation, RBI Central Office vide its reply letter dated June 9, 2021 has stated that the
said remuneration proposal does not have RBl approval.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

The Second Restated and Amended Shareholders’ Agreement dated March 1, 2021, as amended by the First Amendment to the
Second Restated and Amended Shareholders’ Agreement, dated February 21, 2023, and the Second Amendment to the Second
Restated and Amended Shareholders’ Agreement dated April 26, 2024 (“SASRASHA™), (collectively, “SHA") and Amendment of the
Articles of Association of the Company dated May 27, 2024 (as amended from fime to time) executed amongst the Company, the
sponsors and the other shareholders provides that the Company has agreed to issue Equity Shares/Share Equivalents/other
securities that are equal to 3% of the paid up share capital of the Company on a Fully Diluted Basis as on September 27, 2016, to
RAAG Family Private Trust (“Trust”) (“Permitted Sponsor Issuance™), within a specified time period as reflected in the SASRASHA, at a
price notless than [Z109.36 pershare] and asamended from time to time.

Further in this regard, basis discussions between the Company, Trust and the Investors (as defined in the SHA), including calls with
Investors dated [January 18, 2024 and April 30, 2024], it was proposed that the Company makes a settlement to the Trust, for an
amount aggregating to INR 30,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty Crore) (“Settflement amount”), in consideration of the waiver/
termination/ cancellation of the right of the Trust in relation fo the Permitted Sponsor Issuance, which will constitute a full and final
settlement for the Trust, for such waiver/ termination/ cancellation of the Permitted Sponsor Issuance.

Apropos the above, the Board of Directors of the company accorded its approval dated June 07, 2024 towards seftlement to the
trust amounting to %30 crore subject to approval by the shareholders of the company. The Company vide Extra-Ordinary general
meeting of shareholders held on June 29, 2024 received requisite approval towards the above stated payment to the trust and
thereby extinguishment/ waiver/ cancellation of the rights of the trust under the Shareholders Agreement dated April 26, 2024 and
Articles of Association of the Company. Further, the Company provisioned the above amount of 230 crore in its books of accounts
during June 2024, out of which an amount of 10 crore has been paid to the trust dated June 29, 2024 and the balance of 20 crore
paid dated August 12, 2024.
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19

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Other equity
Share Application money pending allotment
Balance as at the beginning of the year 21.54 R
Shares issued during the year (21.54) -
Amount received during the year 0.23 21.54
Balance as at the end of the year 0.23 21.54
Equity component of compound financial instruments
Balance as at the beginning of the year (109.01) (109.01)
Balance as at the end of the year (109.01) (109.01)
Statutory reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,567.65 2,044.25
Add: Transferred from retained earnings 119.85 523.40
Add: Transactions with Non-Controlling Interest (23.00)
Balance as at the end of the year 2,664.50 2,567.65
Capital redemption reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 90.00 90.00
Balance as at the end of the year 90.00 90.00
Securities premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year 6,531.70 6,479.53
Add: Transactions with Non-Controlling Interest - R
Add: Transfer from stock option outstanding 98.66 52.17
Balance as at the end of the year 6,630.36 6,531.70
Other Equity - Fair valuation changes
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,121.67 4,121.67
Balance as at the end of the year
Employees stock options outstanding LAl 4121.67
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Compensation for options granted 82.72 142.75
Less: transfer to retained earnings 0.44 (6.54)
Exercise of stock options (8.75) (35.73)

(32.16) (17.75)
Balance as at the end of the year

. 42.25 82.72

Investment fluctuation reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: transfer from retained earnings 82.33 50.69
Add: Transactions with Non-Controlling Interest (42.21) -
Balance as at the end of the year 135.30 31.64

175.42 82.33
Treasury shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Treasury shares exercised during the year (2.45) (2.45)
Balance as at the end of the year - -
Retained earnings (2.45) (2.45)
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year 6,156.63 4,314.69
Add: Amount transferred to various reserves (3,126.17) 2,437.58
Share issue expenses (337.00) (505.16)
Payment to shareholder's under shareholder agreement (300.00)
Transactions with Non controlling interest 304.61 (90.48)
Balance as at the end of the year 2,698.06 6,156.63
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income
Balance as at the beginning of the year (209.47) (458.68)
Other comprehensive income for the year - 175.42
Loss transferred on reclassification of investments held at FVTOCI* 189.60 -
Transactions with Non-Controlling Interest 19.87 73.79
Balance as at the end of the year - (209.47)
Fair value changes relating to own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year (160.62) (160.62)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year (160.62) (160.62)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans ((gain)/loss)
Balance as at the beginning of the year 6.65 (3.34)
Other comprehensive income for the year 18.58 3.68
Transactions with Non-Controlling Interest (1.19) 6.31
Balance as at the end of the year 24.04 6.65
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
General reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year - -

Additions during the year 2.75 -
Balance as at the end of the year 2.75 -
Capital reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 62.30 76.45
Additions during the year 45.88 (14.15)
Balance as atf the end of the year 108.18 62.30
Non-controlling interest

Balance as at the beginning of the year 8,881.78 3,194.50
Other comprehensive income for the year (1,090.06) 924.50
Acquisition by Non-Controlling Interest** (124.55) 4,727.23
Transfer from retained earnings 85.39 -
Dividend (170.59) -
ESOP reserve of subsidiary 221.16 35.55
Balance as at the end of the year 7,803.12 8,881.78
Total 24,088.51 28,123.42

*Refer Statement of Changes in Equity

**Refer Note 48 for ownership interest held by non-controlling interest add these lines

Nature and purpose of other reserve :

Share Application money pending allotment

This amount represents amount received from share holders against which shares are yet to be allotted.

Equity component of financial instruments

This represents the equity component of the financial liability created on account of classification of equity share capital as financial
liability.

Sfaiuigry reserve

"The said reserve has been created under section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. As per the said section, every Non-Banking
Financial Group shall create areserve fund and transfer a sum notless than 20% of net profit every year before declaration of dividend.
The Group has made an appropriation of 25% out of profits for the year ended March 31, 2023 to the Statutory Reserve pursuant to the
requirements of Section 17 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949."

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve represents amount transferred from surplus in statement of profit and loss towards redemption of
preference shares without fresh issue of capital, as was required under Companies Act, 2013.

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Other Equity - Fair valuation changes

The said reserve represents the premium amount paid by the shareholders transferred on account of reclassification of equity share
capitalasfinancial liabilities as at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017.

ESOP Reserve

The said amount is used to recognise the grant date fair value of optionsissued to employees of Utkarsh Corelnvest Ltd and its subsidiary
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank.

Investment fluctuation reserve

As per the notification issued by Reserve Bank of India on Investment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR) on April 02, 2018, the Group is required fo
create reserve of atleast 2% of the HFT and AFS portfolio, on continuing basis. Notification further says that this should be achieved within
aperiod of 3years. As per the policy, the Group is required fo create Investment Fluctuation Reserve within 2 years starfing from financial
year 2018-19. The Group has created Investment Fluctuation Reserve at 2% on HFT & AFS portfolio. Any adjustment (drawdown) to the
reserve due fo change in HFT & AFS portfoliois permitted only at the end of the accounting year.

Treasury shares

The said amount represents shares issued to the ESOP trust and subsequently issued to the employees of the Group.

Retained Earnings

The said amount represents accumulated surplus/(deficit) of the profits earned by the Group.

Debt instruments through other comprehensive income

This comprises changes in the fair value of debt instruments recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated within equity.
The Group transfers amounts from such component of equity to retained earnings when the relevant debtinstruments are derecognised.
Fair value changes relating to own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

The said amount represents fair value changes on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss relating to own credit
risk whichisrecognised in other comprehensive income.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

"Remeasurements of defined benefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits:

(a) actuarial gains andlosses

(b) the return on plan assets, excluding amountsincluded in netinterest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

(c) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amountsincluded in netinterest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)"
Capital Reserve

The amount relates to profit on sale of HTM securities as stated by RBI guidelines.

Non-controlling interest

The said amount represents non-controlling interest in the subsidiaries.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024

On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial
Instruments measured  Instruments Instruments measured Instruments
at Fair value measured at at Fair value measured at
through OCI Amortised Cost through OCI Amortised Cost
20 Interest Income
Interest income on loan portfolio - 34,234.33 - 27,916.56
Interest income on fixed deposits - 93.79 - 75.07
Interest income on investments - 2,709.59 2,112.40 -
Others (Interest on RBI Reverse Repo, - 1,415.95 - 824.33
TREPS Reverse Repo, Call / Term Lending)
Total - 38,453.66 2,112.40 28,815.96

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

21 Fees and commission income

ATM interchange - acquirer fees 20.53 -
Insurance commission 416.74 448.56
Others 3.13 26.72

440.40 475.28

22 Otherincome
Dividend income - -

Miscellaneous income* 2,649.43 2,421.18
Recovery from written off portfolio 12.70 -

10.68
Total 2,662.13 2,431.86

*includes fee received on sale of PSLCs of INR 1151.66 million
(31 March 2024: 1036.52 million)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024

On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial
Liabilities measured Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities
at Fair value measured at measured at Fair  measured at
. through OCI Amortised Cost  value through OClI Amortised Cost
23 Finance Costs
Interest on deposits - 15,610.41 - 11,174.83
Interest on borrowings - 772.52 - 1,277.41
Interest on lease liabilities - 289.63 - 273.23
Interest on subordinated debt - 465.66 - 3.52
Other borrowing costs - 5.64 - -
Total - 17,143.85 - 12,981.62
For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
24 Fees and commission expenses
ATM interchange - issuer fees 72.69 87.08
Commission on business correspondent 1,145.96 544.40
Total 1,218.44 631.48

25 Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes
Derivative instruments 242.18 -
Reclassified from OCI for sale of investments - -

242.18 -
Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes
Fair value changes :
- Realised (118.93) -
- Unrealised 361.11

Total 242.18 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

For the year ended 31 March 2024

On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial
Instruments measured  Instruments Instruments measured Instruments
at Fair value measured at at Fair value measured at
. " s through OCI Amortised Cost through OCI Amortised Cost
26 Impairment on financial instruments
Loans 13,712.57 3,770.38
Investments 3.17 (1.89) -
Off balance sheet items (18.29) 15.02
Other assefs 1.09 0.25
Total 13,698.54 (1.89) 3,785.65
For information about impairment on financial instruments refer note 41
For the year ended For the year ended
27 Employee benefit expenses 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Salaries and wages 7,593.60 6,755.01
Confribution to provident and other funds 600.20 516.78
Share Based Payments fo employees 250.63 68.80
Staff welfare expenses 91.98 56.77
Total 8,536.41 7,397.36
Refer note 34 for employee benefits.

28 Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,195.87 899.19
Amortisation of intangible assets 158.92 189.73
Total 1,354.79 1,088.92

29 Other expenses
Modification loss on financial instruments - - = -
Repairs and maintenance 207.85 174.87 207.85 174.87
Confribution towards Corporate Social Responsibilities (refer Note 47) 85.50 51.60
Legal and professional charges 304.49 290.62
Auditor’s fees and expenses (Refer Note 30) 24.92 22.06
Subscription and membership expenses 8.48 7.46
Provision for diminution of investments - 27.50
Recruitment expenses 59.85 -
Insurance 203.80 148.37
Director sitting fees 10.80 4.33
Rent (0.00) 9.57
Travelling expenses 316.49 295.44
Printing and stationery 126.84 142.54
Communication expenses 360.26 309.26
Credit bureau expenses 36.59 31.53
Power and fuel 190.10 169.97
Provision against unreconciled balances 12.56 3.60
Office maintenance 56.69 59.49
Software charges 949.88 728.54
Miscellaneous expenses 1,961.30 1,091.56
Total 4,916.40 3,568.30

30 Payment to Auditors
Statutory audit fees 105.51 18.04
Certification and other services 4.41 -
Reimbursement of expenses 5.03 4.02
Total 114.95 22.06
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As at As at
. s . . 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contingent Liabilities, commitments and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

Claims not acknowledged as debts 45.98 38.44
Other items for which the group is contingently liable * 861.19 741.12
Income Tax CIT (A) - Refund 114.30 114.30
Total 907.17 779.56

*Includes capitalcommitments of INR 552.96 (31 March 2024:INR 478.71) and Bank Guarantee of INR 308.23 (31 March 2024:262.41).

The Group'’s pending litigations include claims by counterparties and proceedings pending with tax authorities. The Group has
reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required, and disclosed as
confingent liabilities where applicable.

Commitments
There are no other commitments as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Contingent assets
There are no contingent assets as af 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or
settled. Derivatives have been classified to mature and/or be repaid within 12 months, regardless of the actual contractual
maturities of the products. With regard to loans and advances to customers, the Group uses the same basis of expected repayment
behaviour as used for estimating the EIR. Issued debt reflect the confractual coupon amortisations.

Particulars e —
Within After Total Within After Total

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 29,431.29 3,886.08 33,317.37 | 25,976.82 2,487.84  28,464.66
Bank balance other than above 1,048.84 42.24 1,091.08 1,819.70 6.16 1,825.86
Loans 79,773.26 100,631.37 180,404.62 | 92,836.75 83,663.30 1,76,500.05
Investments 28,225.45  21,999.22 50,224.67 | 23,747.14 12,754.44  36,501.58
Other financial assets 2,066.94 266.21 2,333.15 2,163.83 610.60 2,774.43
Non-financial assets -
Current tax assets (neft) 782.70 - 782.70 124.16 187.43 311.59
Deferred tax assets (net) - 3,015.25 3,015.25 - 1,519.58 1,519.58
Property, plant and equipment 5,961.74 5,961.74 0.06 5,014.79 5,014.85
Capital work-in-progress 630.05 630.05 - 102.84 102.84
Other intangible assets 210.41 210.41 54.28 187.43 241.71
Other non-financial assets 66.81 405.58 472.39 0.19 177.16 177.35
Total Assets 141,395.28 137,048.16 278,443.44 | 1,46,722.93 1,06,711.56 2,53,434.49
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As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Within After Total Within After Total

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
- Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises 101.37 - - 107.12 107.12
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 303.52 2.59 101.37 387.39 387.39
enterprises and small enterprises" 306.11
Borrowings (other than debft securities) 8,252.15 10,202.08 18,454.23 | 27,864.18 7,040.36  34,904.54
Lease liability 864.67 2,588.73 3,453.41 694.35 2,022.38 2,716.73
Deposits 95,784.42 126,568.55 222,352.97 |1,05,954.93 74,020.88 1,79,975.81
Subordinated liabilities 166.77 4,992.10 5,158.86 4.00 2,094.12 2,098.12
Other financial liabilities 3,196.04 110.57 3,306.61 4,313.11 (487.19) 3,825.92
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 97.03 - 97.03 97.03 - 97.03
Provisions 10.26 48.48 58.74 - 130.02 130.02
Other non-financial liabilities 71.85 - 71.85 76.93 4.03 80.96
Total Liabilities 108,848.08 144,513.09 253,361.18 [1,39,499.03 84,824.61 2,24,323.64
Net 32,547.20 (7,464.93) 25,082.26 7,223.90 21,886.95 29,110.85
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
. As at Cashflows Other non-cash As at
Particulars 1 April 2024 adjustments 31 March 2025
Deposits 179,975.81 42,377.08 0.08 222,352.97
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 34,904.54 (16,170.93) (279.38) 18,454.23
Lease liability 2,716.73 (828.5¢) 1,565.24 3,453.41
Subordinated liabilities 2,098.12 3,070.76 (10.01) 5,158.86
Total Liabilities from financing activities 219,695.20 28,448.35 1,275.93 249,419.47
. As at Cashflows Other non-cash As at

Particulars 1 April 2023 adjustments 31 March 2024
Deposits 1,40,540.71 39434.91 0.20 1,79,975.81
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 27,265.66 7643.94 5.06 34,904.54
Lease liability 2,910.98 710.05 515.81 2,716.73
Subordinated liabilities 2,342.01 246.03 2.14 2,098.12
Total Liabilities from financing activities 1,73,059.36 46122.77 513.08 2,19,695.20
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Employee benefits
The Group operates the following post-employment plans:

. Defined Benefit plan

Gratuity
Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service inline with the payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. The sameis payable at the time of separation from the Group orretirement, whicheveris earlier.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at
31 March 2025. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts
recognised in the Group's financial statements as at balance sheet date:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Net defined benefit liability (34.29) 16.43

. Funding

The scheme is fully funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund's actuarial
measurement framework set out in the funding policies of the plan. The funding of the plan is based on a separate actuarial valuation for
funding purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the assumptions set out in Section E below. Employees do not contribute to the
plan.

Expected contributions to gratuity plan for the nextyearisINR 19.86

. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) / liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset)/ liability and its

components:
Particulars
Defined Fairvalue Net defined Defined Fairvalue Net defined
benefit of plan  benefit (asset)/ | benefit of plan  benefit (asset)/
obligation  assets liability obligation  assets liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 272.96 256.52 16.44 233.04 221.86 11.18
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 71.00 - 71.00 67.50 - 67.50
Past Service credit
Interest cost (income) 19.37 18.20 1.17 16.93 16.12 0.81
Total (A) 90.37 18.20 7217 84.43 16.12 68.31
Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements loss (gain)
— Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- demographic assumptions - - (20.33) - (20.33)
- financial assumptions (55.07) (55.07) 2.21 - 2.21
- experience adjustment 22.69 - 22.69 4.47 - 4.47
— Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 1.47 (1.47) - (0.23) 0.23
Total (B) (32.38) 1.47 (33.85) (13.65) (0.23) (13.41)
Other - 49.65 (49.65)
Contributions paid by the employer - 89.05 (89.05) (1.28) (30.86) 29.58
Benefits paid (34.55) (34.55) - (29.58) - (29.58)
Benefits paid from revenue account of the Group - - - - - -
Total (C) (34.55) 54.50 (89.05) (30.86) 18.77 (49.65)
Balance at the end of the year 296.40 330.69 (34.29) 272.96 256.52 16.43
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Account For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gratuity Expenses 16.12 68.31

For detailed Break up please refer column 'Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability' in the above table
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For the year ended For the year ended
. Plan assets 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

The group has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared
onyearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity
outgoes happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However,
being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the group is exposed to
movement in interest rate (in particular, the significant fallin interest rates, which should result in a increase in liability without corresponding
increase inthe asset).

. Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.50% 7.10%
Future salary growth 8% 7.00% for the first 2 years, and 9.00% thereafter
Withdrawal rate:
For management 13.10% - 31.90% 13.10% - 31.90%
For junior staff
Mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takesinto account the inflation, seniority, promotion.

. Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions

The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial assumption, holding other assumptions constant, showing
how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that were reasonably
possible at the reporting date.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (9.55) 10.20 (9.51) 10.22
Future salary growth (1% movement) 10.33 9.73 9.66 9.14

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation
of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Duration of defined benefit obligation

Duration (Years)

0-1 years 86.97 74.95

1to Syears 194.66 178.35
More than 5 96.19 113.41

Total 377.82 366.70
Weighted Average duration of the defined benefit obligation 3-7 years 3-6 years

. Description of risk exposures

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such group is exposed to various risks as
follow -

Investmentrisk

The probability orlikelihood of occurrence oflosses relative to the expected returnon any particularinvestment.

Interestrisk (discount rate risk)

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the group to the risk of fallin interest rates. A fallin interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate
cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in anincrease in the value of the liability.

Mortality Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. For
the current year, we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table and in the previous year, Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08) had been used.

Achange in mortality rate willhave abearing on the plan'sliability.

Salary Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviationinthe rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value
of obligation willhave a bearing on the plan'sliability.

ii. Defined contribution plan

The Group makes monthly contribution towards Provident Fund which is a defined contribution plan. The Group has no obligations other
than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The amount
recognised as expense towards such contribution are as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 600.20 516.78

Otherlong-term benefits
The Group provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the Group which can be carried forward to future years. Amount
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for compensated absencesis asunder-

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 61.79 51.45
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Employee stock options

Description of share-based payment arrangements

The Group has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme to be administered through a Trust. The Scheme is applicable to all the
eligible employees of the Group. The scheme provides that subject to continued employment with the Group, the employees are
granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Group that may be exercised within a specified period.

The Group formed Utkarsh ESOP Welfare Trust (‘Trust’) to issue ESOPs to employees of the Group as per Employee Stock Option Scheme.
Total 1,200,000 equity shares has been reserved under ESOP scheme 2016 and pursuant to Shareholder agreement executed in the year
2016-17 additional 5,989,594 equity shares has been reserved for the purpose of ESOP scheme. The Group has given interest and
collateral free loan to the trust, to provide financial assistance to purchase equity shares of the Group under such schemes.

The Trust holds these shares for the benefit of the employees and issues them to the eligible employees as per the recommendation of the
compensation committee. The Trust in turn allots the shares to employees on exercise of their right against cash. The compensation costs
of stock options granted fo employees are accounted by the Company using fair value method.

The Trust does not have any tfransactions/activities other than those mentioned above, hence itis treated as a part of the Group and gets
consolidated with the books of the Group.

The Company granted 17,500 (31 March 2024, 30,000) options tfo the employees of the Company during the year.

The options vested shall be exercised within a period of 24 months from the date of vesting. The plan shall be administered, supervised
and implemented by the Compensation Committee under the policy and frame work laid down by the Board of Directors of the Group
in accordance with the authority delegated to the Compensation Committee in thisregard from time to time.

The said ESOP scheme is an equity settled scheme as the same would lead to a settlementinits own equity insfruments.

The Company granted options to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiary, Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited on
September 19, 2024. Since the ESOP cost for the grant was not approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the
Board of Directors of the Bank, the Company cancelled grant by passing a Board Resolution on May 20, 2025. Therefore, the said grant
may be considered for cancellation in totality effective Septemelbr 19, 2024 in terms of fulfilling the requirement under corporate
governance and accounting principles. Further to apprise that a note on the re-issuance of ESOP grant to the employees of USFBL and
UCLmay be placed before the Committee during current financial year.

These options shall vest on graded basis as follows:

Time period Percentage Vesting Condition
On completion of 1 year 25% Service
On completion of 2 years 25% Service
On completion of 3 years 25% Service
On completion of 4 years 25% Service

Reconciliation of outstanding share options
Set out below is a summary of options granted under the plan

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Particulars Number of share Average exercise | Number of share Average exercise
options (in Units) price per share | options (in Units) price per share
Ouvtstanding options at the beginning of the year 13,09,227 119.40 29,96,867 115.67
Add: Granted during the year 17,500 125.00 30,000 125.00
Add: Adjustment of previous year (negative impact) 2,43,354 110.61 - -
Less: Lapsed/forfeited during the year 2,93,875 116.63 10,91,634 115.38
Less: Exercised during the year 6,27,475 116.11 3,23,530 116.37
Less: Adjustment of previous year = - 3,02,476 113.09
Outstanding options at the end of the year 6,48,731 120.68 13,09,227 119.40
Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year 6,13,888 120.44 9,91,210 117.60

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year ended
31 March 2025 was 116.11 (31 March 2024 INR 116.37).

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following contractual expiry date and exercise options

No of options outstanding

Grant date Expiry date Exercise price As at 31 March 2024
1 April 2014 1 April 2016 - 1 April 2019 21.60 = -
1 April 2015 1 April 2017 - 1 April 2020 21.60 - -
1 April 2016 1 April 2018 - 1 April 2021 21.60 - -
1 April 2017 1 April 2019 - 1 April 2022 109.36 - -
1 April 2018 1 April 2020 - 1 April 2023 109.36 - -
1 April 2019 1 April 2021 - 1 April 2024 109.36 - -
1 June 2019 1 June 2021 - 1 June 2024 109.36 1,79,094 4,69,000
9 Dec 2019 9 Dec 2021 - 9 Dec 2024 125 12,500 35,000
1 Oct 2020 1 Oct 2022 - 1 Oct 2025 125.00 4,16,669 7,67,727
1 April 2021 1 April 2023 - 1 April 2026 125.00 3,750 7,031
1 April 2022 1 April 2024 - 1 April 2027 125.00 7,031 12,188
1 April 2023 1 April 2025 - 1 April 2028 125.00 12,187 18,281
1 April 2024 1 April 2026 - 1 April 2029 125.00 17,500 -
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding af the end of the period 1.28 years 2.05 years
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Measurement of Fair values

The fair value of employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes model. The weighted average fair value of each
option onthe grant date ranged between INR 9.54 - 203.40

The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based
payment plans are as follows:

Grant date Expiry date Historical volatility Exercise price Share price Risk free rate Fair value

1 April 2014 1 April 2016 - 1 April 2019 33.83% 21.60 28.72 8.81% 11.57 -16.12
1 April 2015 1 April 2017 - 1 April 2020 43.09% 21.60 45.51 7.74% 27.54 - 32.21
1 April 2016 1 April 2018 - 1 April 2021 52.41% 21.60 71.40 7.46% 53.15-57.95
1 April 2017 1 April 2019 - 1 April 2022 30.91% 109.36 82.19 6.68% 9.54 - 23.70
1 April 2018 1 April 2020 - 1 April 2023 29.51% 109.36 107.19 7.40% 23.88 - 42.55
1 June 2019 1 June 2021 - 1 June 2024 19.60% 109.36 132.13 7.03% 49.31 - 67.99
1 Oct 2020 1 Oct 2022 - 1 Oct 2025 47.00% 125.00 131.59 5.55% 50.10 - 65.77
1 April 2021 1 April 2023 - 1 April 2026 49.30% 125.00 142.50 5.80% 53.60-77.00
1 April 2022 1 April 2024 - 1 April 2027 49.10% 125.00 155.20 6.20% 60.00 - 88.30
1 April 2023 1 April 2025 - 1 April 2028 49.90% 125.00 166.70 7.10% 68.20 - 99.40
1 April 2024 1 April 2026 - 1 April 2029 46.70% 125.00 278.90 7.00% 173.90 - 203.60

The dividend yield has been taken as 0% in all the fair value calculations as Group has never distributed dividend in the past and
does not intend to distribute its earnings in the foreseeable future.

Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
For details on the employee benefits expense, refer Note 27

Options granted by the subsidiary Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (‘the Bank')
Description of share-based payment arrangements

During the FY 2019-20, the Bank introduced Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (USFBL) MD & CEO Employee Stock Option Plan 2020
to offer, grant andissue in one or more franches, the Stock Options to Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO.

The bank received approval from RBI on 31st August 2021 for remuneration of MD & CEO for FY 2019-20 wherein non cash
component of variable pay of Rs. 1 million was approved and was paid by way of grant of 71,377 options out of banks shares with
effect from 28 December 2020 being the date of approval of Banks ESOP Scheme. The Bank received approval forremuneration fo
MD & CEO for financial year 2020-21 from RBl on 12 January 2022 advising to defer non-cash component over next 3 yearsin 3 equal
instalments of 33.33% each. Further, 50% of cash component to be paid upfront and remaining 50% to be deferred in next 3 yearsin
equalinstalments. Accordingly, the Bank has granted 456,817 ESOPs to MD & CEO at Rs. 14.01 per share w. e. f 12 January 2022 with
vesting over next three years in equal proportion i.e. 33.33% each year. However, Bank has received another letter from RBI on 28
July 2022 wherein non cash component has been revised. It is also advised to adjust the excess grant of non-cash component in the
next tranche itself. Accordingly, bank has revised the options granted to MD & CEO w.e.f 12 January 2022 to 221,270 options with
vesting over next two yearwith the proportion of 9% and 31%.

The bank received approval for remuneration to MD & CEO for financial year 2021-22 from RBI on 14 December 2022 including non
cash variable pay of Rs. 6 millions and advised to defer it over next 3 years in 3 equal instalments. Accordingly,bank has granted
6,26,226 ESOPs to MD & CEO at Rs. 31.80 per share w.e.f 17 September 2022 being the date of Board approval for remuneration fo
MD & CEO with vesting over next three yearsin equal proportioni.e. 33.33% each year.

During the year the Bank has granted 1,92,87,909 options (previous year 1,67,09,150 options) under the Utkarsh Small Finance Bank
Limited (USFBL) Employee Stock Option Plan 2020, to MD & CEO, Whole Time Director and otheremployees.

This includes 6,06,896 ESOPs granted fo MD & CEO at Fair value of ¥ 17.40 and at exercise price of R44.00 per share during the
year.The bank received approval for remuneration to MD & CEO for financial year 2023-24 from RBI on September 16, 2024 with
fixed pay of %2.57 crincluding perquisites & variable pay of 1.76 cr with bifurcation into R0.70 cr as cash component and %1.06 cr as
non-cash component with deferral over three years.

This also includes grant to Whole Time Director. The bank received approval for appointment of Whole time Director for the period of
three years from the date of taking charge with remuneration at fixed pay of 1.63 cr per annum including perquisites and joining
bonus of %1.93 crin the form of ESOPs. Accordingly,bank has granted 10,54,644 ESOPs to Whole time Director at Fair value of 18.30
and at exercise price 0f¥44.19 pershare during the year.

The options vested can be exercised within a period of 24 months from the date of vesting. The said ESOP scheme is an equity settled
scheme as the same would lead to a settlement inits own equity instruments.

These options shall vest on graded basis as follows:

Grant to MD & CEO
. . Grant dated
Time period General grant Grant to WTD 12 January 2022 Other grant
On completion of 1 year 25% 10% 69.00% 33.33%
On completion of 2 years 25% 20% 31.00% 33.33%
On completion of 3 years 25% 30% - 33.33%
On completion of 4 years 25% 40% - -
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Reconciliation of outstanding share options

Set out below is a summary of options granted under the plan

Particulars

31 March 2024

Outstanding options at the beginning of the year

Add: Granted during the year

Less: Lapsed/forfeited during the year

Less: Exercised during the year

Less: Adjustment of previous year

Outstanding options at the end of the year

Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year

Number of share Average exercise|Number of share Average exercise
options (in Units) price per share |options (in Units) price per share
38,413,892 34.54 2,93,85,764 27.16
19,287,909 44,01 1,67,09,150 44.08
5,163,108 36.69 41,28,225 27.02
2,152,440 26.91 35,52,797 27.10
50,386,253 38.27 3,84,13,892 34.54
12,409,946 32.14 59,16,227 27.05

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2025 was

INR 26.91 (31 March 2024: INR 27.10).

Share opftions outstanding at the end of the year have the following contractual expiry date and exercise options

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following contractual expiry date and exercise options

No of options outstanding
Grant date Expiry date Exercise price As at 31 March 2024
28 December 2020 28 Dec 2023 - 28 Dec 2026 14.01 - 17,845.00
1 August 2021 1 Aug 24 - 1 Aug 2027 27.00 5,537,287 78,07,662.00
1 October 2021 1 Oct 2024 - 1 Oct 2027 30.00 11,250 15,000.00
18 October 2021 18 Oct 2024 - 18 Oct 2027 31.80 15,000 20,000.00
8 November 2021 8 Nov 2024 - 8 Nov 2027 31.80 - 10,000.00
1 January 2022 1 Jan 2025 -1 Jan 2028 31.80 15,000 15,000.00
12 January 2022 12 Jan 2025 - 12 Jan 2028 14.01 = -
1 April 2022 1 April 2025 - 1 April 2028 31.80 45,000 60,000
7 April 2022 7 April 2025 - 7 April 2028 31.80 - -
2 May 2022 2 May 2025 - 2 May 2028 31.80 20,000 20,000
16 July 2022 16 July 2025 - 16 July 2028 31.80 - 18,750
1 August 2022 1 Aug 25 - 1 Aug 2028 27.00 10,781,063 1,28,19,001
17 Sep 2022 17 Sep 2025 - 17 Sep 2027 31.80 417,484 4,17,484
30 Sep 2022 30 Sep 2025 -30 Sep 2028 31.80 150,000 1,50,000
13 Oct 2022 13 Oct 2025 -13 Oct 2028 27.00 120,000 1,20,000
2 Jan 2023 2 Jan 2026 - 2 Jan 2029 31.80 35,000 35,000
1 Feb 2023 1 Feb 2026 - 1 Feb 2029 31.80 104,000 1,04,000
20 Mar 2023 20 Mar 2023 - 20 Mar 2029 31.80 75,000 75,000
1 Jan 2024 01 Jan 2024 - 01 Jan 2029 27.00 30,000 55,000
16 Mar 2024 16 Mar 2024 - 16 Mar 2030 44.14 14,286,577 1,66,54,150
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at 3.06 years 3.42 years

the end of the period

Measurement of Fair values

The fair value of employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes model. The weighted average fair value of each
option onthe grant date ranged between INR 6.92-23.28

The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based
payment plans are as follows:

Grant date Expiry date Historical Exercise Share Risk  [Dividend Fair
volatility price price |freerate| Yield value

28 December 2020 28 Dec 2023 - 28 Dec 2026 | 52.20% 14.01 10 4.10% 0% [15.15-18.52
1 August 2021 to 1 January 2022 1 Aug 2024 - 1 Jan 2028 | 49.80% | 27.00 to 31.80 10 4.48% 0% [11.44-17.00
12 January 2022 12 Jan 2025 - 12 Jan 2028 | 49.80% 14.01 10 4.48% 0% [11.44-17.00
1 August 2022 to 20 March 2023 1 Aug 2025 - 20 Mar 2029 | 49.30% | 27.00 to 31.80 10 7.04% 0% 9.03-14.94
17 September 2022 17 Sep 2025 - 17 Sep 2027 | 48.50% 31.80 10 7.06% 0% 6.92-11.87
January 1, 2024 to March 16, 2024 1 Jan 2027 - 16 Mar 2029 | 43.00% | 27.00 to 44.14 10 6.99% 1% |14.38-23.28
September 3, 2024 to September 20, 2024 | 03 Sep 2027- 20 Sep 2030 | 42.70% 4410 44.19 10 6.72% 1% [13.60 - 23.00
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36 Related party disclosure
. Related party relationships and transactions of the Parent Company
A. Name of the related party and nature of relationship:-
Name of the Related Party Key managerial Nature of Relationship
personnel / Others

i. Mr. Ashwani Kumar — Managing Director & CEO (ceased to be MD & CEO w.e.f. 19 December 2023)
ii. Mr. Suman Saurabh — Managing Director & CEO (w.e.f. 19 December 2023)
ii. Mr. G.S. Sundararajan - Independent Director
iv. Mr. Gaurav Malhotra — Nominee Director (ceased to be director w.e.f. 25 August 2022)
v. Mr. Atul - Independent Director
vi. Mr. T. K. Ramesh Ramanathan — Nominee Director (ceased to be director w.e.f. 13 March 2024)
vii. Mr. Harjeet Toor — Nominee Director (ceased to be director w.e.f. 23 June 2022)
viii Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh — Nominee Director
iX British International Investment PLC - Investor (holding more than 10% equity share capital)

(Formerly known as CDC Group PLC)

As at As at
B. Compensation of key managerial personnel 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Short-term employee benefits

Ashwani Kumar - 5.26
Suman Saurabh 5.81 2.10
GS Sundararajan 1.25 1.06

Post-employment defined benefit plan
Ashwani Kumar - 1.11
Suman Saurabh 0.25 0.1
Other long term benefits

Ashwani Kumar = 0.34
Suman Saurabh 0.11 -
Share-based payments
Ashwani Kumar > (0.32)
Suman Saurabh 0.82 -
Sitting fees
G S Sundararajan 1.18 1.10
Atul 1.24 0.96
10.66 11.73
* Reversal of ESOP Cost by %0.70 million due to cancellation of 39,875 ESOPs (proportionate 39,875 and Total 57,625)
Terms and conditions
All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and at normal commercial terms.
C Transactions with related parties
Bank deposits
Mr. Ashwani Kumar - 13.64
Mr. Suman Saurabh 9.99 8.80
Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh 0.00 0.00

*Ceased to be MD & CEO w.e.f. 19 December 2023

Terms and conditions
All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and at normal commercial ferms.

D (Payable) / receivables as at balance sheet date: As ot As at
B mfamatono eh
i. British International Investment PLC (Formerly known as CDC Group PLC) S bhETEn A 31 March 2024

Debt securities issued to British International Investment PLC - -
ii. Mr. Ashwani Kumar

Saving bank deposits - 0.20

Fixed deposits - 0.01
ii. Mr. Suman Saurabh

Saving bank deposits 0.31 0.10
iv. Mr. G S Sundararajan

Fixed deposits 0.76 10.00
v. Mr. Aditya Deepak Parekh

Saving bank deposits 0.00 0.00

*Ceased to be MD & CEO w.e.f. 19 December 2023
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2 Related party relationships and transactions of the subsidiary:

A. Name of the related party and nature of relationship:-
Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship
Key managerial personnel / Others

i Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta — Part Time Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Independent Director
i Mr. Nagesh Dinkar Pinge — Non-Executive Independent Director
i Mr. Muralidharan Rajamani — Non-Executive Director
iv. Mr. Kajal Ghose — Non-Executive Independent Director
v Mr. Chandra Shekhar Thanvi — Nominee Director, SIDBI (w.e.f. September 30, 2021)
vi Mr. Ajay Kumar Kapur — Non-Executive Independent Director
vii Ms. Kalpana Prakash Pandey — Non-Executive Independent Director
viii Mr. Govind Singh - Managing Director & CEO
ix Mr. Pramod Dubey - Whole Time Director w.e.f. September 20, 2024
X Mr. Sarjukumar Pravin Simaria — Chief Financial Officer
xi Mr. Muthiah Ganapathy — Company Secretary
xii Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar — Part Time Non-Executive Chairman & Independent Director (fill 19 July, 2021)

B. Enterprise where KMP exercise significant influence
RAAG Family Private Trust
Utkarsh Welfare Foundation

C. Reldtives of Key Management Personnel

Name of KMP Father and Mother Spouse and Children Other relatives
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta | Father - Baldev Krishna Gupta | Neena Gupta (Spouse) Anu Gupta (Sister)
Mother - deceased Saksham Gupta (Son) Naveen Gupta (Brother)
Nipun Gupta (Son) Ashwani Gupta (Brother)
Mr. Nagesh Dinkar Pinge Both deceased Sujata Nagesh Pinge (Spouse) Mahesh Dinkar Pinge (Brother)

Nikita Nagesh Pinge (Daughter)
Pankaja Nagesh Pinge (Daughter)

Mr. Muralidharan Rajamani| Both deceased Seetha Muralidharan (Spouse) Meera Sridharan (Sister)
Amrithanand Muralidharan (Son)| Usha Rajan (Sister)

Anu Gopu (Sister)

Mr. Kajal Ghose Father - deceased Monimala Ghose (Spouse) Kakoli Ghose (Sister)
Mother - Dipali Ghose Ranjita Ghose (Daughter) Kamal Ghose (Brother)
Mayank Shekar (Son-in-law) Kushal Ghose (Brother)
Mr. Chandra Shekhar Thanvi | Father - deceased Rashmi Thanvi (Spouse) Chitra Purohit (Sister)
Mother - Rajeshwari Thanvi Shantanu Thanvi (Son)

Rashmi Thanvi (Daughter-in-law)

Thanushri Thanvi (Daughter)

Mr. Ajay Kumar Kapur Both deceased Deepshikha Kapur (Spouse) Usha Rani Malhotra (Sister)
Ankit Kapur (Son) LT. Col. (Retd.) Barat
Bushan Kapur (Brother)

Gr. Capt. (Retd.)
Arun Kapur (Brother)

Anil Kapur (Brother)

Ms. Kalpana Prakash Pandey | Father - Dharma Nand Pandey | Prakash Mohan Pandey (Spouse)| Meena Kothyari (Sister)
Mother - deceased Aditya Prakash Pandey (Son) Bharati Joshi (Sister)
Geeta Joshi (Sister)
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Name of KMP

Father and Mother

Spouse and Children

Other relatives

Mr. Govind Singh

Father - deceased

Revati Govind Singh (Spouse)

Ramesh Chandra Singh (Brother)

Parvati Devi (Mother)

Ankur Singh (Son)

Achin Singh (Son)

Mr. Pramod Dubey

Father - deceased

Anita Dubey (Spouse)

Neelam Tiwari (Sister)

Janak Dulari (Mother)

Apoorva Dubey (Son)

Pushpa Tiwari (Sister)

Aditya Dubey (Son)

Arun Kumar Dubey (Brother)

Nirmal Kumar Dubey (Brother)

Mr. Sarjukumar Pravin Simaria

Father-Pravin V. Simaria

Karuna S. Simaria (Spouse)

Bharat P. Simaria- Brother

Mother-Nirmala P. Simaria

Malav S. Simaria (Son)

Bhakti S. Simaria (Daughter)

Mr. Muthiah Ganapathy

Both deceased

Lakshmi Devi (Spouse)

Mukesh (Brother)

Aarna (Daughter)

Arshini (Daughter)

D. Post-employment benefit plan

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Employees’ Gratuity Trust

E. Compensation of key managerial personnel

Short-term employee benefits
Mr. Govind Singh (MD & CEO)
Mr. Pramod Dubey (WTD)

Mr. Sarjukumar Pravin Simaria (CFO)

Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta
Mr. Muthiah Ganapathy (CS)
Mr. Ajay Kumar Kapur

Mr. Kajal Ghose

Ms. Kalpana Prakash Pandey
Mr. Muralidharan Rajamani
Mr. Nagesh Dinkar Pinge

Share-based payments
Mr. Govind Singh (MD & CEO)

Mr. Sarjukumar Pravin Simaria (CFO)
Mr. Sarjukumar Pravin Simaria (CFO)

Mr. Muthiah Ganapathy (CS)

Sitting fees

Mr. Ajay Kumar Kapur

Mr. Kajal Ghose

Ms. Kalpana Prakash Pandey
Mr. Muralidharan Rajamani
Mr. Nagesh Dinkar Pinge

Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

*30.24 **28.83
**9.47

17.34 14.50

1.20

5.89 5.42
0.90 -

0.71 -
0.90 -

0.90 -

1.20 -
67.55 49.95
10.56 8.16

19.30 -

8.71 3.45
0.92 3.09
39.49 11.61
3.34 3.60
2.82 3.90
3.40 3.14
3.20 2.86
2.80 3.24
3.28 3.76
18.84 20.50

*Includes 50% of the cash portion of bonus for FY 2023-24 at ¥ 3.52 million as per approval of remunaration of FY 23-24 by
RBI vide lefter dated September 16, 2024
*** Includes annual bonus of INR 6.3 and reversal of salary paid in FY 2020-21 of INR 6.5 for the differntial amount post approval of
RBI vide letter dated 12 January 2022 for remuneration of MD & CEO for FY 2020-21.
*Appointment of ED alongwith his salary was approved by RBI vide letter dated September 19, 2024

Terms and conditions

All fransactions with these related parties are priced on an arm'’s length basis and at normal commercial terms.
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F. (Payable)/receivables as at balance sheet date:

Related Party Nature of the transactions As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024

Utkarsh Welfare Deposits Outstanding 25.63 30.50
Foundation Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 64.16 47.10
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Deposits Outstanding 4.88 2.68
Employees’ Gratuity Trust Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 31.90 23.50
KMP: Deposits Outstanding 22.52 19.74
Parveen Kumar Gupta Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 31.04 19.74
Deposits Outstanding 1.47 1.61
KMP: Kajal Ghose Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 3.88 2.03
. Deposits Outstanding 4.00 4.00

KMP : Ajay Kumar Kapur - - - -
Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 4.00 6.00
KMP : Govind Singh Deposits Outstanding 11.87 2.64
(MD & CEO) Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 13.67 11.40
KMP : Mukund Barsagde Deposits Outstanding - -
(CFO) Maximum deposit outstanding during the year - 11.40
Deposits Outstanding 4.13 -

KMP: Pramod Dubey (WTD) - - - -
Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 5.95 -
KMP: Sarjukumar Pravin Deposits Outstanding 28.62 1.58
Simaria (CFO) Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 33.21 1.80
KMP : Muthiah Deposits Outstanding 1.80 0.89
Ganapathy (CS) Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 2.43 1.40
KMP Relative - Deposits Outstanding 2.58 1.79
Neena Gupta Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 2.58 1.79
KMP Relative - Deposits Outstanding 3.73 -
Deepshikha Kapur Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 6.56 -
KMP Relative - Deposits Outstanding 5.25 2.35
Revati Govind Singh Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 12.71 3.30
KMP Relative - Deposits Outstanding 3.50 0.06
Ankur Singh Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 83.01 1.00
KMP Relative - Deposits Outstanding 4.98 0.46
Achin Singh Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 73.96 0.50
KMP Relative - Deposits Outstanding 1.53 2.28
Ramesh Chandra Singh Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 4.14 4.20
. . Deposits Outstanding - 2.80

KMP Relative -Renu Singh - - - -
Maximum deposit outstanding during the year - 2.80
) ) ) Deposits Outstanding 1.22 1.06
KMP Relative - Parvati Devi Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 1.22 1.20
KMP Relative - Deposits Outstanding 1.40 1.60
Nirmala Simaria Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 1.60 1.60
. . Deposits Outstanding 48.04 0.05

RAAG Family Private Trust - - - -
Maximum deposit outstanding during the year 249.54 0.20
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G. Transactions with related parties

Related Party Nature of the transactions ?Asq?::h 31, 2025 AAAsacr:(i:h 31,2024
Utkarsh Welfare Interest paid 2.09 1.86
Foundation Contribution towards CSR & CER 85.00 51.20
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank | Inferest paid - 0.06
Employees’ Gratuity Trust Contribution to Gratuity Trust 88.87 49.00
Withdrawal from Gratuity Trust 40.23 35.90
KMP : Praveen Kumar Gupta
Interest paid 1.92 0.75
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 10.00 -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 5.70 1.50
KMP: Kajal Ghose Interest paid 0.18 0.07
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - -
KMP: Ajay Kumar Kapur Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - -
Inferest paid 0.38 0.26
KMP: Govind Singh Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - 1.50
(MD & CEO) Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - 3.44
Interest paid 0.61 0.37
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - *0.00
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - *0.00
Dividend paid 0.24 -
KMP: Pramod Dubey (WTD) | Interest paid 0.14 -
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 0.05 -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 0.05 -
KMP: Sarjukumar Interest paid 1.19 *0.00
Pravin Simaria (CFO) Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - -
Dividend paid 0.03 -
KMP: Muthiah Interest paid 0.13 *0.00
Ganapathy (CS) Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - -
RAAG Family Private Trust Interest paid 3.33 _
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 251.50 -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 204.50 -
KMP Relative - Interest paid 0.18 0.14
Neena Gupta Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 1.70 0.88
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 0.91 0.07
KMP Relative - Interest paid 0.29 0.14
Deepshikha Kapur Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 3.00 0.88
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - 0.07
KMP Relative - Interest paid 0.70 0.16
Revati Govind Singh Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 10.00 -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 7.50 -
Dividend paid *0.00 -
KMP Relative - Ankur Singh | |nterest paid 290 *0.00
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 10.00 -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 7.50 -
KMP Relative - Interest paid 274 *0.00
Achin Singh Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 10.50 -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 7.50 -
Dividend Paid 0.01
KMP Relative - Interest paid 0.20 0.21
Ramesh Chandra Singh Consultancy Charges - 1.10
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - 0.95
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 0.64 0.55

Dividend paid
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G. Transactions with related parties

Related Party Nature of the transactions AAAsq?lh 31,2025 I?Asa‘:::h 31, 2024
KMP Relafive - Renu Singh Interest paid - 0.23
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - -
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - -
KMP Relaftive - Interest paid 0.14 0.10
Nirmala Simaria Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) - 1.40
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 0.20 -
KMP Relative - Parvati Devi | Interest paid 0.1 0.09
Amount deposited during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 1.20 0.44
Amount repaid during the year (excluding CASA deposit) 1.12 0.29

* Amount less than INR 0.05 million is shown as Nil
Terms and conditions
All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis and at normal commercial terms.
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Earnings per share For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

a) Basic earning per share

Profit after tax

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — Basic Nos.
b) Diluted earning per share

Adjusted net profit/(loss) for the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — Basic Nos.
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of Nos.
employee stock options

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — Diluted  Nos.
Earnings per share

Basic - par value of Rs.10 each INR
Diluted - par value of Rs.10 each INR

(4,222.95)
98,988,994

(4,222.95)
98,988,994
373,348
99,362,342

(42.66)
(42.50)

3,298.35
9,82,75,137

3,298.35
9,82,75,137
11,11,091
9,93,86,227

33.56
33.19




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

38 Operatingsegments
The Board has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, "Operating Segments.” The
Group'soperatingsegments are establishedin the manner consistent with the components of the Group that are evaluatedregularly by
the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined in 'Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.' The Group is engaged primarily in the business of
banking and there are no separate reportable segmentsas perind AS 108.

a. Informationabout products and services:
The Group dealsin only one producti.e. grantedloansto customers.Hence, no separate disclosureis required.

b. Information about geographicalareas:
The entire sales of the Group are made to customerswhich are domiciledin India. Also, all the assets of the Group are locatedin India.

c. Informationabout major customers (from external customers):
The Group doesnot earnrevenues from the customerswhich amountto 10 per cent or more of Group'srevenues.

39 Transfersoffinancial assets
Inthe ordinary course of business, the Group entfersinto fransactionsthat resultin the transfer of loansand advances. In accordance with
the accounting policy set out in Note 2, the transferred financial assets continue to be recognisedin their entirety or to the extent of the
Group'scontinuinginvolvement, or are derecognisedin theirentirety.

40 Financial instruments - fair value and risk management
A. Financial instruments by category
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Particulars
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
cost cost
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 33,317.37 - - 28,464.66
Bank balance other than above - - 1,091.08 - - 1,825.86
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - -
Loans - - 180,404.62 - - 1,76,500.05
Investments 12,725.79 - 37,498.88 - 36,501.58 -
Other financial assets - 2,333.15 - -
12,725.79 - 254,645.10 - 36,501.58 2,09,565.00
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - - 407.46 - - 494.51
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 18,454.23 - - 34,904.54
Lease liability - - 3,453.41 - - 2,716.73
Deposits - - 222,352.97 - - 1,79,975.81
Subordinated liabilities - - 5,158.86 - - 2,098.12
Other financial liabilities - - 3,306.61 - - 3,825.92
- - 253,133.54 - - 2,24,015.63

B. Fairvalue hierarchy
This section explainsthe judgementsand estimatesmade in determining the fair values of the financialinstrumentsthat are:
(a) recognised and measured at fairvalue and
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide anindication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financialinstruments
into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table. During the
yearthere were no transferbetweenLevel 1 and Level 2. Similarly, there were no transfers from or transferto Level 3.

Financial assets measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

As at 31 March 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:
Derivative financial instruments - - - -

Investments 50.00 12,675.79 - 12725.79
50.00 12,675.79 - 12725.79

As at 31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets: - - - -
Investments - 36,501.58 - 36,501.58

- 36,501.58 - 36,501.58




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 33,317.37 - - 33,317.37 33,317.37
Bank balance other than above 1,091.08 - - 1,091.08 1,091.08
Loans 180,404.62 - - 179,991.96 179,991.96
Investments 37,498.88 - - 37,498.88 37,498.88
Other financial assets 2,333.15 - - 2,333.15 2,333.15
254,645.10 - - 254,232.44 254,232.44
Financial liabilities: - -
Trade payables 407.46 - - 407.46 407.46
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 18,454.23 - - 34,975.80 34,975.80
Lease liability 3,453.41 - - 3,453.41 3,453.41
Deposits 222,352.97 - - 222,885.93 222,885.93
Subordinated liabilities 5,158.86 - - 2,127.72 2,127.72
Other financial liabilities 3,306.61 - - 3,714.81 3,714.81
253,133.55 - - 267,565.13 267,565.13
As at 31 March 2024 Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 28,464.66 - - 28,464.66 28,464.66
Bank balance other than above 1,825.86 - - 1,825.86 1,825.86
Loans - - - 1,76,087.38 1,76,087.38
Other financial assets 1,76,500.05 - - 2774.43 2774.43
2,09,565.00 - - 2,09,152.33 2,09,152.33
Financial liabilities: - -
Trade payables 494.5] - - 494.51 494.51
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 34,904.54 - - 34,975.80 34,975.80
Lease liability 2,716.73 - - 2,716.73 2,716.73
Deposits 1,79,975.81 - - 1,80,461.02 1,80,461.02
Subordinated liabilities 2,098.12 - - 2,127.72 2,127.72
Other financial liabilities 3,825.92 - - 4,317.15 4,317.15
2,24,015.63 - - 2,25,092.92 2,25,092.92

C. Valuation framework
The finance department of the group relies on external valuers to perform the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO and the
external valuer at every twelve months, inline with the group’s annual reporting periods. Specific controlsinclude :
- verification of observable pricing
-re-performance of model valuations
-review and approval process fornew models and changes to models
- review of significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and significant changes to the fair value measurement of Level 3
instruments.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements.

Level 1:Inputsthat are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets orliabilities.

Level 2:The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active marketsis determined using valuation techniques which maximize
the use of observable market data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, for
substantially the full term of the financial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable the instrumentisincludedinlevel 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3. That is, Level 3
inputs incorporate market participants’ assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order to bear that
risk. The Group develops Level 3inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques
include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other premium used in estimating discount rates and expected price
volatilities and correlations.

The objective of valuation techniquesis to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be received to sell the asset or
paid to transfer the liability in an orderly tfransaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models to determine the fair value of common and simple financial instruments, that use only
observable market data and require little management judgement and estimation. Observable prices or modelinputs are usually available
in the market for OTC derivatives such as forward rate agreements. The availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces
the need formanagement judgement and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty associated with determining fair values.

Financialinstruments valued at carrying value

The respective carrying values of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments approximated their fair value. These financial instruments
include cash in hand, balances with other banks, trade receivables, trade payables and certain other financial assets and liabilities.
Carrying values were assumed to approximate fair values for these financial instruments as they are short-term in nature and their recorded
amounts approximate fair values or are receivable or payable on demand.
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Financialrisk management
The group'sactivitiesexposure it to creditrisk, liquidity risk, market risk and operationalrisk.

Risk managementframework

(a) Risk managementstructure and group'srisk profile

The group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management framework.
The board of directors has established the risk management committee, whichis responsible for developing and monitoring the group’s
risk managementpolicies. The committeereportsregularly to the board of directorsonits activities.

Efficient and timely management of risks involved in the group's activities is critical for the financial soundness and profitability of the
group. Risk managementinvolves the identifying, measuring, monitoring and managing of risks on a regular basis. The objective of risk
managementisto increase shareholders' value and achieve areturn on equity thatis commensurate with the risks assumed. To achieve
thisobjective, the group employsleadingrisk management practicesand recruits skilled and experienced people.

The group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the group’s activities. The group, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive controlenvironmentin which allemployeesunderstand theirroles and obligations.

The group’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the group’s risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the group. The audit
committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controlsand procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

. Creditrisk

Credit risk arises from loans and advances, cash and cash equivalents, investment in debt securities and deposits with banks and
financialinstitutionsand any otherfinancial assets.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the group's asset on finance and trade receivables from customers; loans and investmentsin
debtsecurities.

The carryingamounts of financial assetsrepresent the maximum credit risk exposure.

(a) Creditriskmanagement

(b

~

The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimentalimpact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financialassethave occurred. Evidence that a financial assetis credit-impairedincludes the following observable data:

« significantfinancial difficulty of the borrower orissuer;

e abreach of contractsuch as a default or past due event;

 the restructuring of aloan oradvance by the group on terms that the group would not consider otherwise; or

« itisbecoming probable that the borrowerwillenter bankruptcy or otherfinancial re-organization;”

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for credit
worthiness before the group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The group’s review includes external
ratings, if they are available, background verification, financial statements, income tax returns, credit agency information, industry
information, etc. Credit limits are established for each customer and reviewed quarterly. Any loan exceeding those limits require
approvalfrom the risk managementcommittee.

Definition of defaultand cure
The group considers a financial insfrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculationsin all cases when the
borrowerbecomes 90 days past due onits contractualpayments.

The group considers probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whetherthere has been any significantincrease in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the group
compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as af the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considersavailable reasonable and supportive forward-lookinginformation. Followingindicators are incorporated:

-DPD analysisas on eachreportingdate

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic condition that are expected to cause a significant
change to borrower'sability o meetits obligations.

-significantincreasein creditrisk on otherfinancialinstrumentsof same borrower.

- significant changes in value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third party guarantees or credit
enhancements.

- significant changes in expected performance and behavior of the borrower including changes in payment status of borrowers and
changesin operatingresults.

Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) is incorporated as part of the internal
rating model. In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than
30dayspastdue.
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Exposure at default
The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation,
addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while approaching default and potential early repayments foo.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the group assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the calculation of the 12
months ECL. However, if a Stage 1 loan thatis expected to defaultin the 12 months from the balance sheet date and is also expected to
cure and subsequently default again, then all linked default events are taken into account. For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial
assefts, the exposure at defaultis considered forevents over the lifetime of the instruments.

The group determines EADs by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in time, corresponding the multiple
scenarios. The Ind AS 109 PDs are then assigned to each economic scenario based on the outcome of group’s models.

Loss given default

JLG and MBBL loans, loss given default (LGD) values are assessed based on historical data for a period of 5 years which is at 50%.
However, considering increase in the LGD based on most recent periods to reduce the volatility in the Bank’s provisioning requirement,
Bank has chosen to stick with pre-Covid higher level LGD percentage at ~62.5%. MSME Unsecured loans LGD is assessed for FY2024-25
at 62%. Corporate loans, regulatory LGD is taken at 65%. The group doesn't have adequate historical data of recovery / resolution of
secured loans. Considering the same Bank is faking a conservative view of keeping the minimum LGD at 30% or model computed LGD
number whichever is higher. Basis recovery rate & collateral impact under Stage 3 loans the computed LGD is higher for HL at 48.24%,
MSME Secured at ~33.21% and Wheels at 32.03%. Forallthe fraud cases the bank has applied 100% LGD.

The credit risk assessment is based on a standardised LGD assessment framework that resultsin a certain LGD rate. These LGD rates take
info account the expected EAD in comparison to the amount expected to be recovered orrealised from any collateral held.

The group segments its retail lending products into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on key characteristics that are relevant to
the estimation of future cash flows. The applied datais based on historically collected loss data.

UnderInd AS 109, LGD rates are estimated for the Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3and POCIInd AS 109 segment of each asset class.

Significantincrease in credit risk

The group continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments is
subject to 12 months ECL or life time ECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. The group also applies a secondary qualitative method for triggering a significant increase in credit risk for an asset, such as
moving a customer/facility to the watch list, or the account becoming forborne. Regardless of the change in credit grades, if
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, the credit riskis deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition.

Expected creditloss on Loans

The group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly on collective basis. For the purpose of
collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking info account
accounting instrument type, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity, collateral type and otherrelevant
factors.

The group considers defaulted assets as those which are contractually past due 90 days, other than those assets where there is empirical
evidence to the contrary. Financial assets which are contractually past due 30 days are classified under Stage 2 - life time ECL, not credit
impaired, barring those where there is empirical evidence to the contrary. The group considers financial instruments to have low credit
risk if they are rated infernally or externally within the investment grade. An asset migrates down the ECL stage based on the change in
the risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. If in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significantincrease in credit risk since origination, then the loanloss provision stage reverses to 12-months ECL from lifetime ECL.

The group measures the amount of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount.
The group considersits historical loss experience and adjusts the same for current observable data. The key inputsinto the measurement
of ECL are the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default. These parameters are derived from the group'’s
intfernally developed statistical models and other historical data. In addition, the group uses reasonable and supportable information
on future economic conditions including macroeconomic factors such as interest rates, gross domestic product, inflation, industry and
expecteddirection of the economic cycle. Since incorporating these forward looking information increases the judgment as to how the
changesin these macroeconomic factor will affect ECL, the methodology and assumptions are reviewed regularly.
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Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at 31 March 2025

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Loans and advances at amortised cost
Current (not past due) 163,716.63 - - - 163,716.63
1-30 days past due 4,778.15 - - - 4,778.15
31-60 days past due - 4,278.50 - - 4,278.50
61-90 days past due - 3,448.94 - - 3,448.94
More than 90 days past due - - 20,382.54 - 20,382.54
168,494.78 7,727.43 20,382.54 - 196,604.75
Loss allowance (2,035.17) (1,740.85) (12,424.11) - (16,200.13)
Carrying value 166,459.61 5,986.58 7,958.43 - 180,404.62
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Other financial assets at amortised cost
Gross carrying amount 2,332.89 - - - 2,332.89
Loss allowance (0.83) - - - (0.83)
Carrying value 2,332.05 - - - 2,332.05
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Investments at amortised cost
Sovereign rated 37,512.06 - - - 37,512.06
BBB - to AAA - - - - -
BB- to BB+ - - - - -
B- fo B+ - - - - -
Cto CCC+ - - - - -
D - - - - -
37,512.06 - - - 37,512.06
Loss allowance (13.18) - - - (13.18)
Amortised cost 37,498.88 - - - 37,498.88
Investment at FVTPL
Sovereign rated - - - - -
BBB - fo AAA
BB- to BB+ 12,657.90 - - - 12,657.90
B- to B+ - -
CtoCCC+ - - -
D
Unrated 67.89 - - - 67.89
12,725.79 - - - 12,725.79
Loss allowance - - - - -
Amortise cost 12,725.79 12,725.79
Bank Balances
BBB - fo AAA 34,411.40 - - - 34,411.40
B- to BB+ - - - - -
B- to B+ - - - - -
Cto CCC+ - - - - -
D - - - - -
34,411.40 - - - 34,411.40
Loss allowance (3.10) - - - (3.10)
Amortised cost 34,408.30 - - - 34,408.30
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As at 31 March 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Loans and advances at amortised cost
Current (not past due) 1,71,831.71 - - - 1,71,831.71
1-30 days past due 2,762.67 - - - 2,762.67
31-60 days past due - 1,753.27 - - 1,753.27
61-90 days past due - 1,744.58 - - 1,744.58
More than 90 days past due - - 4,158.87 - 4,158.87
1,74,594.38 3,497.85 4,158.87 - 1,82,251.10
Loss allowance (2,087.23) (850.42) (2,813.41) - (5,751.05)
Carrying value 1,72,507.15 2,647.43 1,345.46 - 1,76,500.05
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Other financial assets at amortised cost - - - - -
Gross carrying amount 2,773.78 - - - 2,773.78
Loss allowance (0.29) - - - (0.29)
Carrying value 2,773.49 - - - 2,773.49
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Investment in debt securities at FVTOCI - - - - -
Sovereign rated 33,032.30 - - - 33,032.30
BBB - to AAA 3,479.28 - - - 3,479.28
BB- to BB+ - - - - -
B- to B+ - - - - -
Cto CCC+ - - - - -
D - - - - -
36,511.58 - - - 36,511.58
Loss allowance (10.01) - - - (10.01)
Amortised cost 36,501.57 - - - 36,501.57
Bank balances - - - - -
BBB - to AAA 14,247.75 - - - 14,247.75
BB- fo BB+ - - - - -
B- to B+ - - - - -
Cto CCC+ - - - - -
D - - - - -
14,247.75 - - - 14,247.75
Loss allowance (2.55) - - - (2.55)
Amortised cost 14,245.20 - - - 14,245.20
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The group has applied a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses (ECL) on loans and investment in debt securities
accountedforatamortised cost and FVOCI. Lossrates are calculated using a ‘Transition Matrix' method based on the probability of a
receivable in 12 months fime inferval. Assets migrate through following three stages based on the changes in credit quality since
initialrecognition:

(a) Stage 1: 12- months ECL: For exposures where there is no significantincrease in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not
credit-impairedupon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the
next 12-monthsisrecognized.

(b) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL, not credit-impaired: For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initialrecognition but are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECLis recognized.

( c) Stage 3: Lifetime ECL, credit-impaired: Financial assets are assessed as creditimpaired upon occurrence of one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. For financial assets that have become credit-
impaired, alifetime ECLisrecognized andinterestrevenueis calculated by applying the effective interestrate to the amortised cost.

Ateachreportingdate, the group assesses whetherthere has been asignificantincrease in credit risk of its financial assets since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset. In determining whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the group uses information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes the group's internal credit rating grading system, external risk ratings and forward-looking information to assess
deteriorationin credit quality of a financial asset.

Expected creditloss on otherfinancial assets

The group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly on collective basis. For the purpose of
collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, faking into
accountaccountinginstrumenttype, creditrisk ratings, date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity, industry, geographical
location of the borrower, collateraltype, and otherrelevantfactors.

The group monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings. In order to determine whether published
ratings remain up to date and fo assess whether there has been a significantincrease in credit risk af the reporfing date that has not
been reflected in published ratings, the group supplements this by reviewing changes in government bond yields fogether with
available press and regulatory information aboutissuers.

Expected credit loss on Investments in Debt securities
The group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in

government securities and only with counterparties that have
acreditrating of atleast A-1 from S&P and/ or from CRISIL.

The group monitors changesin credit risk by fracking published
external credit ratings. In order to determine whether ©
published ratings remain up to dafte and fo assess whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the
reportingdate that hasnot beenreflectedin publishedratings,
the group supplements this by reviewing changes in
government bond yields together with available press and
regulatoryinformation aboutissuers.

12-month and lifefime probabilities of default are based on
historical data supplied by S&P for each credit rating and are
recalibratedbased on current governmentbond yields. Loss given default (LGD) parameters generally reflect an assumedrecovery
rate of 40% except when a security is credit-impaired, in which case the estimate of loss is based on the instrument’s current market
price and original effectiveinterestrate.

The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality of debt securities at amortised cost, at FVTOCI and FVTPL. It indicates
whether assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI were subject to a 12 month expected credit loss (ECL) or lifetime ECL
adllowance and, inthe latter case, whether they were creditimpaired.

'hll-

Bankbalances

The significant portion of Bank balances are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated A+ to AAA,
based on Creditratings.

Impairment on bank balances has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures.The group considers thatits bank balanceshave low creditrisk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.
The group uses a similarapproach for assessmentof ECLs forbank balances as used forinvestmentin debt securities.
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(g) Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of loans, Investment in debt securities, trade receivables and other

financial assets

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of asset on finance, trade receivables and other financial assets is

as follows:

Loans and advances at amortised cost (including loan commitments)

Loss allowance measured at
life-time expected losses

Loss allowance | Financial assets for Financial assets Total
Reconciliation of loss allowance measured at 12 | which credit risk | for which credit risk
month expected has increased has increased
losses significantly and significantly and
not credit-impaired | credit-impaired

Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 1,391.08 664.60 3,046.50 5,102.18
Transfer to Stage 1 20.22 (18.81) (1.41) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (19.70) 22.14 (2.44) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (23.04) (234.45) 257.49 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 21.25 727.77 2,907.05 3,656.07
New financial assets originated or purchased 1,811.21 - - 1,811.21
Movement of new originated - 16.27 5.45 21.72
Financial assets that have been derecognised (1,085.23) (327.11) (270.59) (1,682.93)
Write offs - - (3,128.66) (3,128.66)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 2,115.79 850.41 2,813.39 5,779.59
Transfer to Stage 1 34.13 (26.09) (8.04) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (55.96) 71.40 (15.44) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (154.08) (235.76) 389.83 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (35.57) 1,491.63 12,406.88 13,862.94
Movement of new originated 1,532.09 - - 1,532.09
Transfer - financial assets originated or purchased (83.25) 30.50 52.75 -
Financial assets that have been derecognised (1,307.71) (441.25) (753.18) (2,502.14)
Write offs - - (2,461.66) (2,461.66)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 2,045.43 1,740.84 12,424.53 16,210.82

The contractual amount outstanding on loans and advances measured at amortised cost that were written off during the year
ended 31 March 2025 and are still subject to enforcement activity is INR 2,461.66 million (31 March 2024: INR 3,128.66 million)
All restructured accounts has atleast shown 18 months of performance. Considering the same, it is classified as per actual DPD.

Investment at Amortised cost

Loss allowance measured at life-time
expected losses

o Loss allowance | Financial assets for Financial assets Total

Reconciliation of loss allowance measured at 12 |which credit risk has|  for which credit

month expected increased risk has increased

losses significantly and not| significantly and

credit-impaired credit-impaired
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 10.02 - - 10.02
Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - - - -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 0.86 - - 0.86
New financial assets originated or purchased 6.38 - - 6.38
Financial assets that have been derecognised (4.07) - - (4.07)
Write offs - - - -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 13.19 - - 13.19
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Investment in Debt securities at FVTOCI

Loss allowance measured at life-time
expected losses

Loss allowance | Financial assets for Financial assets Total
Reconciliation of loss allowance measured at 12 |which credit risk has| for which credit
month expected increased risk has increased
losses significantly and not | significantly and
credit-impaired credit-impaired
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 11.91 - - 11.91
Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - - - -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (3.77) - - (3.77)
New financial assets originated or purchased 2.84 - - 2.84
Financial assets that have been derecognised (0.96) - - (0.96)
Write offs - - - -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 10.02 - - 10.02
Other financial assets at amortised cost
Loss allowance measured at life-time
expected losses
Loss allowance | Financial assets for Financial assets Total
Reconciliation of loss allowance measured at 12 |which credit risk has| for which credit
month expected increased risk has increased
losses significantly and not | significantly and
credit-impaired credit-impaired
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 0.46 - - 0.46
New financial assets originated or purchased 0.29 - - 0.29
Financial assets that have been derecognised (0.46) - - (0.46)
Write offs - - - -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 0.29 - - 0.29
New financial assets originated or purchased 0.83 - - 0.83
Financial assets that have been derecognised (0.29) - - (0.29)
Write offs - - - -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 0.83 - - 0.83
Bank balances
Loss allowance measured at life-time
expected losses
Loss allowance | Financial assets for Financial assets Total
Reconciliation of loss allowance measured at 12 |which credit risk has| for which credit
month expected increased risk has increased
losses significantly and not | significantly and
credit-impaired credit-impaired
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 2.13 - - 2.13
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 0.42 - - 0.42
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 2.55 - - 2.55
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 0.55 - - 0.55
Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 3.10 - - 3.10
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(h) Collateralheld and other creditenhancements
As of 31 March 2025, 56.64% (31 March 2024: 61.72%) of the group’s retail loans (inclusive of corporate loans) were unsecured. The
Bank’s retail loans are generally secured by a charge on the asset financed (vehicle loans, property loans and gold loans). Retail
business banking loans ( inclusive of corporate loans) are secured with current assets as well asimmovable property and fixed assets
insome cases.
Collateral securing each individual loan may not be adequate in relation to the value of the loan. All borrowers must meet the
Group'sinternal credit assessment procedures, regardless of whether the loan is secured. In addition to the collateral stated above,
the Group holds other types of collateral such as second charges and floating charges for which specific values are generally not
available.

The following table sets out the principal types of collateralheld against different types of financial assets.

As at 31 March 2025 Maximum exposure Land or Book Other Fixed Total  Exposure net Associated
to credit risk Building debts Collateral Deposits Collateral of collateral ECLs

Cash and cash equivalents 33,319.98 - - - - - 33,319.98 (2.76)
Other bank balances 1,091.42 - - - - - 1,091.42 (0.34)
Loans and advances 196,604.75 71,906.50 13,372.70  1,188.13 3,015.04 89,482.37 1,07,122.38 (16,200.13)
Other financial assets 2,332.89 - - - - - 2,332.89 (0.83)
Investments in government securities 37,512.06 - - - - - 37,512.06 (13.18)

Total financial assets at amortised cost 233,349.04 71,906.50 13,372.70 1,188.13 3,015.04 89,482.37 1,81,378.73 (16,217.24)
Investments at FVTOCI - - - - - - - -
Total financial assets at FVTOCI - - - - - - - -

Investments at FVTPL 12,725.79 - - - - - 12,725.79 -
Total financial assets at FVTPL 12,725.79 - - - - - 12,725.79 -

Maximum exposure Land or Book Other Fixed Total  Exposure net Associated

As at 31 March 2024 tocreditrisk  Building debts Collateral Deposits Collateral of collateral ~ ECLs

Cash and cash equivalents 28,466.62 - - - - - 28,466.62 (1.96)
Other bank balances 1,826.45 - - - - - 1,826.45 (0.59)
Loans and advances 1,82,251.10  62,988.93 12,858.10 - 1,688.12  77,535.15 1,04,715.95 (5,751.05)
Other financial assets 2,774.43 - - - - - 2,774.43 (0.29)
Total financial assets at amortised cost 2,12,544.17  62,988.93 12,858.10 - 1,688.12 77,535.15 1,37,783.45 (5,753.90)
Investments in debt securities 36,511.59 - - - - - 36,511.59 (10.02)

Total financial assets at FVTOCI 36,511.59 - - - - - 36,511.59 (10.02)
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The below tables provide an analysis of the current fair values of collateral held and credit enhancements for stage 3 assets.
Dependent on the level of collateral, some Stage 3 exposures may not have individual ECLs when the expected value of the
collateralis greaterthan the LGD, even in if the future value of collateralis forecast using multiple economic scenarios. However, the
Stage 3 ECL can be higher than net exposure show below when the future value of collateral, measured using multiple economic
scenarios, is expectedto decline.

As at 31 March 2025 Maximum exposure Land or Book Other Fixed Total  Exposure net Associated
BE dic to credit risk Building debts Collateral Deposits Collateral of collateral ECLs

Loans and advances 20,382.54 1,077.24 240.12  709.45 1.60 2,028.41 18,354.13  12,424.53
Total financial assets at amortised cost 20,382.54 1,077.24 240.12 709.45 1.60 2,028.41 18,354.13 12,424.53

Maximum exposure Land or Book Other Fixed Total  Exposure net Associated
As at 31 March 2024 to credit risk Building debts Collateral Deposits Collateral of collateral ECLs
Loans and advances 4,158.87 756.93 - - - 75693  3,401.94  2,813.39
Total financial assets at amortised cost 4,158.87 756.93 - - - 756.93 3,401.94  2,813.39

Concentration of risk
The group monitors credit risk by sector and by geographiclocation. An analysis of grouping of credit risk fromloans and advances,
loan commitments, financialguaranteesand investmentsecuritiesis shown below.

Loans and advances to customers As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Carrying amount 180,404.62 1,82,251.10 1,40,572.75

Concentration by sector

Corporate:
Wholesale Lending 21,956.74 18,713.44 15,703.51
Retail: - -
Mortgages 46,152.71 43,933.03 27,525.03
Unsecured lending 112,295.17 1,19,604.63 97,344.21
Total 180,404.62 1,82,251.10 1,40,572.75

Concentration by location

India 180,404.62 1,82,251.10 1,40,572.75
Investments As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Carrying amount 50,224.66 36,511.59 27,974.40

Concentration by sector

Corporate/ NBFC 7,364.59 3,479.28 2,991.95
Government 42,860.07 33,032.30 24,982.45
Banks - - -

Mutual funds - - -
Total 50,224.66 36,511.58 27,974.40

Concentration by location
India 50,224.66 36,511.58 27,974.40

Concentration by location for loans and advances, loan commitments and financial guarantees, is based on the customer’s
country of domicile.
Concentration by location for investment securities is based on the country of domicile of the issuer of the security."
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. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group willencounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
seftled by delivering cash or anotherfinancial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group uses activity-based costing to cost its products and
services, which assistsitin monitoring cash flow requirementsand optimisingits cash return oninvestments.

The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debtinvestmentsat an amountin
excess of expected cash outflows on financialliabilities over the next six months. The Group also monitors the level of expected cash
inflows on asset on finance, frade receivables and loans fogether with expected cash outflows on borrowings, payablesand other
financialliabilities.

Currently the Groupis not having any lines of credit.

Exposureto liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at the reporting date. The amount are gross and
undiscounted, and excludes contractualinterest paymentsand exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows
As at 31 March 2025 Carrying con.l;?:,ilmm 6 month 6-12 1-3years | 3-5years | More than

amount | cqash flows orless months 5years
Non - derivative financial liabilities
Trade Payables 407.46 - - - - - -
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 18,454.23  18,454.23 3,875.11 4,377.04 10,078.16 123.92 (0.00)
Lease liability 3,453.41 4,291.40 437.39 427.29 1,403.59 1,085.19 937.94
Deposits 222,352.97 222,885.67  44,587.69  51,196.73 109,347.55 17,349.20 404.50
Subordinated Liabilities 5,158.86 5,166.77 166.77 - 1,950.00 - 3,050.00
Other financial liabilities 3,306.61 3,714.81 2,876.30 725.34 96.62 - 16.55
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents* 33,317.37  33,319.97  27,935.29 1,495.85 3,324.44 468.31 96.08
Bank balances other than cash 1,091.08 1,091.42 524.66 524.18 42.58 - -
and cash equivalents
Loans 180,404.62 188,449.52  45,002.07 34,771.18  51,213.71 19,896.20 37,566.36
Investments 50,224.67  50,237.85 19,245.08 8,614.87 19,060.35 2,695.40 622.15
Other Financial assets 2,333.15 2,201.14 1,878.23 187.61 83.16 15.39 36.75

Carrying amount includes CRR requirement of INR 6,684.44 million in March 2025
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Contractual cash flows
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Con.l;?;ilfum 6 month 6-12 1-3years | 3-5years | More than
amount | cash flows or less months 5 years

Non - derivative financial liabilities
Trade Payables 494.51 - - - - - -
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 34,904.54  34,904.54  21,461.21 6,402.97 6,818.16 148.16 74.04
Lease liability 2,716.73 3,422.44 347.63 346.71 1,245.06 848.00 635.04
Deposits 1,79,975.81 1,80,460.62  43,099.69 62,855.24  69,981.49 4,078.54 445.66
Subordinated Liabilities 2,098.12 2,104.00 4.00 - 150.00 1,950.00 -
Other financial liabilities 3,825.92 4,441.56 3,288.44  1,024.67 112.94 - 15.51
Issued financial guarantee contracts - - - - - - -
Issued loan commitments - - - - - - -
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents* 28,464.66  28,463.39  22,491.66  3,481.92 2,295.89 178.87 15.05
Bank balances other than cash 1,825.86 1,826.45 1,790.29 29.41 2.42 4.33 -
and cash equivalents
Loans 1,76,500.05 1,81,593.60 57,943.67 34,893.08  54,311.52 9,405.54 25,039.79
Investments 36,501.58  36,794.65 13,095.80 10,651.35  12,005.35 961.27 80.89
Other Financial assets 2,774.43 2,952.83 1,643.79 519.10 375.67 74.85 339.41

Carrying amount includes CRR requirement of INR 5,780.67 million in March 2024

The inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represents contractual undiscounted cash flows. The disclosure shows net cash
flow amountsthat are net cash settled and gross cash inflow and outflow amountsthat have simultaneous gross settlement.

Asdisclosedin Note 12, the Group has a secured bank loan that contfains aloan covenant. A future breach of covenant may require
the Group to repay the loan earlierthanindicatedin the above table. Under the agreement, the covenantis monitored on a regular
basis by the treasury department and regularly reported to managementto ensure compliance with the agreement.

The future cash flows on contingent consideration and derivative instruments may be different from the amount in the above table
as inferest rates and exchange rates or the relevant conditions underlying the contingency change. Except for these financial
liabilities, itis not expected that cash flows includedin the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different
amounts.
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D. Marketrisk
The fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios
and manages each of those portfolios separately. Such risks for the trading portfolio is managed and monitored based on a VaR
methodology that reflects the interdependency between risk variables. Non-trading positions are managed and monitored using
othersensitivity analyses. Allsuch transactions are carried out within the guidelinesset by the Risk Management Committee.

The following table sets out the allocation of assets and liabilities subject to market risk between trading and non-trading portfolios:

As at 31 March 2025

MARKET RISK MEASURE Carrying Trading |Non-trading
amount | porifolios | portfolios
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 33,317.37 - 33,317.37
Bank balance other than above 1,091.08 - 1,091.08
Loans 180,404.62 - 180,404.62
Investments 50,224.67 - 50,224.67
Other financial assets 2,333.15 - 2,333.15
267,370.89 - 267,370.89
Financial liabilities: -
Trade Payables 407.46 407.46
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 18,454.23 - 18,454.23
Lease liability 3,453.41 - 3,453.41
Deposits 222,352.97 - 222,352.97
Subordinated liabilities 5,158.86 - 5,158.86
Other financial liabilities 3,306.61 - 3,306.61
253,133.54 - 253,133.54
As at 31 March 2024
MARKET RISK MEASURE Carrying Trading | Non-trading
amount | porifolios | portfolios
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 28,464.66 - 28,464.66
Bank balance other than above 1,825.86 - 1,825.86
Loans 1,76,500.05 - 1,76,500.05
Investments 36,501.58 - 36,501.58
Other financial assets 2,774.43 - 2,774.43
2,46,066.58 - 2,46,066.58
Financial liabilities:
Trade Payables 494.51 - 494.51
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 34,904.54 - 34,904.54
Lease liability 2,716.73 - 2,716.73
Deposits 1,79,975.81 - 1,79,975.81
Subordinated liabilities 2,098.12 - 2,098.12
Ofther financial liabilities 3,825.92 - 3,825.92
2,24,015.63 - 2,24,015.63

Marketrisk - Non-trading portfolios

(i) Currencyrisk

The Group is exposed to currency risk o the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which borrowings are
denominatedand the respective functional currencies of Group. The functionalcurrency forthe Group is INR. The Foreign currencyin

which these transactionsare primarily denominatedis USD.

Currency risks related to the principal amounts of the Group’s USD loans, have been fully hedged using forward contracts that

mature onthe same datesasthe loans are due forrepayment.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group's policy is fo ensure that its net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term

imbalances.
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Exposureto currencyrisk
The summary quantitative data about the Group's exposure to currency risk as reported to the managementis as follows:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

INR usb INR usb

Subordinated liabilities = - - _
Swap Contract - - - -
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities - - - -

Particulars

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of INR and USD against all currencies at 31 March would not have any affect on
measurement of financialinstrumentsdenominatedin foreign currency asthe exposureishedged.

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Particulars . . . .
Strengthening  Weakening Strengthening  Weakening

31 March 2025
USD (1% movement) - - - -

31 March 2024
USD (1% movement) - - - -

(ii) Interestraterisk
The Groups maximum interest rate exposure is at a fixed rate. This is achieved mostly by entering into fixed rate instruments and partly by

borrowing at afloatingrate.

Exposuretointerestrate risk
The interestrate profile of the Group'sinterest-bearingfinancialinstrumentsas reported to the managementis as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 257,929.65 2,27,459.41
Financial liabilities 253,667.23 2,24,497.55

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 9,439.99 18,603.00
Financial liabilities - -

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
Areasonably possible change of 100 basis pointsin interest rate at the reporting date would have increased or decreased profit orloss before
tax by INR 1493.10 million (31 March 2024: INR 516.23 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency

exchangerates, remain constant.
Cash flow sensitivity analysisfor variable rate instruments

Areasonably possible change of 100 basis pointsin interestrate at the reporting date would have increased or decreased equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain
constant.

Profit or loss before Tax Equity, net of tax

Particulars
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

31 March 2025
Variable rate instruments 9,439.99 9,439.99 7,064.13 7,064.13
Cash flow sensitivity (neft) 94.40 (94.40) 70.64 (70.64)

31 March 2024
Variable rate instruments 18,603.00 18,603.00 13,921.00 13,921.00
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 186.03 (186.03) 139.21 (139.21)
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Legal and operationalrisk

Legalrisk

“Legalriskis therisk relating fo losses due to legal or regulatory actionn thatinvalidates or otherwise precludes performance by the end user or
itscounterpartyunderthe terms of the contract orrelated netting agreements.

The group had engaged the services of a Legal Consultant for addressing legal matters pertaining to the Bank”, including vetting of
agreements entered into by the group. The group also availed the services of Legal firms / Legal Counsels, wherever warranted. The group
also has a system in place to respond to legal and statutory notices. There were 89 legal cases pending against the Bank aggregating INR
30.29 million (31 March 2024 : INR 10.18 million)

The group has since appointed Head — Legal in April 2019 and atf present Legal Department is functioning with Head-Legal, one AVP (Legall)
and three SeniorExecutive.The group also has a feam of Officers with legalbackgroundinits Retail Assets CollectionTeam for filing of cheque
bounce casesu/s 138 of N.l Act and initiating arbitration/ civil proceedingswhereverrequired.”

Operational

Operationalriskis the exposure to loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from externalevents. The
Company has clearly defined operations procedures for each of its products and services. It also has advanced computer systems that
enableittorunoperationswith speed and accuracy.

The operation risk department under risk department operates independently from other units of the group and reports directly to the Risk
Management Committee of the Board. It conducts regular reviews of all business areas of the group and reports control deficiencies and
exceptionsto the Company's policies and procedures. It also recommends measures to mitigate operationalrisk, which are implemented by
managementimmediately.

The group also has a contingency plan fo take care of any failure of its computer systems. Regular backups are made for all important
datasets, and stored outside the group's premises. This ensures that in case of any system failure, the group will be able to continue its
operations without losing critical data or business transactions. As part of its disaster recovery plan, the group has established a back-up site
which would and operate during an emergency.

The group has a specific Business Continuity Plan ("BCP") unit. The main objective of the BCP is to ensure that in the event of full or partial
disaster which includes Pandemic, the group is well set to be able to contfinue providing essential services to customers, minimizing any
adverse effectson the group'sbusiness, through businessimpact analysis, businessrestoration.

The Group is using various tools under operational risk for monitoring operational risk such as conducting risk & control self assessments,
capturing operationalloss data and monitoring of KRIs.

Capital management

The basic approach of capital adequacy framework is that, a financial institution should have sufficient capital to absorb shocks on
accountof any unexpectedlosses arising from the risksin its business.

As per RBI guidelines, the Group is required to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted asset ratio. Capital management entails
optimal utilization of scarce capital to meet extant regulatory capital requirements. UCIL has put in place an appropriate Risk
Appetite framework and computesits capital requirementsand adequacy as per extant regulatory guidelines.

. The Group maintains minimum capital to risk weighted asset rafio entity wise for all the entities forming part of the group and

accordinglymanage the capitalrequirementsamong all the entitiesin the group.

i. Capitalallocation

The amount of capital allocated to each operation or activity is undertaken with the objective of minimisation of return on the risk
adjusted capital. Allocation of capital is to various lines of business basis annual business plan drawn at the beginning of the year.
Various considerationforallocating capitalinclude synergies with existing operations and activities, availability of managementand
otherresources, and benefit of the activity with the Group'slong term strategic objectives.

Details of financial assets sold to Asset Reconstruction Company
Particulars A As atf
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

No. of accounts * 1,24,728 -
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred * (on the date of transfer) 3,545.40 -
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) 666.59 -
Aggregate Consideration 520.00 -
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years -

*includestransfer of 56433 accounts having principal outstanding as on September 30, 2024 Rs. 1,304.03 millions which are previously
written off as at September 30, 2024

The group has received Security Receipts (SRs) amounting to Rs. 339 millions as part of the consideration for tfransfer of stress loans fo
ARC. Investmentin SR has been fully provided and the resultant fair value loss has been recognised in Note 24 - Net loss on fair value
changes.




44

45

46

Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

In the year ended 31 March 2023, the impact of disruptions resulting from COVID -19 has eased substantially, however the Group
continuesto monitorthe developments/ ongoingimpact resulting from COVID-19 Pandemic and any action to containits spread or
mitigateitsimpact.

The composite scheme of arrangement (Scheme) between the Utkarsh Small Finance Bank (Bank) and Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited
(UCL), its holding company, and their respective shareholders under Section 230 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal, bench at Allahabad (NCLT) on 25 October 2019 for the reductionin the
face value of equity share capital of the Bank and for the issuance and allotment of fully paid-up equity shares of the Bank to the
shareholders of UCL (on account of their invested capital) from the reserves created from such reduction of share capital. The
objective of the Scheme was, amongst others, to achieve dilution in shareholding of UCL in the Bank in line with the small finance
bank’slicensing guidelines.

Inrelationto the Scheme, the Bank had approached RBI seeking a certificate u/s 44B (1) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and RBI
had videitsletterdated 21 July, 2020 communicatedto the Bank that the mode of dilution of promotershareholding proposed under
the Scheme militates against the spirit of the licensing guidelines for Small Finance Banks. Further, RBIhad advised that it may consider
issuing the required certificate u/s Section 44(1) in the event the board of both the Bank and UCL agree and approve that the
combinedshareholding of UCL and shareholdersof UCL, who would be allotted the equity shares of the Bank, will be diluted to 40% of
the voting sharesin the Bank by 22 January, 2022 and till that fime together they will exercise only 26% voting rights in the Bank. Basis
deliberations, the respective boards of UCL and the Bank decided to withdraw the application for approval of Scheme.
Subsequently, the Bank withdrew the petition and the NCLT by its order dated August 27, 2020 dismissed the petition as withdrawn.
The Bank videitsletterdated September03, 2020 addressed to RBI to withdraw its application seeking certificate from RBI.

Amounts payable to Micro and Small enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 that came into force from 02 October 2006, certain
disclosuresare required to be made relating to Micro, Smalland Medium enterprises. There have been no reported cases of delaysin
payments fo micro and small enterprises or of intferest payments due to delays in such payments during the years ended 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024. The above is based on the information available with the Group, which has been relied upon by the
statutory auditors.

Particulars gl As at
KA CI W7l 31 March 2024
a. Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 101.38 107.12
b. Interest accrued, due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount, and unpaid - -
c. Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day during the year 183.86 1,098.59
d. Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -
e. Interest due and payable towards suppliers under MSMED Act for payments already made 2.05 15.37
f. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act 205 15.37
(including interest mentioned in (e) above)
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47 Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Corporate Social Responsibility expenses for the period* 85.50 51.60

Various Head of expenses included in above:
Note 29: Other expenses: Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibilities 76.28 51.60

Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year. 9.22 51.20
Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 76.28 32.80

Details of related party tfransactions (Utkarsh Welfare Foundation) 85.50 -

Provision for CSR Expenses
Opening Balance - -

Add: Provision created during the period 85.50 51.60
Less: Provision utilised during the period 76.28 32.80
Closing Balance 9.22 18.80
The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required to be 9.22 -
spent by the Group during the year
1.59

The total of previous years' shortfall amounts -
The reason for above shortfalls by way of a note - -
The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Group CSR activities CSR activities

undertaken as per undertaken as per
scheduleVIl under scheduleVIl under
section 135 on section 135 on
thematic areas of thematic areas of
Health, Education Health, Education
and Livelihoods and and Livelihoods and
Entrepreneurship Entrepreneurship
development. development.

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has formed a CSR Committee of the Board of Directors. The CSR
Committee has also approved a CSR Policy where certain focus areas out of list of activities covered in Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act 2013, has been identified.

48 Interestin other entities
a) Interestin subsidiaries
i. The group's subsidiaries at 31 March 2025 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of
equity shares that are held directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the
group. The country of incorporationorregistrationis also their principal place of business.

Ownership held N Ownershi|:1> ir;li_ere§t 'heldf
y non-controlling interests
Name of entity . Country ".’ f by the group Principle activities
Incorporation | 31 march | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March

2025 2024 2025 2024
Subsidiaries
Utkarsh small finance bank India 68.92% 69.06% 31.08% 30.94% Small finance bank
Utkarsh welfare foundation* India - - - - Section 8 company for

CSR activities

*The Group has disposed of ifs stake in Utkarsh Welfare Foundation on 24 Februrary 2022.
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ii. Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material fo
the group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations.

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Ltd.
AR A W T WLVl As at 31 March 2024

Summarised balance sheet

Particulars

Total Assets 278,354.41 2,53,344.09
Total Liabilities 253,893.84 2,24,801.18
Net Assets 24,460.57 28,542.91

Summarised statement of profit and loss

Particulars

attributable to non controlling interest

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Ltd.

31 March 2024

e [ CRY-Te |-V, (o[- Il For the year ended

31 March 2023

Revenue from operation 38,894.06 31,403.65
Profit for the year (4,145.99) 3,283.94
Other Comprehensive income 25.41 243.16
Total Comprehensive income (4,120.58) 3,527.10

b) Additional disclosure under Schedule Ill of Companies Act 2013.
: Share in other Share in total
Net assets Shpre n comprehensive comprehensive
profit or Loss . .
Name of the Entity Income Income
% of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount
Consolidated (in Consolidated (in Consolidated (in Consolidated (in
net assets millions) profit or loss millions) profit or loss millions) profit or loss millions)
Parent Company
31-Mar-25 34.15% 8,565.39 -7.17% 302.7 -0.43% (0.11) -7.21% 302.59
31-Mar-24 29.25% 8,514.69 0.44% 14.45 -0.13% (0.32) 0.40% 14.13
31-Mar-23 40.64% 8,438.17 0.24% 13.28 0.00% 0.00 0.26% 13.28
Utkarsh small finance bank 97.52%  24,460.57 98.18%  (4,145.99)  100.45% 25.41 98.16%  (4,120.58)
31-Mar-25 98.05%  28,542.91 99.56% 3,283.94  100.13% 243.16 99.60% 3,527.10
31-Mar-24 97.58%  20,262.03 99.76% 5,524.75  100.00%  (364.30) 99.74% 5,160.44
31-Mar-23
Non-controlling interest
31-Mar-25 31.11% 7,803.12 25.97%  (1,096.78) 26.57% 6.72 25.97%  (1,090.06)
31-Mar-24 30.51% 8,881.78 26.10% 860.77 26.25% 63.74 26.11% 924.50
31-Mar-23 15.38% 3,194.50 15.19% 841.11 15.22% (55.46) 15.19% 785.64
Consolidation/other adjustments
31-Mar-25 -62.78% (15,746.82) -16.98% 717.12 -26.59% (6.73) -16.92% 710.40
31-Mar-24 -57.81% (16,828.52) -26.10% (860.81) -26.24% (63.73) -26.11% (924.54)
31-Mar-23 -53.60% (11,130.07) -15.19% (841.09) -15.23% 55.47  -15.18% (785.62)
Total
31-Mar-25 100.00%  25,082.26 100.00% (4,222.95)  100.00% 253 100.00%  (4,197.65)
31-Mar-24 100.00%  29,110.86 100.00% 3,298.35  100.00% 242.84  100.00% 3,541.19
31-Mar-23 100.00%  20,764.63  100.00% 5,538.04 100.00% (364.29) 100.00% 5,173.75
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49 Lease as lessee
The group has taken various premises on lease for undertaking its banking and allied business.

Following are the changes in the carrying values of right of use assets:

Category of ROU Assets

Particulars R . .

Premises ATM Machines Core Banking Software
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,416.81 53.18 23.67
Additions 261.82 10.57 -
Disposals - - -
Depreciation 437.31 12.66 23.68
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,241.32 51.09 (0.01)
Additions 1,275.13 17.00 -
Disposals - 1.06 -
Depreciation 588.44 14.53 -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,928.01 52.51 -

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assefts is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement
of profit and loss.

The following is the movement in lease liabilities:

Particulars Lease liabilities
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,910.98
Additions 263.18
Adjustment on account on rent concession

Finance cost accrued during the period 252.63
Payment of lease liabilities (710.06)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,716.73
Additions 1,275.61
Adjustment on account on rent concession

Finance cost accrued during the period 289.62
Payment of lease liabilities (828.55)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3,453.41

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars X A W T IVl As at 31 March 2024

Less than one year 864.67 694.35
One to five years 2,488.78 2,093.07
More than five years 937.94 635.04

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet
the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was INR 11.76 million for the year ended 31 March 2025
(31 March 2024: INR 9.57 million).
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50 Expected credit loss (ECL) impairment provision - Loans

2024-25
Asset Classification as per Asset Gross Loss Allowances Net Provisions Difference
RBI Norms classification| Carrying | (Provisions) as | Carrying required between Ind
as perInd | Amount as | required under | Amount as per AS 109 provisions
AS 109 per Ind AS Ind AS 109 IRACP norms |and IRACP norms
(M (2) (3) (4) [(5)=(3)-(4) (¢) (7) = (4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 168,545.30 2,035.17  |166,510.13 780.92 1,254.25
Stage 2 7,743.00 1,740.85 6,002.15 - 1,740.85
Stage 3 - - - -
Subtotal 176,288.30 3,776.02 |172,512.28 780.92 2,995.10
Non-Performing Assets (NPA) - - - -
Substandard Stage 3 19,594.46 11,979.46 7,615.01 8,927.00 3,052.46
Doubtful - upto 1 year Stage 3 350.59 214.34 136.25 226.00 (11.66)
1-3years Stage 3 371.40 230.32 141.08 338.00 (107.68)
more than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for Doubtful 721.99 444.65 277.33 564.00 (119.35)
Stage 3 - - - -
Loss - - - - -
Other items such as guarantees, Stage 1 1,075.19 10.26 1,064.93 - 10.26
loan commitments, etc. which are in Stage 2 N N N - N
the scope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage 3 - - - . -
covered under current Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and - - - - -
Provisioning (IRACP) norms - - - - -
Subtotal 1,075.19 10.26 1,064.93 - 10.26
Stage 1 169,620.49 2,045.43 |167,575.06 780.92 1,264.51
Total Stage 2 7,743.00 1,740.85 6,002.15 - 1,740.85
Stage 3 20,316.45 12,424.11 7,892.34 9,491.00 2,933.11
Total 197,679.94 16,210.39 (181,469.55 10,271.92 5,938.47
2023-24
Asset Classification as per Asset Gross Loss Allowances Net Provisions Difference
RBI Norms classification| Carrying | (Provisions) as | Carrying required between Ind
as per Ind | Amount as | required under | Amount as per AS 109 provisions
AS 109 per Ind AS Ind AS 109 IRACP norms |and IRACP norms
(M (2) (3) (4) [(5)=(3)-(4) (¢) (7) = (4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 174,106.68 2,087.68 |172,018.99 2,364.38 (276.70)
Stage 2 3,490.85 850.42 2,640.44 - 850.42
Stage 3
Subtotal 177,597.53 2,938.10 |174,659.43 2,364.38 573.72
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 3,803.30 2,299.00 1,504.31 1,922.00 377.00
Doubtful - upto 1 year Stage 3 678.64 410.22 268.42 569.00 (158.78)
1-3years Stage 3 171.61 103.73 67.88 154.00 (50.27)
more than 3 years Stage 3 - -
Subtotal for Doubtful 850.26 513.96 336.30 723.00 (209.04)
Stage 3
Loss - - - - -
|ther ifems.fuch Tcsls g%owaifcehezre - Stage 1 3,665.90 28.55 3,637.35
oan commitments, .
the scope of Ind AS 109 but not z:gg: i : : : : 28'55_
covered under current Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and - - - - -
Provisioning (IRACP) norms - - - - -
Subtotal 3,665.90 28.55 3,637.35 - 28.55
Stage 1 177,772.58 2,116.23 |175,656.35 2,364.38 (248.15)
Total Stage 2 3,490.85 850.42 2,640.44 - 850.42
Stage 3 4,653.56 2,812.96 1,840.60 2,645.00 167.96
Total 185,916.99 5,779.61 |180,137.39 5,009.38 770.23
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51 The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
currentyear.

52 The title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment (other than properties where the Group is the
lessee and the lease agreementsare duly executedin favor of the lessee) andintangible assets are held in the name of the Group.

53 No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Group for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

54 The Group has not guaranteed any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties,
either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand; or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

55 The Group has obtained various borrowings from banks/ Fl on basis of security of current assets wherein the quarterly returns/
statements of current assets as filed with banks/ Fl are in agreement with the books. The Group has used the borrowings from banks
and financialinstitutionsfor the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. The Group is not declared as willful
defaulterby any bank or financial Institution or otherlender as at 31 March 2025. The group has secured borrowings. All secured term
loans were secured by way of exclusive charge on the standard assets portfolio receivables pertaining to micro credit loans and
cash collateral as per the respective agreements. The borrowing of the group comprised of Tier Il and Refinance as on 31st March
2025 (Tierl1INR 5,158.86 million & Refinance INR 18,454.23 million). Tier Il is towards mostly for capitalaugmentation while refinance is to
obtainlongerterm funds at competitive pricing for asset growth.

56 q) The Group has not advanced / loaned / invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
withthe understandingthat the Intermediary shall:
(1) directly or indirectly lend / invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries)
(1) Provide any guarantee, security or the like fo or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(b) The Group has notreceived any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understandingthat the Group shall:
(1) directly orindirectlylend orinvestin other persons or entitiesidentified by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
(1) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

57 No transactions have taken place with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
CompaniesAct, 1956.

58 There are no chargeswhich are yetto be registered with the Registrar of Companiesbeyond the statutory period.

59 The Group does not have any number of layers prescribed u/s (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017. There are no Scheme of Arrangements that has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms
of sections230to 237 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 as at 31 March 2025.

60 There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year or previous year in the tax assessments under the
Income TaxAct, 1961, that has not beenrecordedin the books of account.

61 No crypto/ virtual currency was traded/ invested during the current year. No deposits / advances were received from any person for
the purpose of trading / investingin crypto currency during the currentyear or previous year.

62 The Group hasreported 105 frauds amounting to Rs. 44.2 million (previous year: Rs.325.83 million) based on managementreporting to
Risk Committee and to RBI through prescribed returns. The nature of fraud involved is misappropriation of funds, fraudulent
encashment/manipulationof books of accounts.

The above includes 115 cases of HL fraud (considered as 1 case in 87 cases) amounting to Rs.299.54 million in the previous year
(currentyear:nil).

63 Previous years figures have been regrouped, reclassified wherever considered necessary fo conform to the classification/disclosure
requirementsadoptedin the currentyear

for DMKH & Co. for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
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Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

. Reporting entity

Utkarsh Coreinvest Limited (“the Company’ or ‘Holding Company”) is domiciled in India. The Company is having its registered office
at Varanasi. The Company was formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited and got the name changed to Utkarsh Corelnvest
Limitedw.e.f. 11 October2018.

The Company together with its subsidiary Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (‘the Bank or ‘SFB’) are collectively referred to as “the
Group”.The Group hasbeen engaged in the business of micro finance and banking operations as further explained below.

The holding company was primarily engaged in the business of micro finance, following group lending methodology and providing
small value unsecured bank loans to lower income group of below poverty line (‘BPL’) in urban and rural areas. The tenure of these
loans was generally spread over a period of up to 2 years. During the financial year 2016-17, the Company executed a business
transfer agreement with its subsidiary Company ‘Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited’ (‘USFB’) and transferred all its assets and
liabilities (except certain statutory assets, vehicle and statutory liabilities). Accordingly, the business of micro finance was also
transferred to USFB.

On 3 May 2018, the RBI has granted its approval to the Holding Company for carrying on the business of a Non-Deposit taking-
Systemically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI) under the Certificate No C.07.00781.

Material accounting policies

. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

i. Statement of compliance
The Consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS 110-‘Consolidated
Financial Statements’ as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules asamended from time to time.

The financial statements of the Subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as of the
Company i.e. year ended March 31, 2025 and are prepared based on the accounting policies consistent with those used by the
Company.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised forissue by the Group’s Board of directors on August 29 2025.

Subsidiary considered in the consolidated financial statements

Percentage of Holding
Country of incorporation 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Utkarsh Smalll Finance Bank Limited India 68.92% 69.06%

Name of the Subsidiary

The Group has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods.

ii.  Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following materialitems:

¢ Financial assets at FVTOCI thatis measured at fair value.

¢ Financialinstruments at FVTPL that is measured at fair value.

* Financialinsfruments measured at amortised cost

* Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability - fair value of plan assetsless present value of defined benefit obligation.

iii.  Principles of Consolidation
Subsidiary are all enfities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability o affect those returns through its power to direct the
relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiary are fully consolidated from the date on which controlis fransferred to the group.

The group combines the consolidated financial statements of the parent and its subsidiary line by line adding together like items of
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Infercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the fransaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the tfransferred asset.

Non-controlling interestsin the results are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement
of changesin equity and balance sheet respectively.

iv.  Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group's functional currency. Allamounts
have beenrounded to the nearest million rupees, unless otherwise stated.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

v. Useofjudgements and estimates
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actualresults may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

A. Judgements
Information about the judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the Consolidated financial statements have been given below:

* Note 49 — Measurement of lease liabilities and right of use assets

* Note 40 - classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assessment of
whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

B. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the
Consolidated financial statements for the every period ended isincluded below:

* Note 34 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

* Note 7- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future faxable profit against which carryforward tax losses can be
used;

¢ Note 8-9- Usefullife and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

¢ Note 31- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and
magnitude of an outflow of resources

* Note 40 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments

* Note 41-Impairment of financial assets: key assumptionsin determining the average loss rate

b. Revenue Recognition
i. Interestincome from financial assets is recognised on an accrual basis using Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR') method. The EIRis the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The EIR is computed basis the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument. The calculation includes all fees, transaction costs, and all
other premiums or discounts paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate.

ii. The interest revenue continues to be recognised at the original EIR applied on the gross carrying amount for financial assets
(when the asset is not credit impaired). However, for the financial assets that have become credit impaired subsequent to the
initial recognition, inferest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the assetis no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interestincome reverts to the gross basis.

iii. For financial assets that were credit impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the credit-
adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.

iv. Dividendis accounted on an accrual basiswhen the right to receive the dividend is established.

v. Income from interest on deposits and interest bearing securities is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account
the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate.

vi. Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified |

as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on the -

balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss. In cases 2R

thereis a net gainin the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Netgains =~ = # :""III

on fair value changes” under Revenue from operations and if there isa | 2{‘{3{: [ - RRRRE ‘
' ' N

netloss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the statement of profit »
and loss. Similarly, any realised gain orloss on sale of financialinstruments |
measured at FVIPL and debt instruments measured at FVOCI s
recognisedin net gain/loss on fair value changes. '

vii. Allother fees are accounted for asand when they become due.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

c. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign exchange forward contracts,
embedded derivativesin the host contract, etc.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group initially recognises loans and advances on the date on which they are originated. All other financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, whichis the date on which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Classifications

The Group classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value depending on the Group's
business model formanaging the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment
The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best
reflects the way the businessis managed and informationis provided to management. The information considered includes:

» The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In parficular, whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets;

* How the performance of the portfoliois evaluated and reported to the Company's key management personnel.

* How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

* The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the
Group's stated objective formanaging the financial assetsis achieved and how cash flows are realised.

* The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how
those risks are managed.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during
a particular period of fime and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. Thisincludes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing
or amount of confractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition.

Debtinstruments at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if
both of the following conditions are met:

¢ |tis held within a business model whose objective
isto hold assetsin order to collect contractual cash
flows.

* The contractual terms of the financial asset
represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Afterinitial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking info account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are anintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisationisincluded in finance income in the profit or
loss. The losses arising from ECLimpairment are recognised in the profit orloss.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Afinancial assetis measured at FVTOCI only if both of the following conditions are met:

« |t is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.
* The contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income (OCI). Interestincome is recognised basis EIR method and the losses arising from ECL impairment are
recognised in the profit orloss.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
Financial assetsincluded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its business
model formanaging financial assets.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e.removed from the Group's balance sheet) when:

* Therightstoreceive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. If the Group evaluates that substantial risk and
reward have not been transferred, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset. If the Group evaluates that substantial
risk and rewards are neither transferred nor retained and the control of the asset is also not transferred, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligatfions
that the Group hasretained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated
to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain orloss that had been recognised in OClisrecognised in profit orloss.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or amortised cost, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction
cosfs.

Classification and subsequent measurement
The measurement of financialliabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Afterinitial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gainsand losses are recognised in profit orloss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisationisincluded as finance costsin the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL
When a financial liability contract contains one or more embedded derivative, the Company may designate the entire hybrid
confract as af fair value through profit andloss unless:

* the embedded derivative(s) do(es) not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract;
or

e it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar hybrid instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded
derivative(s) is prohibited, such as a prepayment option embedded in a loan that permits the holder to prepay the loan for
approximately itsamortised cost.

The fair valuation change on the liabilities subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss account isrecognised in profit
andloss account except the changesin the liablity’s credit risk which is recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability whenits contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially
different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are
deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair
value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result
in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a
modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with
impairmentlosses. In other cases, itis presented asinterestincome.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability or equity based on the modified terms is recognised aft fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability or equity recognized with modified
tfermsisrecognised in profit orloss orin otherequity in case the same is a transaction with the shareholders.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Fairvalue measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly tfransaction between market
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of aliability reflects it non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market
participants would take intfo accountin pricing a fransaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the tfransaction price i.e. the fair value of
consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market nor based on a valuation fechnique for which any
unobservable inputs are judged o be insignificant in relation to measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is
recognised in profit orloss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument.

d. Impairment of Financial Assets
Impairment of financial instruments
The Group recognisesimpairment allowances for ECL on all the financial assets that are not measured at FVTPL:

¢ Financial assets that are debt instruments
e Loan commitmentissued

No impairmentlossisrecognised on equity investments
ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

¢ Financial assets that are not creditimpaired — as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting dafte.

* Financial assetfs with significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired — as the present value of all cash shortfalls that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset.

¢ Financial assets that are credit impaired — as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated cash flows

* Undrawn loan commitments — as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group if the commitmentis drawn down and the cash flows that the Group expectstoreceive

With respect to trade receivables and other financial assets, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected creditlosses.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For
financial assets at FVTOCI, the loss allowance isrecognised in statement of profit and loss.

- _v
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e. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
Holding Company
Foreign currency fransactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respective fransactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date, not covered by forward exchange
contracts, are translated at year end rates. The resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Non-monetary assets are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Banking Company inthe Group

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of Profit and
Loss account. Income and Expenditure items are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Balance Sheet date based on exchange
rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers' Association of India ('FEDAI') and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in
the statement of Profit and Loss.

f.  Property, Plant and Equipment(PPE)
Initial Measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation as adjusted forimpairment, if any.

If significant parts of anitem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as a separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in statement of Profit and loss.

Leasehold improvements are amortised on straight line basis over the primary period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the
assets, whicheverislower.

The Company has elected fo confinue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and used it as its deemed cost as at
the date of transition.

Subsequent Measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Group.

Impairment

Carrying amounts of cash generating assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any
impairment. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss whenever the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount.

Depreciation

Depreciationis provided as per straight-line method from the date of addition over the estimated useful life of the asset. The Group
has carried out a technical assessment of the useful life of its assets taking into account changes in environment, changes in
tfechnology, the utility and efficacy of the asset in use. If the management's estimate of the useful life of a property, plant and
equipment at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review is shorter, then the
depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on management's estimate of the useful life/remaining useful life. The
management believes that depreciation rates currently used, fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment which are in accordance with lives prescribed under Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.
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Assets Estimated useful life (in Years)
Vehicles 8 years

Computers 3 years

Leasehold improvement As per the lease term.

Office equipment 5 years

Electrical equipment 10 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Generator 10 years

Land -

Building 60 years

Improvements and installations of capital nature on the leasehold property are depreciated over the primary lease term.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial yearend and changes, if any, are accounted
forprospectively.

De-recognition

Property, plant and equipment is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any
gain orloss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is de-

recognised. Depreciation on assets sold during the yearis recognised on a pro-rata basis to the statement of profit and loss upto the
date of sale.

Capital Work in Progress
Capitalworkin progressincludes cost of fixed assefs that are not ready for theirinfended use.
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g. Intangible assets
Initial Measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost and are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation as adjusted forimpairment, if any.

The Company has elected to contfinue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and used it as its deemed cost as at
the date of fransition.

Subsequent Measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Group.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
net selling price and its value in use. If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced fo its recoverable amount. The reduction is freated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of Profit and
Loss. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amountisreassessed and the assetisreflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised in the statement of profit and loss over their estimated useful lives from the date they are available
for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the asset. Intangible assets are amortised on
straightline basis. Computer software are amortised on straight line basis over their estimated useful life of three years.

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed in each financial year end and changes, if any, are accounted for
prospectively.

De-recognition

Intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fromits use. Any gain orloss arising
on de-recognition of the asset is recognised in otherincome / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is de-
recognised. Amortisation on assets sold during the yearis recognised on a pro-rata basis to the statement of profit and loss upto the
date of sale.

h. Leases
The Group'slease asset classes primarily consist of leases for ATMs, Software and buildings. The Group, at the inception of a contract,
assesses whether the contractis alease or notlease. A contfractis, or contains, alease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of anidentfified asset for a fime in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered
info on orafter01 April 2019.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs fo dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use assef is
subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the Group's incremental borrowing rate. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.
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Employee benefits
i.  Shortterm employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Share-based payment arrangements

Utkarsh Corelnvest Ltd. has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme to be administered through a Trust. The scheme
provides that subject to continued employment with the Group, the employees are granted an option to acquire equity shares
of the Holding Company that may be exercised within a specified period.

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to employees is generally recognised
as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period of the awards. The amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the number of awards that meet the related
service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

Parent Company is the grantor of its equity instrument for all share options provided to the employee of the Bank. The Bank
reimburses the parent company for the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to the employees of the
Bank

iii. Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The Group has
following defined contribution plans:

Provident Fund

The Group contributes to mandatory government administered provident funds which are defined contribution schemes as the
Group does not carry any further obligation, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. The contributions are
accounted foron an accrual basis and recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss

iv. Defined benefit plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of
any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, considerationis given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in Other
Comprehensive Income. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the
discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year
after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit orloss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service
or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

v. Otherlong-term employee benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-
measurements are recognised in profit orlossin the period in which they arise.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

j- Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity orin Other Comprehensive Income

i. Currenttax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income orloss for the year and any adjustment to
the tax payable orreceivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:

* has alegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
¢ infends eitherto settle on anet basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary
differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a fransaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit norloss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profitsimproves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred taxis measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using fax
ratesenacted orsubstantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the mannerin which the Group expects,
atthe reporting date, fo recover orseftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
* the entity has alegally enforceable right to set off current fax assets against current taxliabilities; and
* the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxeslevied by the same taxation authority on the same

taxable entity.

k. Cashand Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalentsinclude cashin hand, balances with RBI, balances with other banks and money at calland short nofice.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.
.  Segmentreporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision

maker.

The board of directors of the Group has beenidentified as the chief operating decision maker for the Group.




Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

m. Earnings Pershare

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year aftributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit orloss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings per
share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are
included.

n. Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
The Group creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and areliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the fime value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

A disclosure for Contingent Liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outflow of resourcesisremote, no provision or disclosure ismade.

The provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the
reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect.

Contingent assets are nofrecognised in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefitis
probable.

o. RecentAccounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new
standards oramendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.

Manish Kankani Suman Saurabh
Partner Managing Director and CEO
Membership No: 158020 DIN: 07132387
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)
CERTIFICATION

We, Suman Saurabh, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Harshit Agrawal, Chief Financial Officer of Utkarsh
Corelnvest Ltd. (erstwhile Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited), “the Company”, hereby certify o the Board that:

a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 and that to
the best of ourknowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially unfrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a frue and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no tfransactions entered info by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting in the Company and we
have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we
have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operations of such internal conftrols, if
any, of which we are aware of and the steps we have taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d) Wehaveindicatedto the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
(i) Significant changesin internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the Notes of the
financial statements; and

(i) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and involvement therein, if any, of the
Management or an employee having a significant role in the Company'’s internal control system over financial
reporfing.

e) We affirm that we have not denied any personnel access to the Audit Committee of the Company (in respect of matters
involving alleged misconduct, if any).

Sd/- Sd/-
Suman Saurabh Harshit Agrawal
Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) REPORT OF FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

1 Briefoutline on CSR Policy of the Company

Policy Statement

Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (formerly known as Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited), through its CSR projects, will enhance
value creationin the society and in the community in which it operates, throughits services, conduct and initiatives, so as
to promote sustained growth for the society and community, in fulfiment of its role as a Socially Responsible Corporate
Citizen. The ultimate aim of the CSR projects will be to benefit the communities at large and over a period of fime
enhance the quality of life and economic well-being of the local populace.

CSR Philosophy and Guiding Principles

The Company shall confinue its efforts to impact the society positively, particularly to underserved and unsecured
communities, including in the area of its and its subsidiaries operations. The Company has formulated policies for social
development based on the following guiding principles:

Vi.

Serving households through arange of socially oriented products and services.

Adopting an approach that aims at achieving a greater balance between social development and economic
development.

Adopting new measures fo accelerate and ensure the basic needs of deprived sections of the society.

Work towards elimination of barriers for the social inclusion of disadvantaged groups such as the poor and the
disabled.

Enabling ways for enhancing skills for better livelihood opportunities.

Support underprivileged and underserved segments by providing financial and non-financial services through a
socially responsible, sustainable and scalable institution.

Management Structure: CSR Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee”) of the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) shall
be responsible for framing and approving the Policy and for the overall governance of CSR activities. The CSR Committee
shall consist of three (03) ormore Directorsincluding atleast one (01) Independent Director and it shall meet atleast once
ayearand asand when required.

The activities of CSR Committee will be in accordance with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from
time to time) and as per approved terms and reference (CSR Charters) by the Board of the Company.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board and its Committee
The CSR Committee shall formulate and recommend to the Board an annual action plan in pursuance of the CSR Policy
of the Company, which shallinclude the following:

the list of CSR projects or programmes that are approved fo be undertaken in areas or subjects specified in Schedule
Vlilof the Act;

the manner of execution of such projects or programmes as specified in sub-rule (1) of rule 4 of the Act;

the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or programmes;

monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes;

details of need andimpact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the company; and

i. the mechanism and adherence of necessary compliance under the applicable CSR Act and Rules, including for the

unspent CSR Amount, if any.

Provided that the Board may alter such plan at any fime during the financial year, as per the recommendation of CSR
Committee, based on the reasonable justification to that effect.

1. Scope of Activities during the Financial Year 2024-25
The Board of the Company had approved for a CSR Expenditure of 5,00,000 (Rupees Five Lakh only) for FY2024-25, to be
expended towards Health Initiatives and such incidental or related activities being taken up through Utkarsh Welfare
Foundation (UWF), the regular CSR Implementing Agency of the Company.

CSR
(Corporate Social Responsibility)

e —




FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR FY 2024-25
2 Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company: Forming Part of Agenda Item No. VIil.

3 Composition of CSR Committee:

SI. Name of Director Designation / Number of meetings Number of meetings
No. Nature of of CSR Committee of CSR Committee
Directorship held during the Year attended during the Year
1 Mr. G. S Sundararajan Independent Director, 1 1
Chairperson
2 Mr. Atul Independent Director, 1 -
Chairperson
3 Mr. Aditya Deepak Nominee Director 1 1
Parekh

4 Web-link to refer about the Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board:

http://www.utkarshcoreinvest.com/index.php/CSR/Activities

5 Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-

rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

6 Average net profit

Zz
>

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:%2,09,87,389

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:%4,19,748
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c) -(d)]:X¥4,19,748

7 Amount Spent

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): ¥4,83,484
(b) Amount spentin Administrative Overheads: 324,899

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

(d) Totalamount spent forthe Financial Year [(a)+(b) +(c)]: ¥5,08,383

(e) CSR amount spent orunspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in %)
Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified
Total Amount Spent CSR Account as per sub-section (6) under Schedule.VII as per secfond proviso to
for the FY 2024-25 of section 135. sub-section (5) of section 135.
in¥
(in3) Amount Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount  Date of transfer.
5,00,000/- - - - - -

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any.

# Particulars Amount (in %)
(1) (2) (3)

I Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 4,19,748
ii. Total amount spent for financial year 5,00,000
iii. Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 80,252
iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous FY 2023-24 -
V. Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

*The Board had approved CSR contribution of €5,00,000 (upper rounded off) against the CSR obligation of ¥4,19,748 for
FY25and hence, the company does not intend to set-off the excess CSR contribution spent during FY25in future.




8 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 ) 7 8
Sl.|Proceeding Amount Balance Amount | Amount Spent | Amount transferred Amount | Deficiency,
financial |transferred Unspent| in Unspent CSR in the to a Fund as specified| remaining if any
years(s) |CSR Account under| Accountunder | Financial Year (under Schedule Vil as|o pe spent in
sub- section (6) of | subsection (6) of (ing) per second proviso fo | sycceeding
section 135 section 135 subsection (5) of Financial
(in%) (in¥) section 135, if any Years (in %)
Amount | Date of
(ing%) Transfer
1. FY-1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 FY-2 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. FY-3 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil



9 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the

Financial Year:

Yes ¥ No
If Yes, enterthe number of Capital assets created / acquired: N.A

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent
inthe Financial Year:

Sl. Short particulars of Pin code of Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/
No.| the property or asset(s) the creation of CSR beneficiary of the registered owner
[including complete property amount
address and location of or asset(s) spent
the property]
1 2 3 4 5 6
CSR Registration Name | Registered
Number, if applicable Address

NA

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no., house no., Municipal Office / Municipal
Corporation / Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

10 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-section (5) of

section 135.

N.A.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- §d/-
Managing Director & CEO Chairperson, CSR Committee
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AVISHKAAR BHARAT FUND
3:&_‘[%@ Aavishkaar Bharat Fund, an alternative investment fund registered with the Securities and
? Exchange Board of India, is an India-focused equity oriented fund with an objective to invest in
enterprises serving large market segments with a special emphasis on the under-served
demographic segments.

4 CAPITAL

AAVISHKAAR GROUPF

AAVISHKAAR GOODWELL INDIA MICROFINANCE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY Il LIMITED
Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance Development Company Il Limited, a private company

limited by shares under Mauritius law has objectives to (A) provide commercial long-term risk Aavishkaar md\hl
- il

capitaland active support directly to MFIsin India and (B) fo facilitate the setting up and accelerate Goodwell o

the growth of these MFIs, in order to build value and integrate them into the mainstream financial

sector.

AAVISHKAAR VENTURE MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited (“Aavishkaar Capital”) is a Company
@ jr'&il'éﬁlﬁ\? registered under the laws of India. Aavishkaar Capital pioneered the venture capital approach of
L@ CAPITAL investing in early-growth stage enterprises in India, with a focus on geographies and sectors that
AsvisHrEaaR crOUR - were often overlooked and challenging. Aavishkaar Capital currently manages/advises funds with
geographical focus on India and South & South East Asia and Africa.

BRITISH INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENT(BII)

British International Investment (Bll), erstwhile CDC Group Plc, is the UK's development finance

institution ond. impgcf inv§sfor Whﬁh a mis_sion fo help sol.ve the biggest global .develo;_)menf SSEP= British
challenges by investing patient, flexible capital to support private sector growth and innovation. Bl Internation_al
invests to create more productive, sustainable and inclusive economies in Africa, Asia and the TR Investment
Caribbean, enabling people in those countries to build better lives for themselves and their

communities.

FAERING CAPITALINDIA EVOLVING FUND I & 111

Faering Capitalis aleading Indian private equity firm with an entrepreneurial vision. The firm adopts

a disciplined, sector-focused investment approach to develop proprietary investment themes and
Faering Capital m partners with exceptional companies to navigate sustainable growth. Faering Capital has a proven

track record and long-term approach to build trusted partnerships with investors and exceptional

companies and built expertise, teams, and networks across its focus sectors of Financial Services,

Consumer & Retail, Healthcare, and Business Services.

ICICI PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited (ICICI Prudential Life) is promoted by ICICI Bank L
Limited and Prudential Corporation Holdings Limited. ICICI Prudential Life began its operations in ﬂfClCIPRI_[ENTML i/
fiscal year 2001 and has consistently been amongst the top players in the Indian life insurance DOOmETT
sector. ICICI Prudential Life is also the firstinsurance company in India to be listed on NSE and BSE.

NORWEGIAN MICROFINANCE INITIATIVE (NMI FRONTIER FUND KS)
” NMlinvests in and builds up MFIs in developing countries through equity and loan investments. NMI
nml'ﬁ:;i?mm primarily targets poor women in SubSahara Africo, South Asia and Southeast Asia. NMI Torge.Ts
L double bottom line results and thereby contributes to the empowerment of poor people in
developing countries and to the creation of jobs and wealth on a sustainable basis.




TRIODOS MICROFINANCE FUND (TMF)
. d Triodos SICAV Il - Triodos Microfinance Fund (Triodos - TMF) aims to support an accessible, well-
Triodos @ > Tt ) - .
functioning and inclusive financial sector across the globe by providing loans and equity to
microfinance institutions that demonstrate a sustainable approach, including small and medium-
sized enterprises; hereby offering investors a financially and socially sound investment in Financial
Inclusion. The fund is established in Luxembourg. Triodos Investment Management acts as
investment manager of the fund.

Investment
Management

INTERNATIONAL FINANCE CORPORATION (IFC)
“IFC, a member of the World Bank Group, is the largest global development institution @ch
focused on the private sectorin emerging markets”

International
Finance Corporation
WORLD BANK ORI

Creatimg Markets, Creatimg Opparivnities

RESPONSARBILITY PARTICIPATIONS MAURITIUS (RAPM)

responsAbility Participations AG is a company limited by shares with its registered office in

Zurich, Switzerland. The company targets long term participations in established and primarily
responSAbiIity unlisted companies in emerging and transitioning economies, with a particular focus on

institutions that provide financial services to micro, small and medium-sized enterprises and/or
low-income clients. responsAbility Participations AG is managed by responsAbility Investments
AG, a sustainable investment house with a track record of more than two decades of
specializinginimpactinvesting.

Participations

HDFC ERGO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

HDFC ERGO General Insurance Company Limited (“HDFC ERGO" or the "Company”) was
promoted by erstwhile Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd. (HDFC), India’s premier
Housing Finance Institution and ERGO International AG, the primary insurance entity of Munich Re
Group. Consequent to the implementation of the Scheme of Amalgamation of HDFC with and into
HDFC Bank Limited, one of India’s leading private sector bank (Bank), the Company hasbecome a
subsidiary of the Bank. The Company offers complete range of general insurance products ranging
from motor, health, travel, home and personal accident in the retail space and products like
property, marine and liability insurance in the corporate space. With a network of branches spread
across wide distribution network and a 24x7 support team, the Company has been offering
seamless customer service and innovative products to its customers.

HDFC LIFEINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Founded in 2000, HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited (‘HDFC Life’ or the ‘Company’) is aleading
provider of long-term life insurance solutionsin India. It offers a broad range of individual and group
plans across the Protection, Pension, Savings, Investment, Annuity, and Health categories, with a
HDFC portfolio of products and optionalriders designed to meet the diverse needs of its customers.
n Li.fe HDFC Life is a subsidiary of HDFC Bank Limited, one of India’s leading private banks. The Company
has a nationwide presence, operating through its own branches and a network of over 300
distribution partners, including banks, NBFCs, MFls, SFBs, brokers, and emerging ecosystem partners.
HDFC Life also maintains a strong base of financial consultants.
Recognised as a great place to work, HDFC Life is deeply commiftted to governance and
sustainability, ensuring responsible business practices that align with its long-term objectives.

Sas”wthia ke jipo!




SHRIRAM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Shriram Life Insurance Company Ltd.; jointly promoted by Shriram Capital Ltd. and South Africa-
based financial services group Sanlam Ltd.; is a leading insurer having built its operations over 18
years by catering to a wide demographic and providing the average Indian with a bouquet of life
insurance products catering to their financial needs. The company works with the purpose of
ensuring that all families in the community are provided with adequate financial protection
especially in the vulnerable segment. Shriram Life Insurance offers comprehensive protection and
long-term savings life insurance solutions, focused on people at the botfom of the socio-economic
pyramid, with close to 40% of insurance beneficiaries being from rural markefts. It has a network of
478 branch offices across India. Shriram Life Insurance underwrote gross premium of over INR 4200
crore in FY24, recording Assets Under Management (AUM) exceeding INR 13208 crore. The average
ficket size of the company for individual policies stands at around %20,000. The company'’s
protection and long-term savings plans help it give working-class families comprehensive life cover
besides offering stable investment solutions for their key life goals. The company has an in-force
policyholder base of over 10 lakhs. With a claims settlement ratio crossing 98% in FY 24; the company
hasbeen true foits purpose of providing security to the community.

o

HRIRAM
Hie (Gsiiaih

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA (SIDBI)

"Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI), set up on April 02, 1990, under an Act of Indian

Parliament, acts as the Principal Financial Institution for the Promotion, Financing and Development 9 M =
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME) sector and for coordination of the functions of / S|db|
the institutions engaged in similar activities. The role of SIDBI is to facilitate and strengthen credit flow

to MSMEs and address both financial and developmental gaps in the MSME eco-system.”

PATNI FAMILY TRUST

PATNI “Patni Family frusts are part of Patni Family office. The Patni Family Office investsin a wide range of asset

FAMILY classes such as equity, debf, real estate, commodities, joint ventures and other financial structures. The
Patni Group is a pioneer in computer hardware and software in India. The flagship company, Patni

TRUST Computers, wasfoundedin 1978 and went publicin the year 2004. It was sold in the year2011.”

RBLBANK LIMITED

RBL Bank is one of India’s leading private sector banks with an expanding presence across the

country. The Bank offers specialized services under five business verticals namely: Corporate

Banking, Commercial Banking, Branch & Business Banking, Retail Assets and Treasury & Financial RBLBANK
Markets Operations. It currently services over 15.48 million customers through a network of 561 apno ka bank
branches; 1,472 business correspondent branches (of which 296 banking outlets) and 412 ATMs

spread across 28 Indian states and Union Territories. RBLBank s listed on both NSE and BSE (RBLBANK).




REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE

A ) S-24/1-2, Fourth Floor, Mahavir Nagar, () communication@utkarshcoreinvest.com
Orderly Bazar, Near Mahavir Mandir,

Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh, PIN - 221002 &) www.utkarshcoreinvest.com
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